CORPORATION OF THE
TOWNSHIP OF BILLINGS

AGENDA
March 2, 2021 7:30 p.m.

1. OPEN
2. APPROVAL OF AGENDA

3. DISCLOSURE OF PECUNIARY INTEREST

Electronic Meeting

4. ADOPTION OF MINUTES a) February 16, 2021 regular meeting

5.  DELEGATIONS
6.  COMMITTEE REPORTS
a)
b)
7. OLD BUSINESS

8. NEW BUSINESS

9. CORRESPONDENCE

10.  INFORMATION

S. Jackson - Roma Report
S. Alkenbrack - EDC report

COVID-19 response update
Manitoulin Streams- Donations
and Donor Recognition
Official Plan Reserve Funds
2020 Budget Surplus

AMO Aug. 15-18 (virtual)
By-Law 2021-08 Salary Grid
By-Law 2021-09 Tax Ratio
Parks Recreation and Wellness
Recommendations to Council
Summer Students

Healthy Communities Funding
By-Law 2021-10 Coyote
Compensation By-Law
Billings Promotional Strategy



11.

12.

13.

14.

ACCOUNTS FOR PAYMENT

CLOSED SESSION

CONFIRMING BY-LAW

ADJOURNMENT

b)

c)
d)

Parks, Recreation and Wellness
draft minutes from the February
22,2021 meeting

Economic Development
Committee draft minutes from
February 17, 2021 meeting
Phase II Environmental Report
2020 Water Treatment Plant
Minutes (OCWA)

ORYV Guidance Document

Identifiable Individual



Memorandum

To: Mayor and Council,
cc: Staff, Public

From: Kathy McDonald
Date: February 25, 2021

RE: March 2, 2021 Council Meeting

5. Delegations

None

6. Committee Reports

a) S.Jackson

Report from the ROMA virtual conference that she attended January 25 and 26. 2021.
b) S Alkenbrack

Report from the Economic Development Committee meeting February 17, 2021.

7. 0Old Business

None

8. New Business

a) COVID-19 Response Update

Presented by Megan Bonenfant, CEMC

b) Manitoulin Streams Correspondence

Request for permission to install a donor recognition type plagque or display.
Recommendation:
That Council permit Manitoulin Streams to install a donor recognition type of plaque or display
and proceed with fundraising.

¢) Official Plan Reserve Funds

The Planning Board is requesting to use Official Plan reserve funds toward a new project.

Recommendation:
That Council supports the recommendation from the Manitoulin Planning Board to use the
Official Plan reserve funds for a new project.



d) 2020 Budget Surplus

Yearly Council passes a resolution to allow any surplus money from the 2020 budget to be moved to
general surplus. In 2020 we budgeted for a new plow truck, which delivery has been delayed due to
COVID-19. We did not spend the signage budget as well as other pre-covid planned items. We are
expecting the truck to be delivered sometime in March.

Recommendation:
That Council approves the transfer of the 2020 surplus into general reserves.

e) AMO Conference August 15- 18 2021

AMO (Association of Municipalities of Ontario) will again be holding the Annual Conference virtually.
The dates for the Conference are August 15 to 18, 2021. The early bird deadline is in April so in
order to save as few dollars Council should consider whether or not they wish to attend.

Recommendation:
That Council pass a resolution naming the Councillors that wish to be registered for the AMO
Conference.

f) By-Law 2021 - 08 Salary Grid
As directed, | have prepared a new by-law for the staff salary grid. There are no actual changes in the
pay ranges. Added to the By-law 6. Any employee that is at the top of their category are eligible to

receive a bonus based on recommendation by the CAQ/Clerk.

Recommendation:
That Council give this by-law three readings and enact.

g) By-Law 2021-09 Tax Ratio By-law

This is a procedural by-law completed every year with the only changes being the date.

Recommendation:
That Council give this by-law three readings and enacted.

h) Parks Recreation and Wellness Recommendations to Council

The Parks, Recreation and Wellness meeting held February 22, 2021 had three recommendations to
be brought to Council. For budget reasons it should be noted that the committee feels that they can
raise over $10,000 in donations for the rink project.

That a recommendation be made to Council to include $40,000 in the draft 2021 budget for
rink repairs.

That a recommendation be made to Council to give permission to the Parks, Recreation and
Wellness committee to fundraise for the rink repairs.

That a recommendation be given to Council to approve $300 for the Easter Egg Event.

i) Summer Students

Attached is a copy of the advertisement that has been prepared for Council approval. An email was
sent to Public Works, Library and Museum to confirm that they wanted students for the 2021 season.



We have applied for funding for some of these positions but have yet to receive notice as to whether
or not we will receive funding. All of these positions are crucial. The marina students are required to
operate the marina, the Library student to run the summer program (COVID pending), the Museum to
allow for opening seven days a week and the Public Works students to assist with grounds
maintenance and at the landfill.

Recommendation:
That Council approve the advertising and hiring of students for the positions listed in the draft
advertisement.

j) Health munities Fundin

See separate memo attached.

k) By-Law 2021-10 Coyote Compensation By-Law

As directed at the February 16, 2020 meeting staff have prepared a Coyote Compensation By-Law.
Recommendation:
That Council give by-law 2021-10, being a by-law to implement a Coyote Compensation
program be given three readings and enacted.

[} Billings Promotional Strategy

During the Economic Development meeting there was discussion regarding Billings Promotional
Strategy. A recommendation was made to request that the Township hire Kendra Edwards to design a
new brochure.

Recommendation:

That Council directs staff to engage with Kendra Edwards Design, as designer of the existing
brochure/map, to discuss revisions and updates for 2021, and that Council consider
inclusion of expenditure on this item in the 2021 budget.

9. Correspondence

None

10. Information

There are a number of items attached for Council’s information. Council may move any of these to New
Business during the agenda approval for discussion at this meeting or request that an item(s) be included on
a future agenda for discussion.

a) Parks, Recreation and Wellness draft minutes from the February 22, 2021 meeting
b) Economic Development Committee draft minutes from February 17, 2021 meeting
¢) Phase Il Environmental Report

d) 2020 Water Treatment Plant Minutes (OCWA)

e) ORV Guidance Document

12. Closed Session

There will be a closed session to discuss a matter pertaining to an identifiable individual.



The Corporation of the
Township of Billings
Regular Meeting

February 16, 2021 Electronic Meeting

Present: Mayor Andersan, Councillors Sharon Alkenbrack, Bryan Barker, Michael Hunt and Sharon

Jackson

Staff: Floyd Becks, Public Works Superintendent; Todd Gordon, Economic Development Officer; Kathy
McDonald, CAO/Clerk; Arthur Moran, By-law Officer

Media: Tom Sasvari

Members of the Public

Regrets: None

1.

Open
2021-50 Barker - Hunt
BE IT RESOLVED that this regular meeting of council be opened with a quorum present at 7:30
p.m. with Mayor Anderson presiding.
Carried

Approval of the Agenda
2021-51 Alkenbrack - Jackson
BE IT RESOLVED that the agenda for the February 16, 2021 regular meeting of council be
accepted as presented.
Carried

Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest
The following pecuniary interest declarations were made:

1, Councillor lan Anderson, declare a potential direct pecuniary interest on Agenda Item No. 7(b)
title Coyote Compensation for the following reason: | am a licensed fur harvester and could
benefit from the compensation program.

I, Councillor Bryan Barker, declare a potential pecuniary interest on agenda item 7 (c) item title
Farm Animal Exemption Request for the following reason: Although | am not sure this fits the
definition of pecuniary interest | would like to err on the side of caution and declare a conflict as
I have a few chickens for personal egg collection.

Adoption of Minutes
a) February 2, 2021
2021-52 Hunt - Alkenbrack
BE IT RESOLVED that Council accepts the minutes of the February 2, 2021, regular meeting as
presented.
Carried

b) February 9, 2021

2021-53 Barker —Jackson

BE IT RESOLVED that Council accepts the minutes of the February 9, 2021, special meeting as
presented.



Carried

Delegations
None

Committee Reports
None

Old Business

a) Power of Entry

2021-54 Barker — Alkenbrack

BE IT RESOLVED that by-law 2020-47 be given third reading and enacted.
DEFEATED

Mayor Anderson vacated the Chair and Councilor Barker proceeded as Chair.

Mayor Anderson left the meeting as he had declared a conflict of interest the item 7.b).

b) Coyote Compensation

No resolution. CAO/Clerk was provided with directions to prepare a by-law to provide for the
control of nuisance wolves and coyotes.

Mayor Anderson returned to the meeting.

Councillor Barker vacated the Chair and Mayor Anderson returned to Chair the meeting.
Councillor Barker declared a conflict of interest and left the meeting as he had declared a
conflict of interest in item 7.c)

c) Farm animal exemption request
2021-55 Alkenbrack —Jackson
BE IT RESOLVED that Council denies the Rickards’s request for an exemption to by-law 2013-27,
to allow for the keeping of a goat on a Shoreline Residential property.
DEFEATED

2021-56 Alkenbrack —Jackson
BE IT RESOLVED that Council directs the CAO/Clerk to enter into an agreement with the Sean
Rickard to allow for a conditional exemption to By-Law 2015-03 for the purpose of keeping a
myotonic goat at 566 Maple Point Rd.

Carried

d) Bridge Remediation
Council was updated on the discussion that the Public Works Superintendent had with the
engineer from K. Smart Associates regarding the 2020 Structural Inspection Appraisal Report.

e) Kagawong Drinking Water Inspection Report 2020-2021
2021-57 Hunt - Alkenbrack
BE IT RESOLVED that Council receives the Kagawong Drinking Water Inspection report 2020-
2021.
Carried



f) Gore Bay Medical Centre ad hoc Committee representation
2021-58 Alkenbrack — Hunt
BE IT RESOLVED that Council appoints Sharon Jackson to the Gore Bay Medical Centre ad hoc
Committee.
Carried

g) Zoning Update Steering Committee
2021-59 Barker — Atkenbrack
BE IT RESOLVED THAT Council appoints Todd Gordon to the Zoning By-law Update Steering
Committee.
Carried

h) Kagawong Landfill ECA Application report
2021-60 Alkenbrack — Hunt
BE IT RESOLVED that Council authorizes the Mayor and CAO/Clerk to proceed with the
Kagawong Landfill ECA application as detailed in the Pinchin Kagawong Landfill ECA Application
Supporting Documentation report issues on February 5, 20201 and execute any necessary
documents for that purpose.

Carried

i) Municipal Insurance Rates
Council received the information.

j) Employee Salary grid review
The CAO was provided with direction regarding the Employee Salary by-law.

k) Custodian position
2021-61 Barker — Alkenbrack
BE IT RESOLVED that Council authorizes the CAO/Clerk to hire Justin McVey to the Custodian
position.
Carried

1) Parks, Recreation and Wellness Committee Application
2021-62 Jackson — Hunt
BE IT RESOLVED that Council appoints Andrew Preyde to the Parks, Recreation and Wellness
Committee.
Carried

Correspondence
a) Manitoulin Family Resources re: Christmas basket campaign contribution
Council received the letter.

b) Gore Bay Provincial Offenses Board of Management re: COVID support

2021-63 Barker — Jackson

BE IT RESOLVED that Council for the Township of Billings supports the Gore Bay Provincial
Offenses Board of Management in their request to the provincial government to provide
financia! support (COVID) for all POA court operations in the province; and



BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be sent to the Premier, the Attorney
General, MPP Michael Mantha and the Gore Bay Provincial Offenses Board of Management.
Carried

c)Township of Asphodel-Norwood re: Community Safety and Wellbeing Plan extension
2021-64 Alkenbrack = Jackson
BE IT RESOLVED that Council for the Township of Billings joins the Township of Asphodel-
Norwood in calling upon the Solicitor General to review the imposed deadline for municipalities
to complete and adopt a Community Safety and Well-Being (CSWB) Plan in consultation with
local governments to address the unique challenges facing individual regions; and,
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that a copy of this resolution be sent to the Solicitor General, the
Minister of Community Safety and Correctional Services, MPP Michael Mantha and the
Township of Asphodel-Norwood.

Carried

d) City of St. Catharines re: universal paid sick leave
2021-65 Jackson — Alkenbrack
BE IT RESOLVED that Council for the Township of Billings joins the City of St. Catharines in
endorsing legislated sick leave and calls on the government of Ontario to permanently legislate
universal paid sick days for all workers in Ontario during the pandemic and beyond, regardiess of
workplace size, type of work or immigration status; and
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this motion be forwarded to the Premier of Ontario, Minister of
Labour, MPP Michael Mantha, and the City of St. Catharines.

Carried

e) Save the Ontario Fire College re: Ontario Fire College closure

2021-66 Hunt - Barker

WHEREAS the Ontario Fire College Campus has been in operation in Gravenhurst since 1958;
and

WHEREAS THE Ontario Fire College Campus is one of the primary sources of certified training for
Ontario Fire Fighters; and

WHEREAS the Ontario Fire College Campus has built a reputation of integrity, credibility, and
reliability in providing some of the best training to our Fire Services within the Province of
Ontario; and

WHEREAS the Ontario Fire College Campus has been used to train and certify both Volunteer,
Part-Time and Career firefighters throughout Ontario; and

WHEREAS the Regional Training Centers are not all created equal and similar in function to the
Ontario Fire College Campus; and

WHEREAS the Ontario Fire College Campus gives Ontario Firefighters another option other than
Regional Training Centers to obtain National Fire Protection Association (NFPA) certifications;
and

WHEREAS the Ontario Fire College Campus is most cost-effective method for municipalities to
certify Firefighters to NFPA Standards in Ontario; and

WHEREAS the Ontario Government enacted and revoked O. Reg. 379/18: Firefighter
Certification 2018, and

WHEREAS the Ontario Government revoked O. Reg 379/18: Firefighter Certification, it was made
known by the Office of the Solicitor General that the act would be amended and brought back in
the future; and



10.

11.

12.

THEREFORE, BE IT RESOLVED that the Township of Billings requests that the Province of Ontario
reverse their decision to close the Ontario Fire College Campus in Gravenhurst as the OFC is one
of the best and most cost-effective methods for municipalities to train their firefighters which
assists us in protecting our residents; and
BE IT FURTHER RESOLVED that this Resolution is forwarded to the Honourable Doug Ford
Premier of Ontario, the Honorable Sylvia Jones Ontario Solicitor General, the Honourable Steve
Clark, Minister of Municipal Affairs and Housing, the Ontario Fire Marshal Jon Pegg, and the
Save the Ontario Fire College group.

Carried

f) Township of Terrace Bay re: tax rate for railway rights-of-way
Council received the correspondence.

Information
a) MPAC quarterly report — 2020 Q4.
Council received the report

b) Manitoulin Municipal Association meeting package — February 17, 2021
Council received the information.

¢) Minutes — Economic Development Committee December 9, 2020
Council received the minutes.

Accounts for Payment
2021-67 Alkenbrack - Hunt
BE IT RESOLVED that Council authorizes the following accounts for payment:
General Accounts $173,193.47
and that cheque numbers 6622, 6627 to 6644 be authorized for signing as described in the
attached register.
Carried

Closed Session
2021-68 Barker — Alkenbrack
BE IT RESOLVED that in accordance with Section 239{2) (d) of the Municipal Act, 2001 S.O.
Chapter 25, this Council proceed to a Closed Session at 9:32 p.m. in order to discuss an item
related to employee negotiations.

Carried

2021-69 Resolution passed in camera to provide direction to the CAO.
2021-70 Alkenbrack —Jackson

BE IT RESOLVED that Council move out of Closed Session at 9:35 p.m. and resume our regular,
open meeting.



13. Confirming By-Law
2021-71 Alkenbrack - Barker
BE IT RESOLVED that by-law 2021-07, being a by-law to confirm the proceedings of Council, be
given first, second and third reading and enacted.

Carried
14. Adjournment
BE IT RESOLVED that this regular meeting of council be adjourned at 9:37 p.m.
Carried
lan Anderson, Mayor Kathy McDonald, CAQ/Clerk

02/18/21:km



MEMORANDUM

To: Council and staff From: Sharon Jackson, Council

Date: February 1, 2021 Re: ROMA Conference update

The annual ROMA (Rural Ontario Municipalities Association) conference was held January 25
& 26, 2021. During the two days of guest speakers, minister’s forums and concurrent
sessions. Topics covered included:

Broadband

Flooding

Seniors services and aging in rural communities

Community wellness and Well being plans

Waste: full producer responsibility

OPP matters

Municipal impact of cannabis growing

Digital government and virtual meetings

Community paramedicine

Impact and explicit bias

Chief Stacey Laforme, elected Chief of the Mississaugas of the New Credit First Nation
(MNCFN) welcomed delegates to the annual conference. His message to those in attendance
was to come together with a clear mind, a pure heart and the courage to use both to do the
right thing. The world is changing, he shared, and it can be better if we understand how to
move forward together. The pandemic has taught us what is important.

Opening keynote speaker on the first day of the conference was Chantal Hebert, national
affairs writer for the Toronto Star, guest for the magazine L‘Actualite and a regular
commentator on CBC’s The National’s weekly At Issue panel. She began with “we know it will
end, but no idea when” referring to the Pandemic and how our governments have reacted.
It was a health crisis first and then economic. From day one, there was agreement of all
politicians that this was a real crisis: unprecedented government action i.e., lock down, closing
schools and suspending the economy.

Ms Hebert spoke about the US Canada relations and feels the mood in Canada is
overwhelmingly positive as newly elected President Joe Biden offers normalcy vs incoherence
with the climate change front being the biggest change. This is the first time our federal
government and the US are aligned on climate change. They are doing more and doing it
quickly. The Americans are pushing us to do better.

When asked what she felt were the main policy areas risen due to the Pandemic, Ms Hebert
noted that internet coverage is as essential as turning on the lights or heating system in
our homes. One of the other areas was long term care which she refers to as “the orphan
file”.

Ms Hebert concluded by saying she felt Premier Doug Ford made a connection with the
people of Ontario during the Pandemic as people’s ideals changed, however felt it may not
take him past the Pandemic into the election



ROMA Chair Allan Thompson, Mayor of the Town of Caledon welcomed delegates to the
conference noting the last time we met in person was at the ROMA conference in 2020. Virtual
conferences are our “new reality” stressing that the world today is not one we could have
imagined a year ago. “A crisis”, he stated, “does not create character, it reveals it".

He spoke of the main issues facing all municipalities such as rural health related services, the
environment and broadband, stressing that our future depends on it to learn, socialize, access
economic opportunities, and overcome the distance between rural and urban connectivity
which has been desperately needed for “a very long time. The Pandemic has brought it to a
head”. The vaccine is the light at the end of the tunnel, he concluded, however “there is still
much work to be done”.

Elizabeth Mclsaac, president of Maytree, a Toronto based company committed to advancing
systemic solutions to poverty and strengthening civic communities spoke on the Economic
Recovery in Rural Ontario. Some of the topics covered included a conversation about a
human rights approach to recovery highlighting housing, jobs, education and food security.

Andrea Horvath, Leader of the official opposition (NDP) spoke about broadband, long term
care, sick days for workers, and shared that we rise and fall together. She stated, “we will
never support downloading more on rural municipalities” and will ensure the province takes
on its fair share.

Minister of Health and Deputy Prime Minister Christine Elliott provided a Covid-19 update
stating that the second wave is not the same as the first in that it is now in our long-term
care homes, hospitals and workplaces. Ontario, she stated, could vaccinate more people than
the supply provided. There has been a further reduction from Pfizer which has impacted not
only Ontario, but Canada and the world.

An interesting and revealing statistic shared by Minister of Seniors and Accessibility Raymond
Cho: prior to Covid-19 a study of 80,000 seniors reported 80% want to stay and live at home
longer if possible. Post Covid-19, the number jumped to 91%.

On the second day of the virtual conference Mike Schreiner, leader of the Green Party of
Ontario spoke on the long-term care home humanitarian crisis and its threat our most
vulnerable. One thing we can all learn from the Pandemic is to “build back smarter” related
to physical, mental, environmental and community. The first step is to begin by caring for
each other.

He spoke about empowering people to work from home and encourage young people to move
to rural areas where they can work remotely from home.

The Honorable Maryam Monsef, Minister for Women and Gender Equality and Rural
Economic Development spoke about how things have changed since the Pandemic: broadband
is the most important. “You needed access yesterday” she noted. During lockdown, Christmas
time was the hardest. People learned to use Zoom to stay connected to family and friends.
Progress, she noted, is slow. Scandinavia, South Korea and Chile are all ahead of Canada in
getting broadband in everyone’s household. When it comes to health and safety, kids, and
skills training, we cannot afford to be left behind. Rural recovery starts with broadband. The
challenge is funding.



She noted that 60% of rural municipalities have less than five staff members doing the work.
Our staff did an amazing job under trying and unprecedented times to ensure there was
minimal interruption in services and most importantly, to guarantee the safety of all staff and
citizens.

Canadians are tired of waiting. It is 2021 and some areas are still literally cut off from the
world. PM Trudeau plans to have 98% online by 2026 and 100% by 2030. Today rural children
are struggling to access their virtual education, rural Canadians cannot access resources and
programming when it comes to health care including mental health resources. Municipalities
are struggling to market themselves for investments when a business cannot operate without
basis internet. In the year 2021 when our lives are dependent on a virtual world, what do you
say to rural Canadians who are struggling, and area being told “just wait nine more years”
when they have already struggled and waited for so long?



Kathy McDonald

From: Sharon Alkenbrack <alkens@manitoulin.net>
Sent: Tuesday, February 23, 2021 7:47 AM

To: Kathy McDonald

Cc: alkens@manitoulin.net

Subject: Committee report

Kathy, my computer has crashed so sending my EDC committee report for Council on email.

Committee Report
EDC

Meeting date: Feb. 10/21

Old Business:

Discussion of the success of the Poetry boxes and now adding Art boxes for this year Todd updated committee on the
new flower boxes Social Media workshop postponed until in person can happen, as teaching this course would be easier
in person.

Jabbawong Storytelling Festival, just a discussion and waiting for covid relief.

Billings pamphlet, the brochure is moving forward, now getting business information sb ready for spring distribution Old
Business:

Continued info from The New local that Todd summarized Winter Tourism: a discussion of the businesses that are open
in off season and seeing how busy it's been this year, should we be moving forward on promoting winter Tourism

Sharon A



® Public Health
Santé publique
SUDBURY & DISTRICTS

New COVID-19 variants mean stricter self-
isolation requirements and enhanced screening
for schools

Issued: Tuesday, February 23, 2021

In response to the need for enhanced protection against the new more transmissible COVID-19 variants of
concern (VOC), the Ministry of Health has introduced stricter self-isolation and school screening requirements.

Enhanced self-isolation requirements are in place for all household contacts of individuals who have even one
symptom of COVID-19. Under the new guidance, all household members of an individual with even one
symptom of COVID-19 are required stay home and self-isolate until the individual with symptoms receives a
negative COVID-19 test result or receives an alternate diagnosis by a health care professional. If the individual
with symptoms does not seek COVID-19 testing, all household contacts must isolate for 14 days from their last
contact with that symptomatic individual.

The provincial COVID 19 self assessment and COVID-19 school and child care screener have been updated to
include this change and also require anyone who has a new or worsening symptom of COVID-19—even if only
one symptom—to stay home and self-isolate until:

= They receive a negative COVID-19 test result.
= They receive an alternative diagnosis by a health care professional.

= Orit has been 10 days since their symptom started and they are feeling better.

“By taking these additional measures, we can better protect our community from the very real threat posed by
COVID-19 variants of concern,” said Dr. Penny Sutcliffe, Medical Officer of Health with Public Health Sudbury &
Districts. “The success of enhanced public health guidance for screening and self-isolation relies on everyone’s
cooperation. We recognize the impact these requirements can have on individuals and families, but the
consequences of variants of concern gaining a foothold in our communities warrants decisive action. These
decisions are not made lightly,” added Dr. Sutcliffe.

Prevent the spread of COVID-19

The rate at which these new variants can spread is alarming, so it is more important than ever to contain the
virus as much as possible. Through our choices and actions, we can make it much more difficult for COVID-19
to spread. Everyone can recommit to the behaviours that prevent transmission and continue to follow public
health guidance.

= Stay home and seek COVID-19 testing_(https://www.phsd.ca/health-topics-programs/diseases-
infections/coronavirus/#testing), if you have symptoms, even symptoms are mild.

» All non-essential travel should be avoided. Area residents are being exposed to the virus through travel
outside our region. Stay in the area of your home community or stay in the region.



= Get tested (https://www.phsd.ca/health-topics-programs/diseases-infections/coronavirus/#testing) for
COVID-19 if you have any symptoms.

» The vaccine (https://www.phsd.ca/health-topics-programs/vaccines-immunizations/coronavirus-covid-19-
vaccine/) is highly recommended for all eligible individuals.

» Learn more about vaccine safety (https://www.phsd.ca/health-topics-programs/vaccines-
immunizations/coronavirus-covid-19-vaccine/covid-19-vaccine-fag/) and make an informed decision to
choose to get vaccinated when the time comes.

= Practise physical distancing_(https://www.phsd.ca/coronavirus/social-distancing-covid-19), because any
close contact could be a possible exposure to COVID-18.

= Continue to work remotely, where possible.

» Masks or face coverings must be worn in all indoor public places in Sudbury and districts.

» Masks or face coverings should also be worn where physical distancing cannot be maintained.

= Wash your hands often and when visibly dirty for 15 seconds.

» Cover your cough or sneeze with your arm or a tissue, throw away the tissue, and wash your hands.
» Avoid touching your eyes, nose, and mouth.

= Monitor for symptoms (https://www.phsd.ca/health-topics-programs/diseases-
infections/coronavirus#symptoms) of COVID-19.

» Avoid contact with people who are sick.
» Download the COVID Alert app.
For more information or if you have questions, please visit phsd.ca/COVID-19 (https://www.phsd.ca/health-

topics-programs/diseases-infections/coronavirus/) or call Public Health Sudbury & Districts at 705.522.9200
(toll-free 1.866.522.9200).

This item was last modified on February 23, 2021

Sudbury Chapleau Sudbury East Espanola Manitoulin Island
705.522.9200 705.860.9200 705.222.9201 705.222.9202 705.370.9200
Toll-free

1.866.522.9200



Public Health Sudbury & Districts
Coronavirus Disease 2019 (COVID-19)

Epidemiology Update

These data are based on information available from Public Health Sudbury & Districts as of 4:00 PM February 21, 2021,
unless otherwise specified.

Highlights

As of the time of reporting, among residents of the Public Health Sudbury & Districts service area, there have been:

583 cases of COVID-19,

0 3 of these cases were COVID-19 variants of concern {(VOC)

O As of November 24, 2020, unless otherwise specified, case counts include laboratory confirmed cases as well as
probable cases as defined by the Ontario Ministry of Health (probable case definition [PDF]), except for individuals
who have a preliminary positive result from a point-of-care test and for whom laboratory confirmation is required.

12 deaths.

O The case fatality rate is 2.1% (i.e., Total Deaths / Total Cases x 100%).

174,795 tests for COVID-19 completed as of end of day on February 20, 2021. Note: this includes preliminary
counts of tests completed in the previous 6 days.

O The testing rate is 87,902 tests per 100,000 population.

O The percent of tests that are positive is 0.4%. (i.e., Total Positive Tests / Total Tests x 100%). Note: an
individual may have more than one test completed.

Of the cases:

559 cases (95.9%) are resolved, and there are 24 active cases (4.1%).

227 cases (38.9%) were female. Note: Sex is not specified for cases 19 aged years and under.

339 cases (58.1%) were less than 40 years of age. Note: Data on sex and age groups are updated when there are
sufficient data to ensure individual cases cannot be identified.

92 cases (15.8%) had no known epidemiological link (unknown exposure).

110 cases (18.9%) were related to 24 outbreaks in congregate settings. There have been 11 COVID-related deaths

in these facilities.

There have been 7 outbreaks declared in local schools and licensed daycares.

Public Health Sudbury & Districts COVID-19 Epidemiology Update Page 10f 11



Epidemiology — Sudbury and Districts

Total cases as of February 21, 2021 at 4:00 PM: 583 Cases

Cases over time

Note: External data sources may have slight delays in capturing locally reported cases.

FIGURE 1. Confirmed cases, by date of reporting, Sudbury and districts

254
20
154

104

e .Mwmm

Mar1 Mar22 Apr12 May3 May24 Juni4 Jul § Jul26 Aug16 Sep6 Sep27 Oct18 Nov8 Nov2g Dec20 Jan10 Jan31 Feb21
Date Reported

Number of Cases

o
I

Data Source: Ontario Treasury Board Secretariat, Data Catalogue, Confirmed positive cases of COVID-19 in Ontario. https://data.ontario.ca/dataset/
confirmed-positive-cases-of-covid-19-in-ontario {(Access Date: February 22, 2021)
*** ||[nesses occurring during this period may not yet be reported

FIGURE 2. Confirmed cases, by date of symptom onset, Sudbury and districts

20
18+

16

Number of Cases

EMh|i wpy b i

Mar1 Mar22 Apr12 May3 May24 Junid Jul Jul26 Aug16 Sep6 Sep27 Oct18 Nov8 Nov29 Dec20 Jan10 Jan31 Feb21
Date Reported

Data Source: Ontario Treasury Board Secretariat, Data Catalogue, Confirmed positive cases of COVID-13 in Ontario. https://data.ontario.ca/dataset/
confirmed-positive-cases-of-covid-19-in-ontario (Access Date: February 22, 2021)
*** |[Inesses occurring during this period may not yet be reported

Public Health Sudbury & Districts COVID-19 Epidemiology Update Page 2 0f 11



FIGURE 3. Cumulative confirmed cases, by date of reporting, Sudbury and districts

700+

*kk

600

500

400+

300+

Number of Cases

200

100

0- . J g ;
Mar1 Mar22 Apr12 May3 May24 Juni4 Jul s Jul26 Aug16 Sep6 Sep27 Oct18 Nov8 Nov29 Dec20 Jan10 Jan31 Feb21
Date Reported

Data Source: Ontario Treasury Board Secretariat, Data Catalogue, Confirmed positive cases of COVID-19 in Ontario. https://data.ontario.ca/dataset/
confirmed-positive-cases-of-covid-19-in-ontario (Access Date: February 22, 2021)
*** |[Inesses occurring during this period may not yet be reported

FIGURE 4. Cumulative confirmed cases, by date of symptom onset, Sudbury and districts

700
600- Wk
500

400

300+

Number of Cases

200+

100+

Mar1 Mar22 Apri2 May3 May24 Jun14 Jul5 Jul26 Aug16 Sep6 Sep27 Oct18 Nov8 Nov2d Dec20 Jan10 Jan31 Feb21
Date Reported

Data Source: Ontario Treasury Board Secretariat, Data Catalogue, Confirmed positive cases of COVID-19 in Ontario. https://data.ontario.ca/dataset/
confirmed-positive-cases-of-covid-19-in-ontario {Access Date: February 22, 2021)
**+* |lInesses occurring during this period may not yet be reported

Public Health Sudbury & Districts COVID-19 Epidemiology Update Page 3 of 11



Case Characteristics

TABLE 1. Number and Percentage of Cases, by Various Characteristics

Numbers of Cases 100%

Change from previous report 8 1.4%* -12 -41.4%*
COVID-19 Variant of Concern: B.1.1.7 3 0% ok ok
Sex: Male 226 38.8% 2 11.8%
Sex: Female 227 38.9% 10 58.8%
Sex: Not specified*** 130 22.3% 5 29.4%
Ages: 19 and under 132 22.6% 3 17.6%
Ages: 20-39 207 35.5% 3 17.6%
Ages: 40-59 115 19.7% 6 35.3%
Ages: 60-79 70 12.0% 2 11.8%
Ages: 80 and over 57 9.8% 1 5.9%
Ages: Not specified*** 2 0.3% 2 11.8%
Area: Greater Sudbury 541 92.8% 17 100.0%
Area: Manitoulin District 24 4.1% 0 0.0%
Area: Sudbury District 18 3.1% 0 0.0%

Data source: Public Health Sudbury & Districts
*Percent change represents the degree of change over time, calculated: (New-Original)/Original

t The COVID-19 variant lineage B.1.1.7 is also commonly referred to as the U.K. variant, since it was first detected in that country.

** The time required to genetically-sequence the virus in a positive sample and confirm it as a COVID-19 variant of concern means that this

determination might not be made during the week in which the case was first reported.

***Data on sex and age groups are listed as unspecified until there are sufficient numbers to allow them to be assigned to the appropriate
categories. This ensures that individual cases cannot be identified. Sex is not specified for cases aged 19 years and under.

Case Outcome

Percent

Sudbury and districts 583 559 95.9% 24 4.1% 12 2.1%
Ontario 294,144 283,809 96.5% 10,335 3.5% 6,872 2.3%
Data Source: Public Health Sudbury & Districts and Ontario MOH COVID-19 Update

Public Health Sudbury & Districts COVID-19 Epidemiology Update Page 4 of 11




Probable Exposure

Note: Exposure categories have been revised to better align with categories reported provincially.

TABLE 3. Cases, by probable exposure, Sudbury and districts

EXDOSUTE Cases

Outbreak-associated 144 24.7% 1 5.9%
Close contact of a confirmed case 294 50.4% 11 64.7%
Travel-related 51 8.7% 1 5.9%
No known epidemiological link (unknown exposure) 92 15.8% 2 11.8%
Information pending/missing 2 0.3% 2 11.8%

Data Source: Public Health Sudbury & Districts

FIGURE 5. Cases, by date of reporting and probable exposure, Sudbury and districts

201 Il Outbreak-associated

18| [0 Close contact of a confirmed case
15-{| H@ Travel-related
IEE No known epidemiological link (unknown exposure)

14| B Information pending/missing |

12

Number of Cases

o
1
T

IE | II| | LEIL 1 1] I-‘ ! | | W ESY b R £
0- | e e e ot ) e Yo e 1T T T T 1 N
Mar1 Mar22 Apr12 May3d May24 Juni1d4 Juis Jul26 Aug16 Sep6 Sep27 Oct18 Nov8 Nov29 Dec20 Jan10 Jan31 Feb2i

Date Reported

Data source: Public Health Sudbury & Districts

FIGURE 6. Cumulative cases, by date of reporting and probable exposure, Sudbury and districts

700
B Outbreak-associated

I Close contact of a confirmed case

B Travel-related

E28 No known epidemiological link (unknown exposure)
Il Information pending/missing

800

500

400

300+

Number of Cases

2004

100

0-

Mar1 Mar22 Apri2 May3 May24 Juni4 Jan 10 Jan31 Feb21

Aug16 Sep6 Sep27 Oct18 Nov8 Nov29 Dec20
Date Reported

Jul§ Jul 26

Data source: Public Health Sudbury & Districts

Public Health Sudbury & Districts COVID-19 Epidemiology Update Page 5 0f 11



Testing

Total number of tests for COVID-19 as of end of day on February 20, 2021: 174,795 tests (this includes preliminary counts of
tests completed in the previous 6 days.)

Data includes testing from community assessment centres and other health care settings, as well as targeted surveillance
initiatives, such as in long-term care homes.

FIGURE 7. Number of tests and people tested in Sudbury and districts, March 30 to February 20, 2021

2500+

r— People Tested EEE Tests Completed ]

*%k

2000+

1500

Number

1000

500

0.
Mar1 Mar22 Apr12 May3 May24 Juni4 Juls Jul26 Aug16 Sep6 Sep27 Oct18 Nov8 Nov29 Dec20 Jan10 Jan31 Feb21

Date Reported

Data source: COVID-19 Testing Report (SAS Visual Analytics), Ministry of Health, February 22, 2021
*** preliminary data

FIGURE 8. Cumulative number of tests and people tested in Sudbury and districts, March 30 to February 20, 2021

200

[- People Tested [EE Tests Completed |

180
180
140+
1201
100

80

Number (thousands)

60
401
20

0

T T

Mar22 Apr12 May3 May24 Jun14 Jul § Jul26 Aug16 Sep6 Sep27 Oct18 NovB Nov29 Dec20 Jan10 Jan31 Feb21
Date Reported

Mar 1

Data source: COVID-19 Testing Report (SAS Visual Analytics), Ministry of Health, February 22, 2021
*** preliminary data

Public Health Sudbury & Districts COVID-19 Epidemiology Update Page 6 of 11



Outbreaks in Facilities

As per the most recent provincial directives, outbreaks of COVID-19 are not automatically declared in long-term care homes
and other congregate settings with the confirmation of one case. Public Health assesses each unique situation in
determining if an outbreak should be declared, including, for example, occupation, exposures in the home, symptoms of the
case, specific risk factors, and local epidemiology.

® |ntotal there have been 24 COVID-19 outbreaks in area facilities.

® Atotal of 110 cases (64 resident cases and 46 staff cases) are associated with these outbreaks. There has been 11
deaths.

® Of the declared outbreaks, 5 are currently active, and 19 have been declared over.

® The table, below, provides a summary of outbreaks that have been active within the past 7 days.

TABLE 4. Summary of recent outbreaks in faciliies, Sudbury and districts .

= Jate Declared
Nameof Facilit ne | 'U'{nifi: -_";F.ﬂ':il':-}:-i:._l:_;l |
| Uver
Amberwood Suites Retirement Home Facility-wide January 5 - 46
Finlandia Village Long-term care Assisted Living January 22 February 18 10
home
Health Sciences North Hospital Sixth floor South - 2 February 7 - 11
hallways
Elizabeth Centre Long-term care Facility-wide February 7 - 7
home
Pioneer Manor Long-term care Facility-wide February 7 - 8
home
Cecil Facer Youth Congregate setting Cottage #3 February - 1
Centre 16

Data Source: Public Health Sudbury & Districts

Public Health Sudbury & Districts COVID-19 Epidemiology Update Page 7 of 11



Outbreaks in Schools and Licensed Daycares

An outbreak in a school or daycare will be declared if there are two or more cases of COVID-19 in a 14-day period that have
some link with each other, and with evidence that infection occurred at the school.

® [ntotal there have been 7 COVID-19 outbreaks in area schools and licensed daycares.

® All outbreaks have now been declared over.
® The table, below, provides a summary of outbreaks that have been active within the past 7 days.

TABLE 5. Summary of recent outbreaks in schools and licensed daycares, Sudbury and districts

There have been no active outbreaks in the past 7 days.

Data Source: Public Health Sudbury & Districts

Public Health Sudbury & Districts COVID-19 Epidemiology Update Page 8 of 11



Regional Context

FIGURE 9. Confirmed cases, by date of reporting, Sudbury and districts and Northeastern Ontario

4°'|- Sudbury and districts [—J Rest of Northeastern Ontario |

35+

30+

25

204

15

Number of Cases

10+ |

n
Il
54 ; |:,f

I
|| | uq 1

1 l.;: u'hf i B .-'u-.:li| 1 B

Mar1 Mar22 Apr12 May3 May24 Juni14 Jul5 Jul26 Aug18 Sep6 Sep27 Oct18 Nov8 Nov28 Dec20 Jan10 Jan31
Date Reported

*kk

Data Source: Ontario Treasury Board Secretariat, Data Catalogue, Confirmed positive cases of COVID-19 in Ontario. https://data.ontario.ca/dataset/

confirmed-positive-cases-of-covid-19-in-ontario (Access Date: February 22, 2021)
*** |lInesses occurring during this period may not yet be reported

FIGURE 10. Confirmed cases, by date of reporting, Ontario

4500 *ed

4000+

3500+

3000+

2500+

2000

Number of Cases

1500+

1000+

500+

Mar1 Mar22 Apri12 Jul 5 Jul26 Aug16 Sep6 Sep27 Oct18 Nov8 Nov29 Dec20 Jan10 Jan31

Date Reported

May3 May24 Juni4

Data Source: Ontario Treasury Board Secretariat, Data Catalogue, Confirmed positive cases of COVID-19 in Ontario. https://data.ontario.ca/dataset/

confirmed-positive-cases-of-covid-19-in-ontario (Access Date: February 22, 2021)
*** |llnesses occurring during this period may not yet be reported

Public Health Sudbury & Districts COVID-19 Epidemiology Update Page 9 of 11



FIGURE 11. Cumulative confirmed cases, by date of reporting, Sudbury and districts and Northeastern Ontario

Ly |- Sudbury and districts [ Rest of Northeastern Ontario |

14004

12004

10004

8004

600

Number of Cases

400+

200+

Mar22 Apr12 May3 May24 Juni14 Juld Jul26 Aug16 Sep6 Sep27 Oct18 Nov8 Nov28 Dec20 Jan10
Date Reported

Mar 1

*hx

Jan31 Feb21

Data Source: Ontario Treasury Board Secretariat, Data Catalogue, Confirmed positive cases of COVID-19 in Ontario. https://data.ontario.ca/dataset/

confirmed-positive-cases-of-covid-19-in-ontario (Access Date: February 22, 2021)
*** |[Inesses occurring during this period may not yet be reported

FIGURE 12. Cumulative confirmed cases, by date of reporting, Ontario

350
300+
250
200
1504

100

Number of Cases ({thousands)

Mar1 Mar22 Apr12 May3d May24 Juni4 JulS Jul26 Aug16 Sep6 Sep27 Oct18 NovB Nov2d Dec20 Jan10
Date Reported

Jan31 Feb21

Data Source: Ontario Treasury Board Secretariat, Data Catalogue, Confirmed positive cases of COVID-19 in Ontario. https://data.ontario.ca/dataset/

confirmed-positive-cases-of-covid-19-in-ontario (Access Date: February 22, 2021)
*+* |lInesses occurring during this period may not yet be reported

Public Health Sudbury & Districts COVID-19 Epidemiology Update Page 10 of 11



TT J0 TT 93ed a1epdn ASojoiwapidl 6T-AIAOD SI213sIQ '8 Angpns yijeay d1ignd

‘uoionpoJd Jo awWi} PUB S3eP 1B UOIIBLLIOUI B|qefieAR AJIUSLIND 1SOW 34} Uo paseq s podalsiy) 4

%00T X pa1sa] 9jdoad |B10L / S9SED PaULIuo) |B10] :B|NLUIOS SUIMO||04 BY3 BUISN PB1E|INDIED SISIYL 44

"B2JE UB UIYIIM SISED PALUIUOD JO J3QUINU 3Y) PISIX3 3J0J2J3Y1 [|IM S1521 dAIHSOd Jo Jaquunu By "s1s3l anisod ajdiijnw pitA Aew snyy pue ‘s3sa3 ajdinw odiapun Aew uoisedd’o

4ans YaIes Uo Pa3Id||0 s2|dLIES "SUOISEII0 I2UIBYIP 2d1}NL U0 Pa1sa) 3q Aew u0siad |BNPIAIPUL UE (910N "%00T X S1S3L |BI0L / S1591 2A1ISOd [R10] (BINWIO) BUIMO]|0) 2yl BUISN PaleINd|ed S| Syl 4
120z ‘7z Aenigad ‘yieaH jo Ausiully ourIQ ‘(soiAjeuy [ensIA SyS) Hoday Bunsal 6T-AIAOD 31epdn 6T-QIAOD BPEUE)D JO JUSWUISA0Y ‘BPBUED SDIISIELS 182.N0S eleq

S1OL3S1Q '8
0z Atenigay %60 90'TE ¥82'€9 %0 206'L8 S6LVLT Aingpns yijeaH a1gnd
0z Aenigad %60 L68'8C 59191 %0 vESTS S8L°LSY OLIBIUQ UJ3ISEIYLION
0z Aenigay %E'T T€6'6C £75'8€T %S0 £58'T8 967099 OLIEIUQ UIBYLION
0z Aenigay %E'L v29'LT 60L'6V0"Y %T'E LVT'Y9 €08'8TY'6 oLeQ
Tz Aenigag a|qe|ieny 10N 3|qelleAy ION | 9|qe|leAy 10N | 3|qe(ieAy 10N 090€9 SEL'E0L'ET epeue)

‘uononpoid JO AWl pue 1ep Je LOITEULIoU| dqejieAr AJJUR1IND 1S0W 3yl Uo paseq st Lodalsiyy 4

uonejndod 8y} U} SISED (PAA[OSBIUN) BAIIIE JO DI JUDLIND DY) S| IUI|BAINY 44 DWapued syi Jo SuluuiBaq 3y} 30UIS PRLINIJ0 SARY SISED MU YDIYM 1B 311 33 S| BDUSPIdUL SAIIEINWND ,

Jun YyieaH Sutweysiwil “Hun yieaH suidnolod ‘s1913sid g AIngpns YijeaH a1jgnd ‘Hun YijeaH 1911siq punos Avied Aeg yuoN ‘YijesH d1jqnd ewo3)y ‘Hurn yieaH 1oMisiag Aeg sapuny)

UUN YI[ESH UISISOMULION ‘@seqeiep (SIHdI) WwalsAs UolleLwIoju| YeaH dljgnd patesdaiu) ‘s1epdn 6T-AIAOD HOW OLEBIUQ ‘31epdn 6T-QIAOD BPRUE) JO JUSLUUISAOY ‘BPEUE] SJISIIE)S 1824n0S eleQ

‘.

$1213s51Q '8 AIngpng

Tz Meniga4 %1°C [4" %656 6SS T'et 1724 g6 €85 yilesH dljqnd
olBQ

6T Aenigay %0°€ 1374 %Y 6 8GET eVl 08 | WVAY4 8EV'T U.191seayioN
6T AMeniga4 %E"C TL %8°L8 99/°C 158°14 98¢ '56¢€ 1St'e OliejuQ uwIsyloN
Tz Menigay %E'C 7L89 %5796 608'€8¢ S'0L GEEDT 7900 YrT'v6C oueo
Tz Aenigay %9°C ¥£9'1C %€ 96 LLT'YI8 5'€8 SLETE L'6vT'T 759's¥8 epeue)

Asewiwns ases gT-qQIAOD [BUOISAY ‘9 I1AVL



2/23/2021 Public Health Sudbury & Districts - February 22, 2021: COVID-19 Vaccine Bulletin

® Public Health
Santé publigue
SUDBURY & DISTRICTS

February 22, 2021: COVID-19 Vaccine Bulletin

Date: February 22, 2021

Public Health Sudbury & Districts continues to lead the COVID-19 vaccination program, organizing and working
with many others to ensure its success. The unwavering and guiding commitment of all those involved is to get
“vaccines into arms” as quickly as possible. The confirmation of more vaccine shipments on the way, combined
with recent details from the province on priority group sequencing_(https://covid-19.ontario.ca/getting-covid-19-

vaccine-ontario#phase-1), mean that Public Health will soon be able to share more concrete plans about clinic
locations, eligible groups, how to book appointments and much more. With less than 1% of our total eligible
population immunized so far, we have a long way to go—but as we know, every journey begins with a first step.
Public Health thanks everyone for their patience and continued commitment to important public health
measures (https://www.phsd.ca/health-topics-programs/diseases-infections/coronavirus/covid-safety/) to
prevent the spread of COVID-19.

This edition of the COVID-18 Vaccine Bulletin (https://www.phsd.ca/health-topics-programs/vaccines-
immunizations/coronavirus-covid-19-vaccine/covid-19-vaccine-bulletin/), highlights information on sequencing of
Phase One priority groups, a summary of the vaccine program rollout, Pfizer-BioNTech update, and clinic
planning across the Sudbury and Manitoulin catchment area.

Sequencing of Phase One priority groups

With the expected gradual increase in Ontario’s COVID-19 vaccine supply, the Ministry of Health recently
communicated priority sequencing for the vaccination program over the coming weeks.

The following immediate priority for first-dose vaccination continue to be:

= Staff and essential caregivers in long-term care homes, high-risk retirement homes and First Nations Elder
care homes, including any residents of these settings that have not yet received a first dose of the vaccine.

» Alternative level of care patients in hospitals who have confirmed admission to a long-term care home,
retirement home or other congregate care home for seniors.

» “Highest Priority” health care workers, followed by “Very High Priority” health care workers, as per the
Ministry of Health's guidance on Health Care Worker Prioritization
(http://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/coronavirus/docs/Guidance_for_Prioritizing_ HCW_co
01-08.pdf) (PDF, 979 KB).

= Indigenous adults in northern remote and higher risk communities, including on-reserve and urban
communities.

Next priority for first-dose vaccination once all reasonable steps are taken to complete first-dose vaccinations of
all staff, essential caregivers and residents of long-term care homes, high-risk retirement homes and First
Nations Elder care homes include:

= Adults 80 years of age and older.
https://iwww.phsd.ca/health-topics-programs/vaccines-immunizations/coronavirus-covid-19-vaccine/covid-1 9-vaccine-bulletin/february-22-2021-covid-1...  1/4



2/23/2021 Public Health Sudbury & Districts - February 22, 2021: COVID-18 Vaccine Bulletin

» Staff and caregivers in retirement homes and other congregate care settings for seniors (for example,
assisted living).

= Health care workers in the “High Priority” level (as per the Ministry of Health’s guidance on Health Case
Worker Prioritization).

= All Indigenous adults.

= Adult recipients of chronic home care.

Guidance for prioritizing_health care workers
(http://www.health.gov.on.ca/en/pro/programs/publichealth/coronavirus/docs/Guidance_for_Prioritizing HCW_covid
01-08.pdf) (PDF, 979 KB) for COVID-18 vaccination is outlined in the revised Ministry of Health document,
recognizing that currently demand outstrips supply. Prioritization within this group considers various criteria

such as risk of exposure, patient population’s risk and criticality of the worker’s role and responsibilities.

Phase One vaccine program rollout

Immunizations to date:

To date, 1729 individuals have been immunized through vaccination clinics at all long-term care homes within
Public Health's service area, one high-risk retirement home (Regent Manor), and 6 Elder care homes. This has
resulted in a first dose of the COVID-19 vaccine for all consenting residents of area long-term care and one
high-risk retirement home.

Upcoming plans:
Public Health Sudbury & Districts is working with partners to organize clinics for the next eligible groups in the

sequence. The clinics will be held within seven days of receipt of the vaccine which is anticipated to arrive the
week of February 22, This includes:

= Staff and essential caregivers of long-term care home residents.
» Highest priority health care workers.

= Residents of registered retirement homes.

Depending on the eligible group and location throughout the Public Health Sudbury & Districts catchment area,
clinics will be set up as mass immunization clinic (Sudbury for long-term care home workers and essential
caregivers), hospital-coordinated mini-mass clinics (across catchment area for highest priority health care
workers, and in the districts also for long-term care home workers and essential caregivers), and as mobile
clinics (Sudbury for residents of retirement homes).

An important reminder is that all clinics are by appointment only. For the groups described above and where
possible, individuals are pre-qualified and entered into the booking system to confirm eligibility when they call to

book appointments.

Planning for vaccine that is anticipated to arrive the week of March 1 is underway. Currently the focus is on
working with partners to promote access for recipients who are within urban Indigenous communities and within
First Nations communities. More to come!

https://www.phsd.ca/health-topics-programs/vaccines-immunizations/coronavirus-covid-19-vaccine/covid-1 9-vaccine-bulletin/february-22-2021-covid-1...  2/4



2/23/2021 Public Health Sudbury & Districts - February 22, 2021: COVID-18 Vaccine Bulletin

Pfizer-BioNTech update

On January 27, 2021, the Ministry of Health provided direction to extend the dosing interval for the Pfizer-
BioNTech vaccine. This is in response to the temporarily reduced vaccine availability from the federal
government, uncertainty of supply, as well as the current provincial epidemiology of the pandemic.

The second dose of the Pfizer-BioNTech COVID-19 vaccine will now be administered 35 days after of the first
dose, and no later than 42 days, for all vaccine recipients other than residents of long-term care homes, high-
risk retirement homes and First Nations elder care homes. The dosing interval for residents should be
maintained at 21 to 27 days.

This guidance on dosing interval is aligned with the updated National Advisory Committee on Immunization's
recommendations (https://www.canada.cal/en/public-health/services/immunization/national-advisory-committee-
on-immunization-naci/recommendations-use-covid-18-vaccines.html) on the use of COVID-19 mRNA vaccines.
It is also consistent with the recommendations from the World Health Organization and the Centre for Disease
Control. Updates will be provided as required.

At time of writing, there are no changes to the Modera dosing schedule.

What's next?

With ongoing vaccination efforts across our region, Public Health continues to recruit immunizers, response
assistants, and volunteers to support the rollout of the COVID-19 vaccine. Get involved by visiting the current
opportunities (https://www.phsd.ca/join-us/) section of our website or give us a call at 705.522.9200 (toll-free
1.866.522.9200).

If you a primary care* practitioner willing to participate in the upcoming COVID-19 mass and mobile clinics led
by Public Health Sudbury & Districts, please visit the Primary Care Registry (https.//www.phsd.ca/wp-

content/uploads/2021/02/Primary_Care_Registry.docx) and submit your application. Individuals who register
may be contacted by Public Health Sudbury & Districts to schedule participation in clinics pending availability.

*for the purpose of the registry, primary care is defined as health professionals who have the authority to
administer the COVID-19 vaccine without medical directive (i.e. MDs, NPs, RNs and RPNs, pharmacists,
pharmacist interns, registered pharmacy students or pharmacy technicians).

An important reminder: It is critical to maintain public health measures to slow or limit the spread of COVID-
19. This includes masking, distancing, hand-washing, and staying home as much as possible. These measures
will keep case counts low until the vaccine can protect us. The measures are also critical in preventing a third
wave of infections as we see growing numbers of the highly transmissible variants of concern. Keeping case
numbers low protects lives, our public health and health care systems, our education systems as well as our
economy.

If you have any questions, please contact our call centre at 705.522.9200 (toll-free 1.866.522.9200).

Dr. Penny Sutcliffe, Medical Officer of Health, Public Health Sudbury & Districts

This item was last modified on February 22, 2021

https:/iwww.phsd.ca/health-topics-programs/vaccines-immunizations/coronavirus-covid-19-vaccine/covid-19-vaccine-bulletin/february-22-2021-covid-1...  3/4



2/23/2021 Public Health Sudbury & Districts - February 22, 2021: COVID-19 Vaccine Bulletin

Sudbury Chapleau Sudbury East Espanola Manitoulin Island
705.522.9200 705.860.9200 705.222.9201 705.222.9202 705.370.9200
Toll-free

1.866.522.9200

https://imww.phsd.ca/health-topics-programs/vaccines-immunizations/coronavirus-covid-19-vaccine/covid-1 g-vaccine-bulletin/february-22-2021-covid-1... 4/4



Manitoulin Streams

25B Spragge St. Box 238
Manitowaning, ON POP 1NO
Ph: (705) 859-1653

Fax: (705) 859-3010
streams@amtelecom.net
www.manitoulinstreams.com

Feb 20, 2021

15 Old Mill Road
P.0.Box 34
Kagawong, ON
POP 110

RE: Donations and Donor Recognition — Future Kagawong River Rehabilitation Projects
Dear Mayor and Council,

As you are aware, Manitoulin Streams has a stream rehabilitation master plan for the Lower Kagawong
River, and in recent years we have already worked on several of the sites along the river in collaboration
with the Township of Billings. We have additional sites along the river that we hope to conduct
rehabilitation work on in the coming years. One of these is at the mouth of the river where it enters Mudge
Bay.

In addition to the planned ecological rehabilitation at the river mouth site, we have recently been
considering establishing an angling platform in this area, complete with educational/interpretive
information. We may be fortunate enough to receive some external funding for this venture, but we will
also need to contribute money ourselves. As a non-profit organization, we have limited options for raising
funds. One method available to us is to create a donor recognition plaque on the angling and interpretive
platform if/when we are able to undertake this project.

Since this installation would be on Billings municipal property, and would be undertaken in collaboration
with the Township, we are asking Council for permission to install a donor recognition type plaque or
display. Knowing that this is acceptable to Council will allow us to proceed with fund-raising related to this
project, positioning us to implement it when the timing is right.

On behalf of Manitoulin Streams, | thank you for your consideration of this request.

Sincerely,

e <k / 2



Seija Deschenes
Project Coordinator Manitoulin Streams Improvement Association



Kathy McDonald

From: Theresa at Manitoulin Planning Board <mpbcarlisle@bellnet.ca>

Sent: Thursday, February 11, 2021 10:49 AM

To: Silvio Berti; Ruth Frawley; 'Alton Hobbs'; Kathy McDonald; scarr@gorebay.ca; 'Patsy
Gilchrist'; brentstdenis@gmail.com; clerk@gordonbarrieisland.ca

Cc: Dan Osborne; Eric Russell; lan Anderson; lan Anderson; Ken Noland; Lee Hayden;
Ihayden@gordonbarrieisland.ca; mcdowellfarms; Richard Stephens; Robert Brown

Subject: OP Reserve Funds

Good Morning,
Subject: Official Plan Reserve Funds

There is approximately $8,000.00 in the OP Reserve, that could be put into another project, as the Official Plan
project has been completed.

We are moving forward with updating the Municipal By-laws and developing a Natural Heritage System this
year.

The general consensus of the Planning Board (November 2018) was that these funds were intended to benefit
all of the Manitoulin Planning Area, including the Unincorporated Townships of Robinson and Dawson. These
funds could be used for costs associated with obtaining extra hard copies of the Official Plan document,

or developing a Natural Heritage System, or updating the Municipal Zoning By-laws.

As it is Budget time, it may be considered appropriate to move these funds into a new project?

| would appreciate it if you would discuss this to your next Municipal Council Meeting and let me know
Council's opinion/thoughts of moving the funds to a new project.

Thank you.

Thereso

Theresa Carlisle,

Secretary Treasurer

Manitoulin Planning Board

Harbour Centre

40 Water Street, Unit 1

P.O. Box 240

Gore Bay ON POP 1HO

TEL: 705-282-2237

FAX: 705-282-3142

This communication and any attachments may contain confidential information for the sole use of the intended
recipient(s). Any unauthorized use, disclosure, viewing, copying, alteration, or distribution of, or reliance on this
message is strictly prohibited. If you have received this message in error, or you are not an authorized recipient,
please notify the sender immediately by replying to this message, delete this message and all copies from your
e-mail system and destroy any printed copies.



2/22/2021

AH. Association of

Municipalities Ontario

Home /

Registration

Delegate Virtual Package:
Full Conference

This package includes:

* Access to all scheduled conference
educational programming on Monday,
Tuesday and Wednesday

* Access to all scheduled conference
networking events

e Access to delegation meetings with the

Province

https://www.amo.on.calregistration

Registration | AMO

AMO Virtual
2021 AGM and
Conference
AUGUST 15 -
18, 2021
HOSTED BY
THE CITY OF
LONDON

If you require a login to
register online, please

email amo@amo.on.ca

Delegate Virtual Package:
Full Conference Rates

Early Bird

Rates are

Regular

only valid

until Friday,
Apnl 30, 2021

at 4:00 AV.

Member: $600.00 $675.00

1/2



2/22/2021 Registration | AMO

* Access to view dl the presentations post- Non- $750.00 $850.00
Conference for 30 days Member. |
*Non- $400.00 $400.00
Member
Students:

* Please nod that individuabrgistations povide accessa the vitual conérence br the egistant only
* To be eligibledr a non member studemte, avalid student identification danust be pvided athe time ofegistation. The

studentate is opend full-time secondpand pst-seconday studens.

Please Note

« A confirmation notice wil be sent to the DELEGATE e-mail for all registration, modifications
or cancellations. Review your confirmation carefully for accuracy.

o Payments by cheque must be postmarked before April 30, 2021 in order to receive early bird
pricing. Registrations received after April 30, 2021 at 4:00 pmwil be processed at the
regular rate.

« All cancellations must be submitted in wiiting to the Association of Municipalities of Ontario
via email at events@amo.on.ca. Cancellations received prior to 4:00 pm ET, July 5, 2021 wil
be eligible for a refund less $95.00 plus HST) for members and $120.00 fplus HST) for non-
members administration fee. Cancellations made after 4:00 pmare non-refundable. An
alternate attendee name may be substituted at any time.

 Registration forms that are not complete wil not be processed, please ensure the details you
have provided are correct and complete.

* Registration inquiries can be directed to events@amo.on.ca or by calling 416.971.9856 x315.

City of London images @ 2021 City of London

CONTACT

AMO Events and Training
events@amao.on.ca

T 416.971.9856

TF 1.877.426.6527

https://www.amo.on.ca/registration 212



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF BILLINGS

BY-LAW 2021 - 08

BEING A BY-LAW TO UPDATE EMPLOYEE SALARY RANGES

WHEREAS Council of the Corporation of the Township of Blllings established a salary grid through By-law
2018-40; and,

WHEREAS employee positions have been changed since the passing of By-law 2018-40 and Council
deems it appropriate to update the salary grid accordingly;

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Billings hereby enacts as follows:

L

2.

That Schedule “A” forms part of this by-law;

That employee remuneration shall be paid in accordance with the salary range grids set out in
Schedule “A”, as determined by Council;

That the salary range grid set out in Schedule “A” shall be increased each year, effective January
1, by the November Ontario Consumer Price Index — All ltems for the previous calendar year;

That employees shall progress one step up the salary grid set out in Schedule “A” six months
after their hire date, and annually each year thereafter, pending a satisfactory performance
review;

That a ‘red circle rate’ be used to provide salary protection for any employee whose new pay
grid is lower than the current pay grid and that the red circle rate continue until the salary range

meets or exceeds the employee’s red-circled salary;

That any employee that is at the top of their category are eligible to receive a bonus based on
recommendation by the CAO/Clerk.

That the salary grids set out in Schedule “A” shall be reviewed in the second year of each term
of Councll;

That By-law 2018-40 is repealed; and,

That this by-law shall come into force and take effect upon the day of the final passing thereof.

Read a First, Second and Third time and enacted this 2™ day of March, 2021.

lan Anderson, Mayor Kathy McDonald, CAO/Clerk



The Corporation of the Township of Billings

By-law 2021-08

Schedule "A"
Employee Salary Grid*

Position Range Step 1 Step 2 Step 3 Step 4 Step 5 Step 6
CAQ/Clerk $62,172 - 82,675 Salary $62,172 | $66,554 | $70,938 | $75,321 | $79,703 $82,675
Treasurer $52,961 - $67,352 Salary $52,961 | $55,840 | $58,717 $61,596 | $64,474 $67,352

Deputy Clerk/Finance Assistant $47,602 - $55,504 Salary | $47,602 | $49,290 | $50,843 | $52,398 | $53,951 | $55,504
Economic Development Officer $47,193 - $62,924 Salary | $47,193 | $50,339 [ $53,485 | $56,631 | $59,778 $62,924
Administrative Assistant $34,744 - $42,257 Salary $34,744 | $36,705 $38,094 | $39,481 $40,870 | $42,257
Financial Assistant $20.58 -$27.27 Hourly $20.58 $21.92 $23.25 $24.59 $25.92 $27.27

Public Works Superintendent $54,341- $66,240 Salary 454,341 | $56,720 | $59,975 $62,354 | $64,734 | $66,240
Public Works First Operator $47,677 - $59,912 Salary $47,677 | $49,168 | $51,614 $54,061 | $56,509 $59,912
Public Works Operator $39,301 - $48,215 Salary 639,301 | $41,599 | $43,382 $45,165 | $46,947 | $48,215
Landfill Attendant $17.01-520.15 Hourly $17.01 $17.64 $18.27 $18.89 $20.03 $20.15
Casual Labour $16.42 - $20.02 Hourly $16.42 $17.15 $17.86 $18.58 $19.30 $20.02

By-Law Enforcement $18.03-%22.41 Hourly $18.03 $18.91 $19.78 $20.66 $21.53 $22.41
Custodian $15.20 - $17.69 Hourly $15.20 $15.70 $16.19 $16.70 $17.19 $17.69

Marina Manager $18.97-$22.41 Hourly $18.97 $19.66 $20.35 | $21.04 $21.72 $22.41

Student Salary Grid

Position

Hourly Rate

Lead Marina Attendant

Minimum wage + $1.00

Marina Attendant

Minimum wage

Swim Instructor

Minimum wage + $2.00

Swim Assistant

Minimum wage

Public Works

Minimum wage

1-lan-21




THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF BILLINGS

BY-LAW 2021-09
Being a by-law to set tax ratios for the 2021 taxation year
WHEREAS the Municipal Act 5.0. 2001 Chapter 25 Section 308 provides the necessary authority;
and,

WHEREAS it is deemed expedient to establish the following taxation ratios to confirm the
relative share of municipal taxation to be borne by the various property classes;

NOW THEREFORE the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Billings ENACTS AS
FOLLOWS:

That for the 2021 taxation year the following tax ratios shall apply:

Property Classification Tax Ratio
Residential/Farm 1.000
Designated Farm 0.250
Managed Forests 0.250
Commercial 1.000
New Construction Commercial 1.000
Commercial Vacant 0.700
Industrial 1.000
New Construction Industrial 1.000
Industrial Vacant 0.650

That this By-Law shall come into force and take effect on the date of the passing thereof.

Read a first, second, third time and enacted this 2nd day of March, 2021,

lan Anderson, Mayor Kathy McDonald, CAO/Clerk



Township of

BILLINGS

EMPLOYMENT OPPORTUNITY
SEASONAL STUDENT POSITIONS

The Township of Billings is accepting applications for a number of seasonal student positions for the
spring/summer of 2021. Contract length varies from 8-12 weeks depending on position and successful
applicants’ availability.

Marina Assistant {2 @ 35 hours per week)
Public Works Assistant (2 @ 35 hours per week)
Museum Assistant (35 hours per week)
Library Assistant {35 hours per week)

Applications (cover letter and resume) will be accepted by the Municipal Office until March 26, 2021 at
4pm and may be submitted in person, by mail or email. Please direct enquiries and applications to:

kmcdonald@billingstwp.ca
15 Old Mill Road
PO Box 34
Kagawong ON POP 110

Please note that only those applicants selected for an interview will be contacted.
Applicants must meet funding partner eligibility criteria, including age/student status for funded
positions.



Memorandum

To: Council

cc: CAO/Clerk, Treasurer, Economic Development Officer
From: Tiana Mills, Administrative Assistant

Date: 24-02-2021

RE: Canada Healthy Communities Initiative Program

Recommendation

That Council direct staff to complete an application to the Canada Healthy Communities Initiative to create
a new community space at the Sandy Beach (including covered gazebos with seating, benches, swing set,
slide, signage and outdoor workout equipment), and submit the application no later than March 9, 2021.

Background

e This initiative of $31 million will fund small scale infrastructure projects to create safer, more
vibrant and inclusive communities.

¢ The minimum funding amount for projects is $5,000 and the maximum funding amount is
$250,000 for each project.

e The Healthy Communities Initiative supports communities as they create public spaces to respond
to an ongoing need arising from COVID-19 over the next 2 years.

e COVID-19 has brought an influx of tourists to the core of Kagawong (the Bridal Veil Falls Trail
System and the Main Beach/Playground/Pavilion area) that is much greater than we have seen in
previous years.

o Developing a second family friendly location will alieviate crowding in the Kagawong core.

e Purchasing outdoor play and exercise equipment will provide more outdoor options for children,
adults and seniors to stay active while maintaining social distance.

¢ Due to the size constraints at the Main Beach a swing set was not feasible when the new play
equipment was installed, but at the Sandy Beach there will be ample room.

e Based on our preliminary research, the proposed application will be valued at approximately
$85,000.

Considerations
e There is a second intake closing June 25, 2021 where a failed application can be resubmitted, a
new application can be submitted or an additional application may be submitted if the first was
approved.
e The Kagawong Outdoor Rink is also an option however I believe we can make a stronger case in
creating a new community space at the Sandy Beach based on the funding criteria.

As always, I encourage council discussion on this topic and questions of staff.
Respectfully submitted,
Tiana Mills



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF BILLINGS
BY-LAW 2021-10
Being a By-Law to provide for the control of nuisance coyotes

WHEREAS Section 9 of the Municipal Act, 5.0. 2001, c. 25, as amended, provides that a
municipality has the capacity, rights, powers and privileges of a natural person for the purpose
of exercising its authority under this or any other Act;

AND WHEREAS Section 128 of the Municipal Act, 5.0. 2001, c. 25, as amended, provides that a
municipality may prohibit and regulate with respect to public nuisances, including matter that,
in the opinion of Council, are or could become or cause public nuisances;

AND WHEREAS the Council of the CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF BILLINGS deems it
advisable to enact such regulations and to provide compensation, for the taking of nuisance
coyotes to reduce conflicts between such nuisance coyotes and livestock of stockowners in the
Corporation of the Township of Billings;

NOW THEREFORE THAT the Council of the Corporation of the Township of Billings enacts as
follows:

1. THAT THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF BILLINGS shall provide reimbursement
to a licensed trapper or licensed hunter for each coyote that has been taken as a
nuisance animal, subject to the following conditions:

a. The nuisance animal was taken within the boundaries of the Municipality;

b. A completed Coyote Predation Compensation Claim Form has been submitted
to the Municipality;

c. The trapper or hunter shall be currently licensed by the Ministry of Natural
Resources and Forestry and shall provide a valid Small Game or Trapping License
Number;

d. The trapper or hunter must follow all hunting and trapping rules and
regulations;

2. THAT the payment to any licensed trapper or licensed hunter who has met the
regulations and satisfied the requirements of this By-law is included in Schedule A to
this By-law.

3. THAT the process for Coyote Predation Compensation Claim is included in Schedule B to
this By-law.

4, THAT this By-law shall come into full force and effect upon third and final reading.

READ A FIRST, SECOND AND THIRD TIME AND ENACTED this ___ day of , 2021,

lan Anderson, Mayor Kathy McDonald, CAO/Clerk



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF BILLINGS

BY-LAW 2021-10
Schedule ‘A’

The payment to any licensed trapper or licensed hunter who has met the regulations and
satisfied the requirement of this By-law shall be $50.00 of lawful Canadian currency, per coyote
pelt.

The payment will be made during the Municipality’s regular accounts payable process and once
the completed Claim Form has been submitted to the Clerk.

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF BILLINGS will fund the Coyote Predation
Compensation Program up to a maximum limit of $2,000 per calendar year, on a “first come,
first serve” basis.



THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF BILLINGS
BY-LAW 2021-10
Schedule ‘8’
Process for Coyote Predation Compensation Claim

The licensed trapper or licensed hunter must complete Section 1 of the Coyote
Predation Compensation Form. The licensed hunter or licensed trapper must provide
their Small Game or Trapping License Number.

The licensed trapper or licensed hunter will present the coyote to the municipal
designate at the Municipal Landfill, 9490 Highway 540 Kagawong, ON POP 1J0, during its
regularly scheduled hours.

A designated person(s) of the municipality shall mark the peit of the coyote by painting
the right foot red, or direct the claimant to do so under supervision from the designated
person, and complete Section 2 of the Coyote Predation Compensation Form.

The pelt of the coyote will be returned to the licensed trapper or hunter for proper
disposal.

When Sections 1 and 2 of the Coyote Predation Compensation Claim Form have been
completed correctly, the municipal designate will sign the completed form and return it
to the Municipal Clerk for reimbursement to the licensed trapper or licensed hunter.
The Clerk shall keep a record of all Coyote Predation Compensation Claim Forms
Submitted to the Municipality.



Township of

% BILLINGS

THE CORPORATION OF THE TOWNSHIP OF BILLINGS
BY-LAW 2021-10

COYOTE PREDATION COMPENSATION CLAIM FORM

1. Declaration

1, of
Name Mailing Address

declare that | have taken a coyote on Lot , Concession

within the Municipal Boundaries of The Township of Billings on

Date
Signature Date
Small Game or Trapping License Number
2. Municipal Certification
This certifies that coyote carcass(es) has/have been presented to Municipal Staff at

# of Carcasses

and have been marked in accordance with the

Municipal Address

Township of Billings policy by a designated person at the Municipality.

**This certification must be signed by a Municipal Officer no later than 5 days from the
authorization expiry date.

Municipal Designator’s Signature Date

3. Municipal Approval for Payment

Payment for coyote carcass{es) at $50.00 each is hereby approved.
# of Carcasses

Municipal Office Staff Signature Date



TOWNSHIP OF BILLINGS
Parks, Recreation and Wellness Committee
MINUTES
February 22, 2021 Electronic Meeting

Present: Sharon Alkenbrack, Deb Flaxman, Sharon Jackson, Diane Larocque, Andrew Preyde, Shannon
Smith, Kathy McDonald (staff) and Tiana Mills (staff)
Members of the Public

1. Opening
Motion by Deb Flaxman, seconded by Diane Larocque
That the meeting be called to order at 7 p.m. with Chair Jackson presiding.
Carried

2. Approval of the Agenda
Motion by Sharon Alkenbrack, seconded by Diane Larocque
That the agenda for the February 2, 2021 meeting be accepted as presented.

Carried
3. Declaration of Pecuniary Interest
None
4, Adoption of Minutes

Motion by Shannon Smith, seconded by Diana Larocque
That the minutes of the November 23, 2020 meeting be accepted as presented.

Carried
5. Delegations
None
6. Council Report

Committee members received the report.

7. Financial Report
Committee members received the report.

8. Old Business
a) Santa meet and greet update
Approximately 20 kids attended. All letters that were received were answered. Plans for the
meet and greet for 2021 are underway.

b) Outdoor Rink

Andrew Preyde presented a plan to repair the rink at a cost of approximately $28,100 plus a
wish list of $10,700 for a total of $38,800. Andrew stated that he has been seeking pledges and
feels that he can get over $10,000 in donations to the rink.



Motion by Andrew Predye, seconded by Diane Larocque
That a recommendation be made to Council to include $40,000 in the draft 2021 budget for rink
repairs.

Carried

Motion by Shannon Smith, seconded by Deb Flaxman
That a recommendation be made to Council to give permission to the Parks, Recreation and
Wellness committee to fundraise for the rink repairs.

Carried

c) Indoor Walking Program
Postponed until next winter.

d) Walking Route signage costs/inventory
Action item to find locations for the walking route signs.

e) March event
Postponed until next year, due to COVID19.

f) and g) Family Forum date and venue and Senior Forum date and venue
Committee agreed that a survey should be done at community events such as the Easter event
and Wednesday markets, combined with question for both families and seniors.

New Business

a) Budget:

Sharon Jackson presented a budget of $12,200 worth of expenditures. Committee discussion
reduced that to $4200 by eliminating some of the events due to Covid 19 uncertainties for the
remainder of 2021.

Motion by Sharon Alkenbrack, seconded by Deb Flaxman
That a recommendation be given to Council to approve $300 for the Easter Egg Hunt.
Carried

b) Strategic Plan Priorities
Discussion postponed until the next meeting.

c¢) Dog Park Survey
Sharon Jackson found a survey on line that could be used to determine the usage of the dog

park.

d) Newsletter

Sharon Jackson informed the group that the township has a newsletter. The Parks, Recreation
and Wellness events could be included, as well as fundraising events put on facebook and the
website.

e) April Event
Not discussed



10.

11.

12,

13,

14.

15.

f) Volunteer recognition week April 18-24
Sharon Jackson will have a declaration added to the Council agenda to recognize Volunteer
recognition week.

g) Earth Day (April 22) global clean up

Sharon Jackson discussed the “ditch dive” that was held in previous years. Discussion on putting
out garbage cans for smelt season and have them chained to trees, especially where people
stop.

Correspondence
None

Information
None

Notice of Motion
Contained within minutes and to be added to Council agenda

Closed Session
None

Next Meeting March 22, 2021 at 7 p.m.

Adjournment
Motion by Diane Larocque, seconded by Shannon Smith
That this meeting be adjourned at 8:48 p.m.

Carried



TOWNSHIP OF BILLINGS
Economic Development Committee
MINUTES
February 10, 2020, 7:00 pm Electronic Meeting (Zoom Meetings)

PRESENT: Councillor Sharon Alkenbrack (Chair), Suzanne Darlaston, Councillor Sharon Jackson, Diane Larocque, Tracy
Paris
Staff: Todd Gordon, Economic Development Officer; Kathy McDonald, CAO

REGRETS: Rick Rusk

Members of the Public: Yes

1. Opening of Meeting
The meeting was called to order at 7:02 p.m. by the chair.

2. Approval of Agenda
Motion by Diane Larocque; Second by Sharon Jackson:
That the agenda for the February 10, 2021 meeting be accepted as presented. Carried.

3. Disclosure of Pecuniary Interest
None

4. Adoption of Minutes
Motion by Sharon Jackson; Second by Tracy Paris:
That the minutes of the December 9, 2020 meeting be accepted as presented. Carried.

5. Delegations:
None

6. Council Update Report
Chair Alkenbrack provided a brief overview of the previous Council meeting (Regular Council meeting of
February 02, 2021).

7. Financial Report
e The EDO provided a brief update: No EDC-related revenue or expenditures since the previous meeting
(December 9, 2020).

8. Old Business
a) Community Planters/Benches — Discussion
The Edo provided an update on benches and planters. A design has been chosen that maximized the use of the
material at hand. Public Works staff, who have had more time than normal because of the very mild winter,
have completed 9 units to-date — planters, benches and/or various combinations. The committee asked for
dimensions of the planter boxes (interior) for future reference. Some discussion of the need to line the boxes
with landscape cloth; Discussion of soil/organic material needs.

b) Billings Promotion Strategy — Discussion

Given the passage of time and the lack of a January meeting, recommended a minor change of direction on this
topic: continuing to think about and discuss a bigger picture “strategy” for township awareness and promotion,
but in the meantime, considering re-vamping and updating the amenity/site/business map brochure as
developed by Kendra Edwards Design, and last updated in 2018. This would provide an updated hard-copy
promotion item for 2021 — and effort could be made to harmonize the material in this document with web and
social meeting promotional material. The committee agreed to this and all agreed to consider updates/revisions
to the existing brochure/map document. The EDO was asked to contact Kendra Edwards regarding some
design/revision work. The CAO reminded the EDO and the committee that a recommendation on this matter,
including direction for the EDO to engage with Kendra Edwards Design and some consideration of expenditure
on this item in the 2021 budget.



10.

11.

12.

13.
14,

¢} Community Development — “The New Local” - Discussion

The committee had a brief discussion of Principle 3: “Connectivity” from The New Local community
development program. The committee discussed ways of learning from community — ours and others, and ways
of increasing connectivity through improved learning as well as the ongoing challenge of staying connected
locally while operating in a truly globalized environment.

d) Jabbawong Story-Telling Festival — Discussion
The parameters have not changed, although everyone is concerned about the impact of the ongoing pandemic.
The committee acknowledged that the festival needs more story-tellers for children.

e} Social Media Workshop — Discussion

The situation for this event is very much like that of the story-telling festival: It is still in the works, but much
depends on the status of the COVID-19 pandemic. The chair is still attempting to confirm a facilitator. Timing:
still looking at late winter (February?) before businesspeople are engaged in preparing for the summer season.
The committee will continue planning for this event in collaboration with municipal staff.

f) Community Planters/Benches - Discussion

The Chair and another member achieved an informal survey of the existing planters and benches and
determined that most were still functional. However, given that there is a good supply of material available for
repurposing from an earlier project, it is likely that many existing units can be replaced, as well as new ones
constructed for the SCB and Old Mill area. Staff are coming up with designs that will make best use of the
existing material.

g) Old Church on the Hill - Discussion
A brief discussion about possible uses for the property, with recognition that there are limitations, and that the
review/feasibility process is just getting underway.

h) Digital Business Directory - Discussion

This was the final discussion on the topic, at least for the foreseeable future — not because it is not a valid idea,
but because the committee recognized all the variables inherent in and the limitations that EDC faces in
attempting to deal with something probably best handled on an island-wide scale. Ultimately the currency of
business information (operating/opening hours, for example). More detail on the considerations of this topic is
available in previous monthly minutes.

New Business
None

Correspondence
None

Information
None

Recommendations to Council
None

Next Meeting: January 13, 2021, 7:00 pm, Zoom Meetings

Adjournment: The meeting was adjourned at 8:08 p.m. on a motion by Diane Larocque.



Phase Il Environmental Site Assessment

The Township of Billings c/o EXP Infrastructure

Type of Document:
Report

Project Name:
Main Street Reconstruction
Kagawong, Ontario

Project Number:
SUD-00020031-IC

Prepared By:

Perry Sarvas, P.Geo.

Senior Hydrogeologist, Earth and Environmental Services
EXP

885 Regent Street

Sudbury, Ontario, P3E 5M4

t: +1.705.674.9681

f: +1.705.674.5583

Date Submitted:
2021-02-17

885 Regent Street | Sudbury, Ontario, P3E 5M4 | Canada
t: +1.705.674.9681 | f: +1.705.674.5583 | exp.com



EXP Services Inc.

Project Number: SUD-00020031-IC
Date: February 17, 2021

Table of Contents

I 11 e To [ et o o ] B S R 2
L1 ODJOCLIVE 1eerverererreiisretriartesensieessseesssessanesbessesbeasssseeba e sbaseasberbe s e she e saabae e b e s e sEan e s Eaan R et rn et s anennpe e r e e rees 2
A =3 B TR oo o TSP 2

2. Background and Scope Of INVESTIZATION ..cc.vvviiiiiiiiicii i b bbb e 2
2.1 Site AsSeSSMENT Criteria......cocciiiiiiiiirir it e b e s e s s ane s 3

K T Ve [T £ O O ST ORP 5
3.1 SOil CONAILIONS...ccciiiiiirei e s b s 5
3.2  Soil Qualityssaaiisanmsimmmmi e s e R R R R 5
3.3 Groundwater CONItION .......ccevceeeerrivnnsiemresiess s s s e ressassas s st e seasrassansstsnnssasarensssngssassnenssresyen 5
3.4 Groundwater QUATIEY ..c.cceriiivieecieceer it sereessreseressees e s e seseses seressneeseressesabsssree s b s b e s b e b e be e b e aeann 6
3.5 DISCUSSION...iiiiiicrirtie sttt a e sr e e e s s e e b e s b e s Renh on 6

B, CONCIUSIONS ...ueeeitiiintesieriesieseses e seesme e saensesa e srebs e et s ae b e e e e b se e e e n e e e S hae s ne e b e e eE e e b e sate s e s eat b s e b ancat e 6

5. ReCOMMENMAtioNS..... ocuumasuinsuscsioassmsisaiaeisssssi s i s s biim i s s i s e s s s 7

ST I 01 0T LU 7

7. ClOSUIE ssssunsvussusasnsmnasosessasysnesssssaess s s 63 53055 45580450 0851580 H4EI4 ST H RS0 S4 PP HO T FSaR S50 0 4 s S SIS AR ST SRS A 00 8

APPENIX A = DIrAWINES ceuveeerireeierreriteeserresiieessssssasassesssessasstassssssasssihssorsssssasessassssasssstsssitenssnssesitaniisssnasasaress 9

APPENTIX B — BOIEN0IE LOGS .uvereeiiiiirirriiiiiiieeerireereessiiereresvssesssssneessessnsesssnsssasesssesssnnessassssnnssssaressessnsens sennas 10

Appendix C — Analytical Results Tables and Certificates of Analysis........cccovriiiiiiiinniminiio. 11

“exp.



EXP Services Inc. 2

Project Number: SUD-00020031-IC
Date: February 17, 2021
1. Introduction

EXP Services Inc. (EXP) was retained by the Township of Billings to complete a Phase [l Environmental Site Assessment (ESA) of
a portion of the Main Street reconstruction project in Kagawong, Ontario (“the Site”).

1.1 Objective

EXP understands that this Phase Il ESA was undertaken to address potential soil and groundwater within the road right of way
for the road project. The potential contamination was encountered during field investigations of a geotechnical engineering
evaluation at the property.

1.2 Site Description

The subject Site is located along Main Street, as shown on Drawing A-1. The St. John the Evangelist church property and the
Kagawong marina are northeast adjacent, and the post office property is northwest adjacent. At the time of the investigation,
the subject Site mainly contained the roadbed of Main Street with commercial and institutional properties on the east and
west sides of the road.

Mudge Bay, on the North Channel of Lake Huron, is located approximately 20 m east of the investigation area.

2. Background and Scope of Investigation

During the geotechnical engineering evaluation field investigations, visual evidence of potential petroleum hydrocarbon
contamination was observed in the soils beneath the Site. Subsequent investigation provided photographic evidence of a fuel
pump (for gasoline and/or diesel) at the location of the former Havelock Hotel at the southwest corner of the Site. No further
information was available on when the fuel pump was at this location, when it was removed and whether any contamination
remediation was completed.

Based on this observation, EXP recommended completion of a Phase Il ESA to investigation the presence of both soil and
groundwater contamination.

The scope of work for the Phase Il ESA consisted of the following:
e Completion of four (4) environmental boreholes beneth the Site;
¢ Installation of monitoring wells in all of the boreholes;
e Collect soil samples from the boreholes and submit for analysis of the contaminants of concern;
e Submit the soil samples from all four boreholes for further analysis of pH;

s  Collect representative groundwater samples from the monitoring wells and submit for analysis of the contaminants of
concern;

e Compare analytical results against applicable criteria; and,

e Prepare a report to document the findings.

“ex P‘



EXP Services Inc. 3

Project Number: SUD-00020031-IC
Date: February 17, 2021

EXP personnel who conducted assessment work for this project included Phil Laframboise and Jeff Newman (field technicians),
Perry Sarvas (author of the report) and Yves Beauparlant (reviewer of the report).

The borehole drilling was conducted by Landcore Drilling, under the supervision of EXP field technician Phil Laframboise on
January 21, 2021, Prior to the commencement of drilling activities, One Call Services inspected the drill locations to identify the
locations of underground utilities. The approximate locations of the environmental boreholes are shown on Drawing A-1 in
Appendix A.

The objectives of these environmental boreholes were to identify and delineate potential contamination of soil beneath the
Site in the vicinity of the potentially contaminated soils identified from the geotechnical investigation. Soil samples were
collected from four boreholes (BH-101, BH-102, BH-103 and BH-104).

All boreholes had monitoring wells installed after completion. The wells were constructed of 50 mm Schedule 40 PVC screen
and riser, The monitoring wells consisted of a screen and riser, and a flush mounted protective casing at ground surface. The
well screen has a slot size of approximately 0.25 mm (slot 10} and was sealed at the base with a PVC end cap. The annular
space around the well screen was backfilled with silica sand to an average height of 0.6 meters above the top of the screen.
The sand pack was extended slightly above the screen to allow for compaction of the sand pack and expansion of the overlying
well seal. A granular bentonite (‘Hole Plug’) seal was placed in the borehole annulus from the top of the sand pack to
approximately ground surface. Lubricants and adhesives were not used when constructing the monitoring well.

Soil samples were collected in general accordance with accepted best management practices and guidelines. Disposable nitrile
gloves (i.e., one pair per sample) were used during sample handling. A portion of each soil sample was placed in a sealed “zip-
lock” plastic bag and allowed to reach ambient temperature prior to field screening with a combustible vapour meter. The
combustible meter was calibrated with hexane reference gas prior to use. The measurements were made by inserting the
instrument’s probe into the plastic bag while manipulating the sample to ensure volatilization of the soil gases. These readings
provide a real-time indication of the relative concentration of combustible vapours encountered in the soil samples and are
documented in the borehole logs in Appendix B.

A total of eight (8) soil samples were submitted for laboratory analysis; two each from each of the four boreholes. One sample
each (BH-101, BH-102, BH-103 and BH-104) was submitted base on a high combustible vapour reading. One sample each (BH-
101b, BH-102b, BH-103b and BH-104b) was collected from the bottom interval of each borehole (3.8 m to 4.6 m below ground
surface) to assist vertical delineation of soil contamination. The selected soil samples were submitted to SGS Laboratories for
analysis of targeted parameters petroleum hydrocarbons fractions F1 to F4 (PHC (F1-F4)) and volatile organic compounds
including the petroleum compounds benzene, toluene, ethylbenzene and xylenes (BTEX). The soil analytical results are
presented in the laboratory Certificates of Analysis for the tested soil samples in Appendix C.

Prior to groundwater sampling, headspace vapour levels within the monitoring wells were measured and recorded. Each welt
was then sampled using low-flow sampling technique with a Geotech Geopump. The wells were purged to remove stagnant
groundwater and allowed to recover prior to sample collection. The purge water was also continuously monitored for visual
and olfactory evidence of petroleum impact (sheen and odour).

The groundwater samples were collected into laboratory-provided sample bottles and submitted to SGS Laboratories for
analysis of BTEX and PHC F1 to F4.

2.1 Site Assessment Criteria

The assessment criteria, Site Condition Standards {SCS), applicable to a given site in Ontario are established under subsection
168.4(1) of the Environmental Protection Act. Tabulated generic criteria are provided in “Soil, Ground Water and Sediment
Standards for Use Under Part XV.1 of the Environmental Protection Act” (“the SGWS Standards”), Ministry of the Environment
and Climate Change {MOECC), April 15, 2011. These criteria, which came into force on July 1, 2011, are based on site
sensitivity (sensitive or non-sensitive), groundwater use (potable or non-potable), property use (residential, parkland,

Fex .



EXP Services Inc. 4

Project Number: SUD-00020031-IC
Date: February 17, 2021

institutional, commercial, industrial, community and agricultural/other), soil type {coarse or medium/fine textured) and
restoration depth (full or stratified restoration). In addition, site specific criteria may be established on the basis of the findings
of a Risk Assessment carried out in accordance with Part IX and Schedule C of Ontario Regulation 153/04 (O.Reg. 153/04) as
amended by Ontario Regulation 511/09 (O.Reg. 511/09).

The SGWS Standards specify SCS for soil, groundwater and sediment that are tabulated as follows:

Table 1- applicable to sites where background concentrations must be met (full depth) such as sensitive sites
where site-specific criteria have not been derived,;

Table 2 - applicable to sites with potable groundwater and full depth restoration;
Table 3 - applicable to sites with non-potable groundwater and full depth restoration;
Table 4 - applicable to sites with potable groundwater and stratified restoration;
Table 5- applicable to sites with non-potable groundwater and stratified restoration;

Table 6 - applicable to sites with less than 2 m of overburden above bedrock in a potable groundwater
condition;

Table 7 - applicable to sites with less than 2 m of overburden above bedrock in non-potable groundwater
condition;

Table 8 - applicable to sites within 30 m of a water body in a potable groundwater condition;
Table 9 - applicable to sites within 30 m of a water body in a non-potable groundwater condition

For assessment purposes, EXP selected the Table 9 SCS for a Non-Potable Groundwater Scenario and the property within 30 m
of a water body. The selection of this category was based on the following factors:

e The Site was not considered a sensitive site because pH in soil samples from the Site was greater than 5 and less than
9, and the Site was not within 30 m of a known area of natural significance;

e The Site was considered to be within 30 m of Lake Huron;

e The Site and adjacent properties were assumed to the serviced by a municipal water supply, so groundwater beneath
the Site was considered to be non-potable;

e The Site was located in an area of commercial, institution, residential and community use and it is assumed that there
is no intention to change the designated land use;

e Based on results of borehole drilling, less than one-third of the Site is assumed to be underlain by soil equal to or less
than 2 m in depth beneath the soil surface; and,

e There was no intention to carry out a stratified restoration at the Site.

P

“exp.



EXP Services Inc. 5

Project Number: SUD-00020031-IC
Date: February 17, 2021

3. Findings
3.1 Soil Conditions

Soils encountered in the boreholes are described in the borehole logs in Appendix B. In general, the boreholes encountered
surface treatment asphalt overlying cohesionless fill materials and native sand.

The surface treatment asphalt was encountered at the surface of BH-101, BH-102 and BH-103 and was approximately 50 mm
thick.

Underlying the surface treatment was a sand fill base layer ranging from 0.7 m to 1.4 m thick. The sand fill was with gravel and
with silt and was dark brown in colour, and moist. A petroleum hydrocarbon odour was recorded in the fill in BH-101 but not
in the fill from the other boreholes.

Below the silty sand fill was sand fill that extended from 3.8 m to 4.6 m depth. The sand fill contained some silt and trace to
some gravel and was brown to black stained in colour. The fill was moist becoming wet with depth. A petroleum hydrocarbon
odour was recorded in this unit in BH-101 and BH-102 but not in the fill from the other boreholes.

Below the sand fill, a native sand and gravel unit was encountered in only BH-102 at depth of 3.8 m extending to 4.6 m. The
sand was with gravel and some silt and was brown in colour and wet. Of note, the visual review of the sand sample suggests
that it may possibly be fill. A petroleum hydrocarbon odour was recorded in this unit.

3.2 Soil Quality

Table 3.1 in Appendix C summarizes analytical results for soil samples. The Table 9 SCS for PHC F1 and F2, hexane and the
BTEX compounds ethylbenzene, toluene and xylenes were exceeded in soil samples from BH-101, and BH-102. The Table 9 SCS
for PHC F1 and F2 and for xylenes were exceeded in soil sample from BH-103. The Table 9 SCS for xylenes was exceeded in soil
sample from BH-104. The Table 9 SCS not exceeded in any of the other soil samples. The soil analytical results are presented in
the laboratory Certificates of Analysis for the tested soil samples in Appendix C.

Strong hydrocarbon odours were noted in soil samples obtained within boreholes BH-101 and BH-102. Results in the deeper
samples (BH-101b and BH-102b) show significantly lower contaminant levels that the higher samples. This indicated that most
of the soil contamination is within the upper part of fill materials. However, the contaminant levels in BH-101b and BH-102b
indicate that soil contamination extends deeper that 4.6 m below ground surface.

The soil contamination is consistent with the release of gasoline or diesel at the Site at a location near the former fuel pump at
the Havelock Hotel.

3.3 Groundwater Condition

Groundwater was encountered in all of the monitoring wells. Static water levels measured on January 21, 2021 showed depths
to groundwater ranging from 1.98 m to 2.41 m below ground surface.

Groundwater elevations ranged from 97.78 m (BH-101) to 97.67 m (BH-104). Predictably, the groundwater elevations indicate
that lateral groundwater flow beneath the Site is to the north-northeast toward Mudge Bay. Drawing A-2 shows groundwater
elevations and predicted groundwater flow direction.

.1‘ ’i

“exp.



EXP Services Inc. 6

Project Number: SUD-00020031-IC
Date: February 17, 2021

3.4 Groundwater Quality

Table 3.2 in Appendix C summarizes analytical results for groundwater samples. The Table 9 SCS for PHC F1 and F2 were
exceeded in groundwater samples from BH-101, BH-102 and BH-103. The Table 9 SCS for hexane, ethylbenzene, toluene and
xylenes were exceeded in groundwater samples from BH-101 and the Table 9 SCS for hexane was exceeded in the
groundwater sample from BH-103. No Table 9 SCS was exceeded in the groundwater sample from BH-104. The groundwater
analytical results are presented in the laboratory Certificates of Analysis in Appendix C.

The results indicate that groundwater from BH-101 shows the highest levels of contamination, although both BH-102 and BH-
103 also have significant groundwater contamination. The groundwater contamination is consistent with the release of
gasoline or diesel at the Site at a location near the former fuel pump at the Havelock Hotel.

3.5 Discussion

Results include the presence of both soil and groundwater contamination beneath the Site. The contaminants are identified as
PHC F1 and F2, ethylbenzene, toluene, xylenes and n-hexane. Among other uses, n-hexane is a common additive to gasoline.
Its presence is ascribed to the presence of gasoline contamination.

Highest levels of soil and groundwater contamination appear to be centred in the roadbed of Main Street. The highest level of
soil contamination was encountered in the shallow soil sample (2.3 m — 3.0 m below ground surface) from BH-102. The highest
level of groundwater contamination was encountered in BH-101. Both boreholes are downgradient of the former Havelock
Hotel property.

The soil and groundwater contamination has not been fully delineated both laterally and vertically. Samples from BH-104
recorded only a low level of xylene contamination in soil and no groundwater contamination. However, significant soil and
groundwater contamination in BH-101, BH-102 and BH-103 indicates the contamination needs to be further delineated to the
north, south, east and west. Also, contamination in soil samples BH-101b and BH-102b indicates that soil contamination needs
to be further delineated beyond a depth of 4.6 m.

The soil and groundwater contamination found at the Site is consistent with the release of gasoline or diesel at the location of
the former fuel pump at the Havelock Hotel. However, other potential sources cannot be discounted. A Phase | ESA was not
completed and other potential contaminating activities were not documented. Other potential sources include past spills and
undocumented underground or above-ground storage tanks (USTs and ASTs) on adjacent properties.

4. Conclusions

EXP completed a Phase Il ESA at the property located at the Main Street reconstruction site in Kagawong, Ontario. The purpose
of the Phase Il ESA was to address potential environmental issues from potential soil contamination that were identified from a
geotechnical investigation completed in January 2021. Conclusions from findings of the Phase Ii ESA are:

e The Site is generally underlain by sand fill material over native sand soils.

e Groundwater was encountered in soils beneath the Site in all four of the monitoring wells installed at the Site.
Groundwater was measured a static level from 1.98 m to 2.41 m below ground surface. Groundwater elevations were
estimated to range from 97.78 m to 97.67 m and indicate that lateral groundwater flow beneath the Site is to the

north-northeast toward Mudge Bay.

e  For assessment purposes, EXP selected MECP Table 9 Site Condition Standards (SCS) for property with a non-potable
groundwater condition and within 30 m of a water body.

“exp.



EXP Services Inc. 7

Project Number: SUD-00020031-IC
Date: February 17, 2021

e Results indicated exceedances of Table 9 SCS for PHC F1 and F2, hexane, ethylbenzene, toluene and xylenes in the soil
sample from the Site. Table 9 SCS exceedances were recorded in soils from all four boreholes.

e Results indicated exceedances of Table 2 SCS for PHC F1 and F2, hexane, ethylbenzene, toluene and xylenes were
exceeded in groundwater samples from the Site. Table 9 SCS exceedances were recorded in groundwater samples

from all monitoring wells except for BH-104.

e The Table 9 SCS were not exceeded for any other parameter in the soil and groundwater samples submitted for
analysis.

e The results confirm the potential presence of soil and groundwater contamination beneath the Site.

The extent of soil and groundwater contamination has not been delineated laterally or vertically.

5. Recommendations

Based on the Phase Il ESA findings, further activities are recommended to address the potential soil and groundwater
contamination at the Site. EXP recommends development of a workplan to excavate contaminated soils from impacted areas
of the reconstruction project and to complete confirmatory soil sampling of the excavated areas to determine the
effectiveness of contaminated soil excavations. Impacted soils should be managed per the provincial On-Site and Excess Soil
Management Regulation (Ontario Regulation 406/19). Based on known conditions and construction requirements, it is
assumed that less than 1,000 m? of impacted soils would need to be managed. It is assumed that excess soil {soil no longer
required for construction or deemed too contaminated for reuse) would be transported for disposal at a nearby landfill site. It
should be assumed that at least one representative sample of excavated soil would be submitted for analysis of PHC (F1-F2),
BTEX and PAH compounds. At least two soil samples (including a representative sample and a blind duplicate of this sample)
would need to be submitted for metals and inorganics and three samples would need to be submitted for landfill TCLP
analysis.

Groundwater encountered at the Site during reconstruction should not be discharged directly to the natural environment. The
groundwater should be captured in a waterproof container and managed appropriately. Options include:

e Groundwater could be immediately removed from the Site by a licenced contractor for disposal at a licenced facility.

e Representative groundwater samples from the containers could be tested for contaminant levels. Based on results,
groundwater could either be discharged directly on-Site to the natural environment or removed from the Site by a
licenced contractor for disposal at a licenced facility.

e Alicenced contractor could be retained to operate a groundwater pump-and-treatment system that would allow
direct discharge on-Site to the natural environment
6. Limitations
This report has been prepared and the work referred to in this report has been undertaken by EXP Services Inc. (EXP) for the
Township of Billings. It is intended for the sole and exclusive use of the Township of Billings. Any use, reliance on or decision
made by any person other than the Township of Billings based on this report is the sole responsibility of such other person.
The Township of Billings and EXP make no representation or warranty to any other person with regard to this report and the

work referred to in this report and they accept no duty of care to any other person or any liability or responsibility whatsoever
for any losses, expenses, damages, fines, penalties, or other harm that may be suffered or incurred by any other person as a

“exp.



EXP Services Inc. 8

Project Number: SUD-00020031-IC
Date: February 17, 2021

result of the use of, reliance on, any decision made or any action taken based on this report or the work referred to in this
report.

The investigation undertaken by EXP with respect to this report and any conclusions or recommendations made in this report
reflect EXP’s judgement based on the site conditions ohserved at the time of the site inspection on the date(s) set out in this
report and on information available at the time of preparation of this report. This report has been prepared for specific
application to this site and it is based, in part, upon visual observation of the site, subsurface investigation at discrete locations
and depths, and specific analysis of specific chemical parameters and materials during a specific time interval, all as described
in this report. Unless otherwise stated, the findings cannot be extended to previous or future site conditions, portions of the
site which were unavailable for direct investigation, subsurface locations which were not investigated directly, or chemical
parameters, materials or analysis which were not addressed. Substances other than those addressed by the investigation
described in this report may exist within the site, substances addressed by the investigation may exist in areas of the site not
investigated and concentrations of substances addressed which are different than those reported may exist in areas other than
the locations from which the samples were taken.

If site conditions or applicable standards change or if any additional information becomes available at a future date,
modifications to the findings, conclusions and recommendations in this report may be necessary.

Other than by the Township of Billings, copying or distribution of this report or the use of or reliance on the information

contained herein, in whole or in part, is not permitted without the express written permission of EXP. Nothing in this report is
intended to constitute or provide a legal opinion.

7. Closure

We trust that these comments provide you with sufficient information to proceed. Should you have any questions, please do
not hesitate to contact this office.

Yours truly,

EXP Services Inc.

ry Sarvas, P.Geo.
Senior Hydrogeologist, Earth & Environmental Services
Northeastern Ontario

Northeastdfn Ontafrio

“exp.



Appendix A — Drawings

EXP Services Inc.

Project Number: SUD-00020031-IC
Date: February 17, 2021



> ALTREVA . Sy . AT - * LIPS CHRAN T $ HINYE ¢ SINTTG ¢ woo'desauun )

1V SIN _ 1202 AMVNHE34 21-L£002000-QNS AT S bbbt i ek L £
a0 244 s, Tiva oy Aaroed e o rprves
OIV.INO 'ONOMVOWM g

M3IN3Y TVININNOHIANS - 13341S NIV XO.. sEven o 1 OrPPIDED §
= LS i B, \pumsg Angpng
NVY1d NOILYO01 FT0OHIH0g SONITTIE 40 dIHSNMOL 3HL - ) -.-..- u) SONARS dX3

1

1
]
X3 .W

b

s faro posn e ppouE PO PraeIes /
2ur{uoy o
q_sss‘__.-iﬂ efoxt _..«.8-._ o 40 1od swsoy Busap qu (s /
$UGII020) DO 1581 9} 30 poppasd -
ay woy 83 jou proye (] ==

Poxynbes
6| poped swn PPN UD J0Y) SFERPO UBIP BSSRuN palansep
13y} puD VoW € Jaj 880018 L PEUDISS B RA THOWOT 95 (T

‘asodind UBISIP Jo) BUSNDANER SH E3L BEn 30U of (T

e SIGEAPENS O} (g g

Aowt pUD pownzED o0 ABN) “HR0H 1981 LSIRIME WUSHEIC) B0N
1591 10 A[UO paysiRoies uIGq many Sadl] pow puo Eeuopunog sqL (L

— S3LON —~

el

IR

/ INOMY DYy
TIIM INROLNON 40 S, INNH

¥3IVMONNOYD ONY JT0HIN0A &3 ¢ / £8l
[EREY] /

SLN-NYIdADA

e T S L R e e

301440 [s0
/ WA >~
~—




a _ SIN 1202 fuvinuEad | OIL£00Z000-ONS L ! | B A it 05 o e i ool |
B “ON DA e M | et . ‘O TR | | S | mﬁemo 4
[ ORJVANG ‘ONOMYDYH ! - = g s ard No s |
IVINIWNOHIANT NOILONYLSNOOIY 1330S NIVIN__ | Coesigearis 3] Lony L:mnmm §
pos . s s

NV1d NOILYOOT 310HIH08 : AR e e s (-

"oul $20I038 X3

MOTd
HILYMANNOTD
g3InnNssy

“podar
sy g uonauUN[UeD Uy AjUO POSN B9 PINOUS PUD ‘PASLSIBJE)
S0 sequini jos{oad '3uodes o 0 3upd SuLo) Bumbip SL (S

‘SU0(ID0) BIOH JS3) ) ID papuord
UOHDULIOjL) By WOY PRYS|RIEe ©g Jou PIROYS SeRIUCAD (4
pouinbes
S| poled G POPUBIX® UD IDY} EREIAPD JUS[D SIO(UN PoLoJ)Sep
wey puo juow ¢ oJg eBouoie wopaussies og o soidwos es (g

e - VR il o e e~ DRI G T R

“sasodsnd uBiSap Joj SUONDAR S/0H 3691 SN J0u 0Q (T

0L SIOJEPEURY 0] Ju8iqns Bg

Aow puD paanss 850 Aay| ‘BaoH 188 UbAiaE ‘BUCHOD0| MEH
159) 19 Ao PRyE|qEIEs ussq samy £adh) |oE pun 63opunog 3y (|

— S3LON —

02" 00 L
0100

2966 J00°00L
-HE 18

TIOHIHO8 dX3 |@|

aN3931

"S'UN - NYIdAIN



EXP Services Inc. 10

Project Number: SUD-00020031-IC
Date: February 17, 2021

Appendix B — Borehole Logs

“ex P‘



Figure B-1A

Notes on Sample Descriptions

1. All sample descriptions included in this report follow the International Society for Soil Mechanics and
Foundation Engineering (ISSMFE), as outlined in the Canadian Foundation Engineering Manual. Note,
however, that behavioral properties (i.e. plasticity, permeability) take precedence over particle gradation
when classifying soil. Please note that, with the exception of those samples where a grain size analysis has
been made, all samples are classified visually. Visual classification is not sufficiently accurate to provide
exact grain sizing or precise differentiation between size classification systems.

UNIFIED SOIL CLASSIFICATION

CLAY (FLASTIC) 10 | FINE [_MEDIUM [ CRS. | FINE | COARSE ]
SILT (NONPLASTIC) | SAND | GRAVEL |

O.OIO2 0].006 0.02 0.?6 0.I2 0.6 20 6.0 20 60 200

l ] | | l
EQUIVALENT GRAIN DIAMETER IN MILLIMETRES

ISSMFE SOIL CLASSIFICATION

[CaYy | SILT | SAND I GRAVEL [ COBBLES | BOULDERS __|
| [ FINE__| MEDIUM __ | COARSE | FINE | MEDIUM | COARSE | FINE MEDIUM | COARSE | | |

2. Fill: Where fill is designated on the borehole log it is defined as indicated by the sample recovered during
the boring process. The reader is cautioned that fills are heterogeneous in nature and variable in density or
degree of compaction. The borehole description may therefore not be applicable as a general description
of site fill materials. All fills should be expected to contain obstruction such as wood, large concrete pieces
or subsurface basements, floors, tanks, etc., none of these may have been encountered in the boreholes.
Since boreholes cannot accurately define the contents of the fill, test pits are recommended to provide
supplementary information. Despite the use of test pits, the heterogeneous nature of fill will leave some
ambiguity as to the exact composition of the fill. Most fills contain pockets, seams, or layers of organically
contaminated soil. This organic material can result in the generation of methane gas and/or significant
ongoing and future settlements. Fill at this site may have been monitored for the presence of methane gas
and, if so, the results are given on the borehole logs. The monitoring process does not indicate the volume
of gas that can be potentially generated nor does it pinpoint the source of the gas. These readings are to
advise of the presence of gas only, and a detailed study is recommended for sites where any explosive
gas/methane is detected. Some fill material may be contaminated by toxic/hazardous waste that renders it
unacceptable for deposition in any but designated land fill sites; unless specifically stated the fill on this site
has not been tested for contaminants that may be considered toxic or hazardous. This testing and a
potential hazard study can be undertaken if requested. In most residential/commercial areas undergoing
reconstruction, buried oil tanks are common and are generally not detected in a conventional geotechnical
site investigation.

3. Till: The term till on the borehole logs indicates that the material originates from a geological process
associated with glaciation. Because of this geological process the till must be considered heterogeneous in
composition and as such may contain pockets and/or seams of material such as sand, gravel, silt or clay.
Till often contains cobbles (75 to 200 mm) or boulders (over 200 mm). Contractors may therefore
encounter cobbles and boulders during excavation, even if they are not indicated by the borings. It should
be appreciated that normal sampling equipment cannot differentiate the size or type of any obstruction.
Because of the horizontal and vertical variability of till, the sample description may be applicable to a very
limited zone; caution is therefore essential when dealing with sensitive excavations or dewatering programs
in till materials.



Figure B-1B

Notes On Soil Descriptions

4. The following table gives a description of the soil based on particle sizes. With the exception of those samples
where grain size analyses have been performed, all samples are classified visually. The accuracy of visual
examination is not sufficient to differentiate between this classification system or exact grain size.

Soil Classification Terminology Proportion

Clay and Silt <0.060 mm “trace” (e.g. Trace sand) 1% to 10%

Sand 0.060 to 2.0 mm “some” (e.g. Some sand) 10% to 20%

Gravel 2.0to 75 mm adjective (e.g. sandy, silty) 20% to 35%

Cobbles 75 to 200 mm “‘and” (e.g. and sand) 35% to 50%
Boulders >200 mm

The compactness of Cohesionless soils and the consistency of the cohesive soils are defined by the following:

Cohesionless Soil Cohesive Soil
Compactness | Standard Penetration | Consistency Undrained Shear Standard Penetration
Resistance “N” Strength (kPa) Resistance “N”
Blows / 0.3 m Blows /0.3 m
Very Loose Oto4 Very soft <12 <2
Loose 41010 Soft 12to 25 2104
Compact 10 to 30 Firm 2510 50 4108
Dense 3010 50 Stiff 50 to 100 8to 15
Very Dense Over 50 Very Stiff 100 to 200 15t0 30
Hard >200 >30

5. ROCK CORING

Where rock drilling was carried out, the term RQD (Rock Quality Designation) is used. The RQD is an indirect
measure of the number of fractures and soundless of the rock mass. It is obtained from the rock cores by
summing the length of the core covered, counting only those pieces of sound core that are 100 mm or more
length. The RQD value is expressed as a percentage and is the ratio of the summed core lengths to the total
length of core run. The classification based on the RQD value is given below.

Recovery Designation % Recovery =

RQD Classification RQD (%)
Very Poor Quality <25
Poor Quality 250 50
Fair Quality 50to 75
Good Quality 7510 90
Excellent Quality 90 to 100

Length of Core Per Run

x 100

Total Length of Run




ProjectNo.  SUD-00020031-IC Figure No. 1
Project: Main Street - Environmental Review SheetNo. 1 of 1
Location: Kagawong, ON
Combustible Vapour Reading O
Date Drilted: January 21, 2021 Auger Somple Natural Malsture X
SPT (N) Value o) Plastic and Liquid Limit —-a0
Orill Type: Truck Mounted CME 75 Dynamic Cone Test Undrained Triaxial al ®
] Shetoy Tube ] % Straln at Failure
Datum: Non-Geodetic (100.0 m) Field Vane Test ¥ Penetromeler A
T T Combustible Vapour Reading (ppm)
b "3‘ Soil Descriptiol ELEV, g "y Nafusalms:?rncwur: % é Samghe
vl g escripton m | Ateiberg Limts (% Dry Weght) | L | Namber
- %9994 |, 10 20 S
50 mm - ASPHALT Tlen9 - Tway .
FILL ppm
sand and gravel, trace silt, brown, —
moist 99.2
Hydrocarbon odour noted within 1 ppm
sample
| SAND
some silt, brown to black stalned,
molst to wet _ pam
[~ (Possible Filf) 9778
|- Hydrocarbon odours noted down to 3.8 ppm
m depth .__
— e 3 ! T
& pom
= t
3 - 1 s e g
o
SfHF 953 -
g END OF BOREHOLE
& -50 mm groundwater monitoring well
installed
2
[=)
x
2
w
]
#
%
4
2
§
3
g
g
&
g
z
w
E |‘
: |
Wat Depth to
e EXP Services Inc. Borehole data requires Time Le:::lglr ?nga
ogb t: +1.705.674.9681 Interpretation assistance from - {m] {m)
- ex f. +1.705.674.5583 exp before use by others, Upon c";"z’";g‘z’" 2':; :/’2
885 Regent Street January 22,2021 2
Sudbury, ON P3E 5M4
CANADA

Log of Borehole BH-101




Log of Borehole BH-102

ProjectNo. SUD-00020031-IC Figure No, 2
Project: Main Street - Environmental Review SheetNo. 1 of 1
Location: Kagawong, ON
Combustible Vapour Reading O
Date Drilles:  January 21, 2021 Auger Sample Natural Moisture X
SPT (N} Value O Prastic and Liquid Umil —0
Orill Type:  Truck Mounted CME 75 Oynamic Cane Test Undrained Triaxial at o
. Shelby Tube % Strain at Fadure
Datum: Non-Geodetic (1 00.0 m) Field Vane Test Penetromeler A
. $ ELEv g N Value Cumhus;mun Vap;w Reading {ppm)
. 4——-——— Sample
M
‘f.’ B Soll Description m .TF: Shenrg.rengln < - ¥Pa Mﬂ:‘buv mﬁ& WWduht} Nurber
- 69.82 o 50 10 20 30
\50 mm - ASPHALT /lea.8 i - : ] I=EY

FILL
sand and gravel, trace sllt, brown,
molist

-1 SAND

some silt, brown to black stained,
moist to wet

1 (Possible Fill)

Hydrocarbon adours noted throughout

97.74

P
Hia
oo
14 A

SAND AND GRAVEL
some silt, black stained, wet

| (Possible Fill)

SUDBURY ENVIRO BH SUD-00020031-IC KAGWONG MAIN STREET ENVIRONMENTAL GPJ NEW.GDT 272721

\Hydrocarbnn odours noted

~

END OF BOREHOLE

-50 mm groundwater monitoring wel!
installed

e

Faxp.

EXP Services Inc.
t. +1.705.674.9681

885 Regent Street
Sudbury, ON P3E
CANADA

f: +1,705.674.5583

5M4

Borehole data requires
interpretation assistance from
exp before use by others.

Time

Depth to
ave
(m)

Upon Completion
January 22, 2021

N/A
NA




Log of Borehole BH-103

Project No. SUD-00020031-IC Figure No. 3

Project: Main Street - Environmental Review SheetNo. 1 of 1
Location: Kagawong, ON

Combuslibls Vapour Reading m]

e

v

Date Drilled: January 21, 2021 Auger Semple - Naturel Maisture X
SPT {N) Value O Plastic and Uqud limt ~ ———O
Dril Type:  Truck Mounted CME 75 Dynamiz Cone Test Undrained Triaxial at
. Shelby Tube [ ] % Strain &l Fakure &
Datum: Non-Geodetic (100.0 m) Field Vane Test ? Penetrometer A
E N Valus Combustible Vapour Reading (ppm) i
Soll Description ELEV. |E 20 40 ) 80 uaf:-au ms:,um cm;:’_x | Sampte
mo|r Atteroerg Limils (% Dry Weighy | L Number
10026 |o w0 3 s
2\50 mm - ASPHALT /1100.2 f ] T
FILL :
sand and gravel, trace silt, brown, -
moist
- 1
98.8 i
SAND 87
some siit, brown to black stained, W r’;
L_moist to wet 0l 2l - ///
: (Possible Fill) g7.88 é
g B il - f
; =
’ — 3
B ppm
gl 1 -
7
g 7
P28 EREES e e SHONF %
3 END OF BOREHOLE
g -50 mm groundwater monitoring weli
installed
=
o
:
&
£
z
S
W
z
:
3
o
g
w
&
g
2
w
%
Water Depth to
) EXP Services Inc. ) Time Level ave
pek t: +1.705.674.9681 S from (m) (m)
ex f: +1,705.674.56583 exp before use by others, Upon Compigtion 239 NA
o 885 REanl Streel January 22, 2021 2.61 NA
Sudbury, ON P3E 5M4
CANADA




Log of Borehole BH-104

ProjectNo. SUD-00020031-IC Figure No. 4

Project: Main Street - Environmental Review SheetNo. 1 of 1
Location; Kagawong, ON

Combuslible Vapour Reading a

Date Drilled: January 22, 2021 Auger Sample Natural Moisture X
SPT (N) Value o Plastic and Liquid Limit ~ ——0O
Drill Type:  Truck Mounted CME 75 :&:I:m': C:"’ Test = Ungrined Trindea ®
helby Tube tram al Failure
Datum: Non-Geodetic (100.0 m) Field Vane Test * Penelrameter A
o N Valua Combustible Vapour Reading {ppm)
Sail Description ELEV, 5 Naf:m w;?ncw:ig § :ample
m ']'1 Atterberg Limits (% Ory Weight) k umber
—— e o 9965 |, LI S
sand and gravel, trace silt, brown, T i’ X
moist -
_ ‘ i X
98,2
SAND 3 Z
some silt, brown to black stained, o s ﬁ
molst to wet i 7814 PY S -V
: (Possible Fill) L é
i ] ; é’
I Y
¥ — 3
'- g7
E = 4 é
u.:‘l i /
SHHEET 95,1 87
3 END OF BOREHOLE ﬂ_ -1
E -50 mm groundwater monitoring well
§ installed
§
2
g
2
g
g
&
g
2
>
g
:
VWater Depth to
-8 EXP Services Inc. Time Level ave
Ssa t: +1.705.674.9681 Pipretason ossstanes fom | (m) (m)
ex f: +1.705.674.5583 exp befora se by others, pon Compieion | 1.
» 885 Regent Street January 22, 2021 1.98 NA
Sudbury, ON P3E 5M4
CANADA




EXP Services Inc. 11

Project Number: SUD-00020031-IC
Date: February 17, 2021

Appendix C — Analytical Results Tables and Certificates of Analysis

X P

e, ?o
13



Table 3.1. Soil Sample Analytical Resuits

Parameter [ Table 9'5cs] Units | BHL BH1-b | BH2 BH2-b | BH3 BH3-b BH4 BH4-b
PHCs and BTEX

PHCF1 25 ug/g 967 <10 3510 28 330 <10 17 <10
PHCF2 10 ne/e 462 12 2420 15 149 <10 <10 <10
PHCF3 240 ug/g <50 <50 81 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50
PHC F4 120 ug/e <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50 <50
Benzene 0.02 ug/e <0.02 <0.02 <0.02 <0.02 <0.02 <0.02 <0.02 <0.02
Ethylbenzene 0.05 ue/g 10.2 < 0.05 95.6 0.11 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05
Toluene 0.2 ng/s 0.21 <0.05 4,57 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05
Xylene Mixture 0.05 Hg/g 66.2 0.07 511 0.72 0.14 <0.05 0.26 <0.05
VOCs

Bromodichloromethane 0.05 ug/g <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05
Bromoform 0.05 ug/g <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05
Dibromochloromethane 0.05 ue/g <0.05 < 0,05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 < 0,05 <0.05 < 0.05
Tetrachloroethane, 1,1,1,2- 0.05 ue/e <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05
Trichloroethane, 1,1,1- 0.05 ug/g < 0,05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05
Tetrachloroethane, 1,1,2,2- 0.05 ue/g < 0,05 <0.05 < 0,05 <0.05 < 0,05 <005 <0.05 < 0.05
Trichloroethane, 1,1,2- 0.05 ue/s <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05
Dichloroethane, 1,1- 0.05 ue/g | <0.05 <0.05 < 0.05 <0.05 < 0.05 < 0.05 <0.05 <0.05
Dichloroethylene, 1,1- 0.05 ug/g | <0.05 < 0.05 <0.05 <0.05 < 0,05 < 0,05 < 0,05 <0.05
Dichlorobenzene, 1,2- 0.05 ug/g < 0,05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 < 0.05 <0.05 <0.05
Dichloroethane, 1,2- 0.05 He/g <0.05 < 0,05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05
Dichloropropane, 1,2- 0.05 ue/g | <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 < 0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05
Dichlorobenzene, 1,3- 0.05 ug/e < 0,05 <005 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 < 0,05 <0.05 <0.05
Dichloropropene, 1,3- 0.05 Hegle <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05
Dichlorobenzene, 1.4~ 0.05 ugle <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05
Acetone 0.5 ug/e <0.5 <0.5 <05 <0.5 <0.5 <05 <0.5 <0.5
Bromomethane 0.05 yg/g <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 < 0.05 < 0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05
Carbon Tetrachloride 0.05 ug/g <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 < 0.05 <0.05 <0.05
Chlorobenzene 0.05 ug/g <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05
Chloroform 0.05 ug/g <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 < 0.05 <0.05 <0,05 <0.05 <0.05
Dichloroethylene, 1,2-cis- 0.05 ug/g <0.05 <005 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 < 0.05 <0.05 <0.05
Dichloroethylene, 1,2-trans- 0.05 ug/g | <0.05 < 0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05
Dichlorodifluoromethane 0.05 ueg/e <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05
Ethylene dibromlde 0.05 He/e < 0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 < 0.05 <0.05 < 0.05
Methyl Ethyl Ketone 0.5 ne/e <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <05
Methyl Isobutyl Ketone 0.5 Me/g <0.5 <1 <0.5 <1 <0.5 <05 <0.5 <0.5
Methyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE) 0.05 ug/e <0.05 < 0.05 <0.05 <0.05 < 0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05
Methylene Chloride 0.05 ug/g | <0.05 <0.05 < 0.05 <0.05 < 0.05 < 0.05 <0.05 <0.05
Hexane {n) 0.05 ME/E 12 <0.05 1.42 0.1 3.04 <0.05 <0.05 < 0.05
Styrene 0.05 ue/e <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 < 0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05
Tetrachloroethylene 0.05 ug/e <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05
Trichloroethylene 0.05 ug/g <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0,05 <0.05 <0.05
Trichlorofluoromethane 0.25 ug/g | <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 < 0.05 <0.05 < 0.05 < 0.05 <0.05
Vinyl Chioride 0.02 ug/e <0.02 < 0,02 <0.02 < 0,02 <0.02 < 0,02 <0.02 <0.,02
METALS and pH

Antimony 1.3 ue/g <0.8 <0.8 <0.8 <0.8

Arsenic 18 ug/e 2.5 3 2.7 3.2

Barium 220 ug/e 12 14 12 22

Beryllium 2.5 ug/e 0.22 0.23 0.2 0.21

Boron (total) 36 ug/g 10 12 10 12

Boron {Hot Water Soluble) 1.5 He/g <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <05

Cadmium 1.2 ug/e | 0.03 0.02 <0.02 0.09

Chloride NV ue/g

Chromium Total 70 pe/g 7.3 8.6 6.8 7.8

Chromium VI 0.66 ug/e <02 <0.2 <0.2 <0.2

Cobalt 22 ug/g 3.2 34 3 3

Copper 92 ug/g 6.9 7.5 5.9 9.1

Cyanide (CN-) 0.051 ug/g | <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05

Electrical Conductivity {mS/cm) 0.7 mS/cm| 0.19 0.25 0.14 0.27

Lead 120 uele 26 7.6 3 25

Mercury 0.27 WE/E <0.05 <0.05 <0.05 <0.05
Molybdenum 2 ug/e <0.1 0.1 <01 0.2

Nickel 82 ug/g 6.4 6.7 5.8 6.7

Selenium 1.5 ne/e <0.7 <07 <0.7 <0.7

Silver 0.5 ug/e | <0.05 0.06 0.05 0.19

Sodium NV ng/e

Sodium Adsorption Ratio 5 0.5 0.7 0.3 13

Thallium 1 ue/g 0.03 0.03 0.03 0.04

Uranium 2.5 Hg/g 0.28 0.27 0.23 0.31

vanadium 86 ug/e 11 11 10 11

ZInc 290 ug/g 13 13 11 24

pH NV unit 7.66 7.87 8.16 8.31 8,29




Table 3.2. Groundwater Sample Analytical Results

Parameter Table 95CS| Units | BH1 BH2 BH3 BH4
PHCs and BTEX

PHC F1 420 pg/L 28800 8150 1750 106

PHC F2 150 pg/L 5060 4640 379 <100
PHC F3 500 pe/L <200 <200 <200 <200
PHCF4 500 pg/L <200 <200 <200 <200
Benzene 44 pg/L <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5
Ethylbenzene 1800 pe/L 594 175 0.5 <0.5
Toluene 14000 pg/L 36.2 5.4 <0.5 <0.5
Xylene Mixture 3300 ug/L 5700 1280 7.2 <0.5
VOCs

Bromodichloromethane 67000 ug/L <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5
Bromoform 380 pg/L <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5
Dibromochloromethane 65000 ue/L <05 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5
Tetrachloroethane, 1,1,1,2- 3.3 pg/L <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5
Trichloroethane, 1,1,1- 640 pg/L <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5
Tetrachloroethane, 1,1,2,2- 3.2 ug/L <05 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5
Trichloroethane, 1,1,2- 4.7 pg/L <05 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5
Dichloroethane, 1,1- 320 ug/L <0.5 <05 <0.5 <0.5
Dichloroethylene, 1,1- 1.6 pg/L <0.5 <05 <05 <05
Dichlorobenzene, 1,2- 4600 ug/L <0.5 <05 <0.5 <0.5
Dichloroethane, 1,2- 1.6 pg/L <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5
Dichloropropane, 1,2- 16 ug/L <0.5 <05 <0.5 <0.5
Dichlorobenzene, 1,3- 7600 ug/L <05 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5
Dichloropropene, 1,3- 5.2 pg/L <05 <0.5 <0.5 <05
Dichlorobenzene, 1,4- 8 pg/L <0.5 <0.5 <05 <0.5
Acetone 100000 pg/L <30 <30 <30 <30
Bromomethane 5.6 ug/L <05 <0.5 <0.5 <05
Carbon Tetrachloride 0.79 pg/L <0.2 <0.2 <0.2 <0.2
Chlorobenzene 500 ug/L <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5
Chloroform 2.4 ug/L <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5
Dichloroethylene, 1,2-cis- 1.6 pe/L <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5
Dichloroethylene, 1,2-trans- 1.6 ug/L <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5
Dichlorodifluoromethane 3500 ug/L <2 <2 <2 <2

Ethylene dibromide 0.25 pg/L <0.2 <0.2 <0.2 <0.2
Methyl Ethyl Ketone 470000 peg/L <20 <20 <20 <20
Methyl Isobutyl Ketone 140000 pg/L <20 <20 <20 <20
Methyl tert-Butyl Ether (MTBE) 190 ug/L <2 <2 <2 <2

Methylene Chloride 610 pg/L <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5
Hexane {n) 51 pg/L 95 39.6 72,9 <1

Styrene 1300 pg/L 3.2 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5
Tetrachloroethylene 1.6 pe/L <0.5 <0.5 <0.5 <0.5
Trichloroethylene 1.6 He/L <0.5 <05 <0.5 <0.5
Trichlorofluoromethane 2000 ug/L <5 <5 <5 <5

Vinyl Chloride 0.5 ug/L <0.2 <0.2 <0.2 <0.2




FINAL REPORT

CA15362-JAN21 R

SUD-00020031-IC

Prepared for

EXP Services Inc

TE-GL-ENVLAB-IT-011v1.5.3



FlNAL REPORT CA15362-JAN21 R

First Page
CLIENT DETAILS LABORATORY DETAILS i o
Client EXP Services Inc Project Specialist Brad Moore Hon. B.Sc
Laboralory SGS Canada Inc. |
Address 885 Regenl Street Address 185 Concession St., Lakefield ON, KOL 2H0 I
Sudbury, Ontario
P3E 5M4. Canada
Contact Jeff Newman Telephone 705-652-2143
Telephone 705-674-9681 Facsimile 705-652-6365
Facsimile 705-674-5583 Email brad.moore@sgs.com
Email jeff.newman@exp.com SGS Reference CA15362-JAN21
Projecl SUD-00020031-IC Received 01/27/2021
Order Number Approved 02/03/2021
Samples Ground Water (5) Report Number CA15362-JAN21 R |
L Dale Reporled 02/03/2021 /
COMMENTS
I \

CCME Method Compliance: Analyses were conducted using analytical procedures that comply with the Reference Method for the CWS for Pelroleum Hydrocarbons in
Soil and have been validated for use at the SGS laboratory, Lakefield, ON site.

Quality Compliance: Instrument performance / calibration quality criteria were met and extraction and analysis limits for holding times were met.
nC6 and nC10 response factors within 30% of response factor for toluene: YES
nC10, nC16 and nC34 response factors within 10% of the average response for the three compounds: YES
C50 response factors within 70% of nC10 + nC16 + nC34 average: YES
Linearity is within 15%: YES

F4G - gravimelric heavy hydrocarbons cannot be added to the C6 to C50 hydrocarbons.
The results for F4 and F4G are both reported and the greater of the two valuss Is to be used in application to the CWS PHC.

Temperature of Sample upon Receipt: 2 degrees C
Cooling Agent Present:Yes

Custody Seal Present:Yes

Chain of Custody Number:020371

SIGNATORIES

Brad Moore Hon. B.Sc
B

—

SGS Canada Inc. | 185 Concession St., Lakefield ON, KOL 2HO t 705-652-2143 f 705-652-6365 WWW.SgS.com

I 1713 Member of the SGS Group (SGS SA)



FINAL REPORT CA15362-JAN21 R

TABLE OF CONTENTS
First Page. 1
Index 2
Resuits 3-6
Exceedance Summary . 7
QC Summary.......cees RSt O S BTSRRI L R EE U RS SRR S S SRS SRS s vt OB RS 8-11
Legend 12
Annexes. R R R R TR e 13

20210203 2/13



eL/€

ogou
S3A S3IA S3A S3A S3IA _ - ON / SOA Je sujjeseq o} pawmnjal welbojewolyy _
“o0s | ooz wbn (050-¥€0) ¥4
. . 00S 002 e (ve0-910) €4
05, | 0oL 6 a (910010} 24
se 6r o ~ (010-90) xalahd|
052 sz AT (010-90) 14|
SOHd
unsey nsey unsey ansoy unsey 1 ™ N sojeurred
 leoznorz 120z/10/ze lzozioree 1Z0z/10/ze 120Z/10/Zz  ©yeq ejdures o o
I9JEM PUNOID 12)EAA PUNOLS 18]1BAA PUNOID 19)EM PUNOID  ISJEA PUNCID  XNEBI ojdwes QENIFIANN - 5987 Auedosd Jo sedAL IIv - 2 3BV - ISHYOD / HILVM ANNCHS / ESLOTY = 1
dna vHE €HE ZHE tHE oureN ejdureg
b ol 6 8 N Joquiny ojdwes (¥31vM) SOHd - ESLOTY :3OWIOV
061 50> 9t 6k oevk | g0 /61 === i suslx0|
g0> 5 0044 olzy S0 br ~ eusiix-du
50> z1 008 50 /6rt {ieron) ouikx |
S0> 0> i S0 bri suenjoy
S0> S0 vaG vz 50 6 o suazuaqiAylg
i 50> S0> 50> m..o > _ S 50 T auazuag
- o . 3l
ynsoy yneoy unsey wnsoy wnsoy 11 ™ syun sojeureieg
T 1202/L0/Ze 1202/10/2Z 1202/10/2Z 120210722 120z/l0/cZ  ejeq ejdueg -
13JeAA PUNOIS) JBJBA pPUNOID) J9)EAA pUNOID JIJBAA PUNOID Jajepn punolD xjnep O_QF_UW Q3NIZ2aNN - sesn Auedoid jo sedAL Iy - Z 31EVL - ISUVOD / HILVM ANNOHD / €51OTY = 11
dna YHE €Hg zHe LH sureN ejdures
b o 8 g L Joquiny ejdues (431vM) X316 - €5LOTY :FOVIOVd

uewmaN yor :smeidweg

UBWIMON YOI sreBeuey pefoid

OI-1£002000-aNS F0efoid
JU| s3VWNIBG X3 JUeiD

o LZNYI-29eSIvO

140d34 1vNI4



eL/v

50> 50> 50> G0> 50> 0g 50 6 3USZUGOIOND) |
o Z0> 70> 20> z0> 0> 640 z0 6d apUOIyOBIIe)} UoGIED |
- ) - go> 50> N 50> S0> 50> 68°0 g0 /60 sueyjalowolg
_| B B 0g > 0t > mﬂ > 0E > 0€ > f ooz _ [ AT - o |mc2mo<_
- N - _ o SDOA
yneey wnsey Hneey unsey Hneey 1 ™ sun JejourBd
1202/10/Z2 lZ0z/o/ze Ve0eIloreE 120z/10/2Z 120z/L0/2Z  ©eq ejdureg o
J19]EM PUNOID 19)EM PUNOID 18]EA PUNOID 19JEAA PUNOIS J9)EM PUNOIS  XIB ejduiBg Q3NISFANN - s8N Apadoad Jo sedAl |1 - 2 31VL - ISYVOD / HALYM ANNOYD / £5L93Y = 1]
dna ¥Ha €Hg zHe LHE sureN ejdureg
' o 8 8 ! Joquin ejdures (43.LvM) SOOA - €5LDTY '3DVHOVd
g6 6 6 66 86 - 9, 09y LUNg o " auszUagoIONYOWOIG ung|
T 96 58 Sl T e €6 _ - 4 09y LNG auedoidoiojy)-|-owoigz ung |
- 6 66 6 6 % - % 09y Lng T pp-suBIB0IONOIA-Z'} LN
sgjefiouns D0A
wnsey yneey Hneey unsey unsey 1 ™ un lepurmey
~lzoznore 1202/10/2C 1202/10/22 12021102 12020/ epeg eidues
19)BAA PUNOIS) JBJeAA PUNOID 18} PUnols) 191EA\ PUNOID I8lEM PUNOID  XIBIY ejdues QANIIZANN - sesn Ausdoid yo sedAL Iy - £ 3TEVL - ISUVOD / YIALYM ONNOXUD / E5LOTY = 11
dna vHa £Hg zHg LHE eweN ejdumes
1 o 6 ) L Joquny eydures (¥31vm) sejeboung DOA - E5LOTY ‘IDVHIOVI
50> g0> o>  go» o> | sc | 50 /6 i SURRUIOIONPOLOIAC]
) 50> 50> 50> so> so> | sz 50 6 ) uuojowolg
50> 50> 50> c0>  S0> 9l S0 J6r suBLBLWOIO|YOIpOWOIg |
(DON SWHL
unsey nsey ynsey ey nsey 1 ™ sun Jojoureiey
a 1202110722 1202/10/22 1202/10/22 1202/ 10/ze 120Z/l0/2 el edueg
191BM PUNCID 19)EM PUNOID JO)EA PUNOID JBIEM PUNOID  ISIEM PUNOID  XjGRJ BjduIeS Q3NISIANN - sesn Ausdold 4o sedA] I - Z IIGVL - ISHVOD / HILYM ANNOHD / €519 = 11
dna ¥HE €Hg ZHE LHE eweN ejdureg
n o 6 g 1 Joquiny edures (43LVM) (OON) SWHL - €SLOTY :3OWHOV

uewmap Yor suejdweg

uewmsN yor uefeuep pefoid

OI-1£002000-aNS J0efaid
9U| S8OINIBS dXT JUSID

H 1ZNYr-29e51vO

140d3d TVvNId



€L/S

50> 50> 0> 50> 50> [ ) /6r “oueyjeOIOOBNR L2 1} ||
50> 50> 0> 50> 50> 9L | 5o 6d {sustkyjaoio|yoIad) BuBIAIR00IYOERS
o 1 50> 60> 50> zt v's S0 AT “aualAig
. G0> 50> 50> G0> S0> T 0S S0 /60 apuoyD suaiuiai |
o > z> z> z> z> Sh 0z i 1oy ANg1-AUR |
- 0z> 0z> 0z> 0z~ 0> o 0z 6t " suoiay angos) AURIN
I 0z> 0c> > 0z> 0z> [ 008} 0z Tl suopy IALpa Ao
z0> z0> z0>  zo- 0> Z0 z0 6ri opCIqIpaUBIALS
50> 50> 0> 50> 50> S0 S0 b {le101) ausdoudo.oloip-g* .F._
o 50> 50> 50> §0> 50> S0 /6 auadodololyolq-¢'|-suey
c0> 50> 50> 50> 50> g0 i auadosdololia-¢'L-s1o
o 50> s0> T o> 50> 50> s 50 /6 suedoidololyaIq-Z' |
50> 50> 50> 50> S0> = ol S0 J/6d auayjLoIoRIa-Z |-sId
r B G0> 50> c0> 50> 50> 9l ) b aUBL)R0IOIIA-Z | -Sus
50> Go> c0> 0> T go> ol 50 /B auajAipsolonaia-1')
T go» 50> 50> T 50> T go> | gL | g0 6r ) aUBIB0I0IRIA-Z
c0> s0> 50> 0> 50> i S ) Bn ) SUBLRS0IONAIG-L |
z> z> z> T z» z> T 088 | 02 /6r aueLsWOIONYPOIOIYDIA
50> s0> s0> go>  so> | L S0 Br " euszueqoIolYAIaY' |
_ 50> ~ go0> T gos> co> c0> _ T e ) B ocﬁcgeo_ﬁ_n_.m;_
_ 0> 50> 50> 50> 50> _ € S0 /6d 2uazuaqoIolyIa-Z'} |
—.. 50> 50> T 50> G0> 50> ve ) /6r ) wojosoyD
R . R {penuRu0a) SDOA
nesy wneey ooy ynsey unsey 11 ™ un JejeuremBg
o o 1202/L0/22 1202/10/22 1202/10/22 \20Z/L0/2Z 120z/l0/cc  ©)eq oduwes -
JBJeA PLNOID 1912 PUNOID) J9jepr pUnOIS JSJEAN PUNOID) IG)EM PUNOID)  XE opdwes G3NI43ANN - sesn Apedoud Jo sedA Iy - 2 ITEVL - 3SUVOD / HALVM GNNOUD / 5193 = 11
dna ¥Ha eHE zHE LHE eumN ejdures
b o 6 g ! Jequiny eidureg (431vM) SOOA - EGHOTY :3OVMOVd

uewmaN yor :aiejdues
uewMSN Yor ueBeuely 100foid
OI-L£002000-aNs F98faid
oU| S30IIBS dXT JUBIID

o LZNYM-Z9ESLYO

140d3y TvNI4



€L/ 9

70> z0> 20> 70> 0> 50 z0 Ver apuoyd JAuIA

) c> G> ¢> c> c> 05t 0S yerl " sueyjsworoNyoIoOL] |

o B 50> 50> 50> 50>  S0> 9t S0 b ausjAyIE0IoIyOL L

N s0> 50> “go0> 50> 50> - L'y S0 6 auBR0IOOL]Z L L

50> 50> TS 50> 50> ooz S0 BT o BUBUJeIOIDUL- | )

§0> 50> 50> 50> 50> | 3 50 /6 aUBUIS0I0|BNBL-Z'T | L
(PaNUNUED) SOOA

yneey ymsey unsey nnsey unesy 11 ™ s|un sopurEd

- 1202/10/2e 1202/L0/Ze 1202/10/22 12021022 1202/k0/c  epeq ejdures -
13]BAA PUNOIS J3)EAA PUNOID) 191BM pUNOIS JB)BM PUNOID  JOlEM PUNOIS  XnBy eidwes GENISEANN - s Apedozd Jo sadA] [y - 2 ITAVL - 3SUVOD / ¥ALYM ANNOYD / E5EOTH = 11

dna vHE cHE zHE LHE eureN ejdures
n oL 6 ] 2 Jequiny eidwies (M3LYM) SDOA - E51DTY ‘AOVYMOVd
. uewMaN Jor :aejdwes

uetwman Jar uefeuepy oefoud
OI-1L£002000-aNS Foefard
2U| SBIIAIBS dXI JUS|ID

Y LENYI-29e51vO

1H0d3d TVNIH



FINAL REPORT

CA15362-JAN21 R

EXCEEDANCE SUMMARY
REG153/
GROUND WATER /
COARSE - TABLE
2 - All Types of
Property Uses -
UNDEFINED
LPammetsr Method Units Result L1
BH1
F1 (C6 10 C10) CCME Tier 1 ugiL 28800 o2 Y |
F2 (C10 to C16) CCME Tier 1 HgiL 5060 T
| Ethylbenzene EPA 50308/8260C bolL 594 Ao b |
| n-Hexane EPA 50308/8260C polL 95.0 ERE S
Toluene EPA 50308/8260C wglL 36.2 R A
Xylene Mixture EPA 50308/8260C nlL 5700 e
BH2
F1 (C6 o C10) CCME Tier 1 bl 8150
F2 (C10 to C16) CCME Tier 1 pglt 4640 ST
Ethylbenzene EPA 50308/8260C bolL 175 e g |
Xylene Mixture EPA 50308/8260C bolL 1280 [EEETEE
BH3
F1 (C6 1o C10) CCME Tier 1 uglL 1750 g
F2(C1010 C16) CCME Tier 1 nglL 379 Lm0
n-Hexane EPA 5030B/8260C nolL 729 A
DUP
F1 (C6 1o C10) ~ CCME Tier 1 HgiL 13100
F2 (C10 to C16) CCME Tier 1 HglL 5840 TR i
Ethylbenzene EPA 50308/8260C wlL 589 | =
n-Hexane EPA 50308/8260C pglL 101 RS
| Toluene EPA 5030B/8260C ngiL 26.9 R
L PA 505088
| Xylene Mixture EPA 50308/8260C pgiL 5690 e

20210203

7/13



£020120¢

cL/8
oL 09 88 ovl 09 6 o aN 002> 002 /Br LZNYI-Z9E0N0D (050-+€0) v3 |
orl 09 88 orl 09 v6 o an 00z> 002 6r LZNYI-Z9E0NOD (re0-910) €4
ovl 09 88 ovh 09 ¥6 0g 6 004> 00} /6r LZNVP-Z9E0INDD (910-010) 24 _
e i no 0 ﬁ uBIH o %) _
: Krencoey (%)
%) Kienooey (%)
sy Asencoey " fion opds ov ady
olds S Ateacoey uelg eouaeey |
194 | ©jids e duelg Hids/SOT eyeolidng Poysi ™ N yneq OO Jojoweleg
0LO-NV-Y1-OOIANI-wD-aN jel [ewaiu] | | J8ll JWOT ‘POLISH
{¥4-g4) suoquesolpA wnsjoged
orlL 09 AN ovl 09 501 o an 52> 74 6n VENYP-LVEONOD (010-90) 14
BN mo o #o (%) _
) Areacoey %)
o fuencoey ) opdg ov ady
Kiencoay
sy onds S Aeaoaey _ g eouase}ey
_ 10y / oiids qnEN Sjuelg oSS * epeofidng PoUeN ™ RN yreq 0 IopwREd ;

0LO-NV- Y 1-ODIANIIYO-3W yol [ewSuf j | 191l INOD ‘PofIen

(1 4) suoque20IpAH wnejogad

o LENVYP-C9ESIVO

140d3d TvNId

AAVINNNS 0D



ovt 05 zot
ovl 05 96
or} 05 86
ovh 08 Z0L
ovl 0s 06
orL 0S 66
ovl 0 86
_ orl 0 0oL
oyl 0 86
orL oS 66
orl 05 0}
ovl 05 L0k
ovh 0s 004
orL 0s 96
ok 05 L0L
ovk 05 001
ovh 0 9204
ort 0 0L
[ orlk 0 bbb
_ orL 0s S0L
[ wem | om
| (%)
| %) Kioncoey
_ u] Aserooey oyds
_ 10y / odjidS Xpen

SL/6 £0201.202
ory cm zol |ﬂ| v g0 S0 emm - w.wzi.mnmos_oo sueyjewowolg |
o€l 09 96 og an 50> S0 b LZNVI-SLEONDD wuojoworg |
ocl 09 86 o aN 50> S0 /6r LZNVP-GLEONDD suelawosoolpowosg |
o€k 09 104 o aN 50> S0 /6 LZNVI-SLE0NDD auszuag
0ElL 09 €6 [ an 0e> o€ 7/6r LZNYI-GLEONDD suojedy
oel 09 66 o an 50> S0 Bl LZNYP-GLEONDD aUBZUBQOIONRIA-Y'L
o€t 09 66 o an 50> 50 /6r LZNVM-SLEONOD 2UBZUBQOIOIYIA-E'} |
oe} 09 16 0g aN §0> 50 7/6r 1ZNVI-GZEO0NDD auedosdoloyola-z'L
0EL 09 66 o an 50> S0 et LZNVI-GLE0NDD suelBoIoIa-Z' L
ol 09 004 o an 50> S0 6 LZNV-GLE0NDD 2UsZURqOIOIAIA-Z'L
o€l 09 €0l oe aN 50> S0 /6r LZNVI-SLE0NOD susiAyteoioiuoIa-L’}
oel 09 zol o aN 50> S0 6rt LZNYI-SLE0NDD sueyiLoIoldIa-L'L
o€l 09 00L 0e aN 50> S0 /6nl LZNVI-SZE0NOD aueysololyouL-z'} 'L _
0€EL 09 86 o aN 50> S0 /6 LZNVYI-GLE0NOD SUBLB0IOIYOEARL-Z'TL'L
oel 09 66 o aN 50> g0 /rl LZNV-GLE0WDD BUBLO0IOMOLL~}'L L
o€l 09 66 oe aN 50> S0 /6rl LZINVI-GZE0NOD auelpsololyoERdL-ZL'L'L
ogk 09 Lok og an 50> S0 /6r Lza34-€L00WOD dus|hx-0
oelL 09 201 o€ aN 50> S0 7/6r 12934-€L00NOD aus|ix-djw
ol 09 904 oe an 1> ol ért 12834-EL00NOD auexap-u
ogk 09 zok o an S0> 50 V6r 12833-€L00NDD suszuaqiiyla
YBIH Mo %) ] I

® | o | o
S fionoos e _ eouas)ey
uelg exids/SOT ejeojidng poujoi ™ [N _ ya3eq 90 Jejeureied

YOO-NY-y T-ODIANIVI-3W 18l [Bwsu] | D09Z28/90€0S Vd3 n.uoﬁms_

soIUEBIQ ajeIon

o LENYr-Z9€eSivo

140d34 1vNIH

AYVYNANS 00



og

[

0E
0e
oe
ot
oe
0oe
oe
0g
0e
oe
0¢
11
0e
0e
oe
oe
oe
og

(%)
v

eL/0lL

GN

anN
anN

anN
aN
aN
anN

GN
anN
anN
aN
anN
aN
anN
aN
aN
anN

add

ovl 0s 1oL oct 09 0L
ovt 0S 117 oct 03 004
orl 0s Lol 0148 09 66
ovh 05 z04 0El 09 Lok
[s]4% 0s 8L oEl 09 2ol
0144 0s 00} oEl 09 [e10]8
ovL 0§ €6 oel 08 6
orL 0S 16 4143 0s 86
orlL 0s 96 [¢]48 09 16
1143 0s 94 0El 09 (1]
ovl 0S €0l OEL 09 6
orlL oS 00} oet 09 86
obL 0s €Ll 191 09 ol
orl 0s 601 ovL 0S 001
ovlL 05 16 oEl 09 16
ovlL oS 66 ock 09 96
ort 0s LOL oel 09 %013
ovl 0S 0oL (53 08 10L
ort 0s ool 4148 09 66
orL 0S 1oL 8143 09 16
ybin Mo ybiH Mo %
%)
%) Kienooey A.w@ Arencooy
syur] Aercooy onds A Aleacoey s
19Y / @itds Xnen Jueid SyIds/sO

ejeoldng

§'0>

g'0>

S'0>
§0>
S0>
S'0>
>
0eg>
0c>
§0>
1>
0>

S'0>

S'0>
§'0=>
S0>
50>
50>

20>

qeig
PoweN

S0
S0

S0
S0
S0
]
oc
4
0c
S0
o'l
(4
S0
0eC
S0
S0
S0
S0
S0

co

/6

/6rt

/6
b
ybr
/6
/61
7/6d
7/6n
b
/6r
7/6d
6
/6
/6
/6
pliaul
7/6n
7/6r
76t

PN

LZNVI-GLEONDO

LZNVI-GLEONDD

LZNVI-GLE0NOD
LENVYI-GLEONDD
LZNVI-S.E0WID
LZNVYM-SLEONDD
LZNYT-GLEONDD
LZNVYP-GZE0NOD
LZNYP-GZE0NDD
LZNVI-GLE0W0D
LZNVI-G.E0WNDO
LZNYr-SLEONDD
LZNVY(l-SLEOWNOD
JZNVI-SLEONDD
LZNVYI-SLEONDD
LZNVYP-GLEONDD
LZNVYP-SLEONDD
LZNYr-GLEONDD

LZNYI-SLEONDD

€020icoz

auay)aolopyig-g' L-suer

Quan|o]
(auajAujaoiojyolad) |

aus|AyeoIolyorna |

auaiflg

aus|Ax-0

apLoIYD aualiyle

Ja3 INg-+AGeN

suojey 1ANgos| Kyl

auojey Kups Aie N

auajix-djw

auexaH-u
aplwoIqIpBusApg
auazuagiiyg
aueyjawolonyipoloyolq]

SUBYJIBWOIO|YOoWOIGI]

auadoidoiojyaig-g'L-sio

ENEINELILT

1Q-2'}-sio
WLI0JOIOYD

2uazZUaqoIoIYD

LZNVI-GLE0N0D apuoJYoe}e) UogIeD
eouale)ey
Yieq o0 JejewrIied

J

POO-NY- Y T-DDIANTIVO-TW 381 [BwWelu] | D09Z8/G0E0S Vi3 :POYISN

(penunuoo) sowebio sjejon

o LENVYIM-29ESLYOD

140d3d TVNIH

AMVWNNS 00




“Ju 8y} sawy oAl Uey) Jajeaib s) sajeondnp om) ay) 10 sBeISAR Bu} a1aum Aluo Aldde sywy souedaooe ejedldnp SNy} ‘AllEofewWEIp SOSESIOUI SNJEA BU) UIM Pejeloosse Aulepsoun ay) "y au) saydeoidde jnsal painsesw ay) se sajeolidnp Jos JeylenD ejeojidng

*s10a0 xujew ajdwes Yjm AoeInooe AIOJeIoge| Sjenjeas o) pasf) ‘Pappe Usaq Sey Sa.a)ul JO S)A1eUe ay} JO JUNOWE umouy e Yalym o} sjdwes v :axids Xuen
“sj0ay0 xujew ajduies Jnoyum Aoeinooe Alojeloqet pue A1aacoal a)Ajeue jenjeas O} pasn) ‘Peppe Usaq SEY dJAeUE JO JUNOLLE UMOW| B YDILM O} XLJBW YUEB|] € 0} J8ja) jue|q axids Jo ajdwes jonucd Aojeloqe Hjuelg axids/So

cL/LL

‘UONEUIEJUCD KI0)eI0qe| SSBSSE 0} pas() "enpaoosd [eopAleue amus sy YBNoIY) PaLUED SI JBy) XUJew Jue|q & Sjuelg poule

[1j29 0S 66 [s[48 09 86 0e aN z0> z0 /6r
ovh 0% 66 ovt 0s 96 o¢ aN G> 0 y/6r
ovL 0s 66 Ot} 09 66 o€ an 50> S0 /6
ovk 0S 66 o€l 09 004 oe an S0> S0 b
| oK Moy WH | s (%)
_ ) Kiencoey )
N e [ & ojds v
] Aencoay | ewds s Aeacoey 9 |
_ _ yueig

"JY / ©iidS X98N Sjueg exids/sO ejeofidng pouleiN ™ SN

FZNVIM-GLEOWOD
LZNVYI-SLEONDD
LZNVI-GLEONDD

LENVI-GLE0WOD

eusjuo soueydasoy DY
ouasopIp Jusalad sAneRY :0dY

Ju Bupoday 11y
"ayids xujew e jo soe(d Uy pasn aq Aew [eUsjew 82UBIa)el Y *}SIAMUI JO SJA[BUE BY) JO JUNOWIE UMOUY € SUIR)UOD ey} sajdwes ay) 0} paydjew XL]ew SOUB)SqNS Jo [BUS)BW e :[eusjely souasoey

‘uoisioaid JUSLLIBINSESLU S)EN|EAS 0} pasn “anpacoud [eanAjeue aimua auy YBnoay) paLues si ey} sjdwes auwies ayj jo uoiod ajesedss e o sishjeue palied :@jedlidng

-g)A[BUB SANIEU BU] JO UOHRIUSOUCD B4} 0} |enba
10 ueLp Jejesib st owids XUJBW oY) JO UCNEAUSIUCD aU) UayM Aluo Aldde sy ouEdacoe xids XUjeW Uy 'sniyL “seseaioul A1an00a) axids XUIBW 8y} 40 AJuIepsoun Sy} ‘Sasealou] SIAIEUR BAJEU BU} JO UOJEAUB0UOD U SE 'saxids Xijew Jo) Jepjiend exids Xgen

‘ajqejdease pasepisucd si ayids sy} pUB eINjosqe %0} 0} dn AqQ sjwy pajonb sy} pasoxe Aew sajijeue
2y} 1o %01 O} dn ‘axids XuEW pUB SO BY} J0} ‘SUBDS JusWalSHINW U] 'sny | “wajqold poyjaiu eal e o) pasoddo se s0UBLO WOopUES AG 8OUBPESOX JIWI| B JO SOUBYD SU) SIOP OS ‘S8SE2IOUI UBDS B L) SB}AJBUE JO 1OGUINU 3U) SB Jepjfent) Uedos Juoweepiny

BpUoIyD AUIA

BUBLJBWOIONY0IOIYIU |

sualAyiaolo|you]

auadoidolo|yaig-¢'|-sueq

oouaIeey
ydeq 00

Jojeweied

YO0-NY-Y T-ODIANTIVO-IW 18! [eWaiu] | D09ZS/0E0S VT PO

(panunuoa) solueBIO o|ejoA

d LENVYIM-29esivO

140d34 TvNId

AYVNAINS OO



FlN AL REPORT CA15362-JAN21 R

LEGEND

FOOTNOTES

NSS [nsufficient sample for analysis.
RL Reporting Limit.
t Reporting limit raised. |
4 Reporting limit lowered.
NA The sample was not analysed for this analyte
ND Non Detect |

Samples analysed as received. Solid samples expressed on a dry welght basis. “Temperature Upon Receipt” is representative of the whole shipment and may not reflect the

temperature of individual samples.

Analysis conducted on samples submitted pursuant to or as part of Reg. 153/04, are in accordance to the Protocol for Analytical Methods Used in the Assessment of Properties
under Part XV.1 of the Environmental Protection Act” published by the Ministry and dated March 9, 2004 as amended.

SGS provides criteria information (such as regulatory or guideline limits and summary of limit exceedances) as a service. Every attempt is made ta ensure the criteria information
in this report is accurate and current, however, it is not guaranteed. Comparison to the most current crileria is the responsibility of the client and SGS assumes no responsibility for
the accuracy of the criteria levels indicated. This document is issued, on the Client's behalf, by the Company under its General Conditions of Service available on request and
accessible at http://www.sgs.com/terms_and_conditions.htm. The Client's attention is drawn to the limitation of liability, indemnlfication and jurisdiction Issues defined therein. Any
other holder of this document is advised that informatfon contained hereon reflects the Company's findings at the lime of its intervention only and within the limits of Client's
instructions, if any. The Company's sole responsibility is to its Client and this document does not exonerate parties to a transaction from exercising all their rights and obligations

under the transaction documents.

This report must not be reproduced, except in full. This report supersedes all previous versions.

- End of Analytical Report --

20210203 12/13



UIB)IY] PIUNIP SANSSI UONDIPSLNE pUR UoNeILLIAPUN AT JO UOHET)LL AY] O} UMEIP 51 UONUA)Y (SONDas undn SOR|EAE U SRODD pajlud) Wiy SUCIIPUCD Ul StaALeY stis svwiding
1P B{QISSADVE BAIARS J0 SUAIINGAY [R13UID <11 3IPUN ALRJILED dY) £ PANSS) 51 UDWINADP SIU] 35nba) UOSN AITENTAR S) XE4 150D [EUONIPPE OU JO) S3%S3INPE j0 JHGQINU PN LE O) pEWD AQ juas agq Aew sinsoy (€} (Suawnoop Buiddius 60) 120, JMIEUIDNE UB Ut iC 10e5ues aul 0Z0Z AR 2T wN$S) ) 0T
UL 3(1) U0 p2U)ejdI ) 40 wioj SIY) uo seadde Aew Saineubis “}Iom j0 LYddWoT 10) co:nN:oE:n PRIBPISULD S) 1S 0] 5sidwes Jo uoIssigns () sajdwes jo uoneuodsues pue BujpUELUoNID|00 BITWES UN uoNIaNp PapiAdsd U33q JAEY MDA Jey) WawaBEBMOUNIR 51 §5S 0f $I)dLWeS 0 uoisSugnS aloN 2iiids DBl
1S9S - 4doD alypp 8 MO[IBA {R&7ppauw) :91eq :aimeubig {(3WyN) Aq peysinbuyay

10341 - £dog yuid () iﬂ.ﬂw A B —\ I% SaneiB(s \VA /f.jﬂz FPIT anwn 4a porduwres
T

SUOTPNISU| |EDadS/S|UALIO)/SUONBAIaSq0

: i A 7 BB _,__ T _nw_._:a_.._ Tsl
L _ o Fsiaash|
r L : Coa ¢
Ll \ T z
L Mo 9 EEVER B
23 M -
:9la2

= w > L377] = T=lom| oz
2EETE 2 =z S 2 32| B 29%E|EE 2
wop| 3 Z2EE (8 8 g2 | m gnl n| @ W =|8z|iz|iE| o
£ = L S (7] (7)) % a o= %
—SES= 2 5| 2 s ‘ol 2 | eaiS|awm| o s311l08|aa1divs | a31dwvs ;
NavE Um.v = ,m X =S & m O 2|2 [ 28|ER| el £ LTV Rl e i NOLLYOIJILNIAL FTdNVS
e 5| 2R o 3z 15l (ol 5l 2
@ & o 2 3| a =
sodag| & 2RSS & x| = eZlic| 3| =
2 n 8 &8 s 2 135 =8| = ON SaA| (0S4) NOLLIONGD 311S 40 aMODIN
‘SINTJWINOD | sorp| & W o o 3 RS .,..AUIu. =z
FiR 8 Cl z | | 28 210U 205, aiqenoday 10N SMaAol | gwoge< [ swose>[T] awnion os
W o > > L s
= =18 3 3 2 ] E vsin[] aigeL ]
s g g : Aedrounpy| sewio[] oo} ougmpany ] - senioniby [ gaqei[ ]
x
4Rl a wois (7] yann[]  oomdd] ssieon  []  wooypu [] zagel[ |
R ] ; Keywes[] (LvL uw Aeq ) gs6/2vE Bau ]  campa) jog - wedsay [ - Leiger[ ]
4191 (Kuads oseaid) 1330 “lised | o0A JHd -|82d]| 20AS | 12N :MeT-Ag Jamag]| :suoneinBay 1BYol 61/90% Bayo[T] $O/ES1 momd\m
n_w._rwm:Gwm_ w_w>._<z< S : s & | SNOUVINOZM e

AQO1SN3T 40 NIVHO ¥31YM ONINNING SOSHLIM - —
ELInans m_m._.m_.!_ NOLLIWASNOD NYWNH 3O SFIAYS HILVM (FTBYLOD) ONBINIIG 10N LA IR
“NOIS! Emnw oL mo_mn_ W>_.P<._.2m”mmn_wz wmvw I.—._>> Ed_m_mﬁu. :M:.w_. Em_n_ZOU wm(mdn_
ﬂunvD w»nnnu w»mn_mu hmnvm_ 1.. 5 T

' =on"

:o 10 an _mcm chwow. wo_aEmm

.s«a oso Aoads

: 1560225615 <04 83.3@ F/200) 1i01 00SF-225 615 :2uoUd BSZ 39N 'NO 'U0pUO] Soo LWNIOSUOD /59 :UOPUOT -
i JUBWIUAUIAUBALICO SG5 Miv 09 M SIEGT259-50L Xed 000Z:259-G0/ :3UOd 0HZ 103 NO 'PIaUaYe IS uoissaouog) Gel pIeyaxe] - Kjajes T 5.81 JUBLILONAUT

1,¢ % Qon . i : >no.rw:o 40 z_<_._o u:m wwo_?.mw Eouﬂonmq 10} ummscwz

LMY
o v A R Y ? . :
L LR i, > 3 f.{.lnu.ffh.r; R L e R . Wi s N el T e A e Ra N BT 4|y e S A PR Y, 'y, Y




FINAL REPORT

CA15363-JAN21 R

SUD-00020031-IC

Prepared for

EXP Services Inc

TE-GL-ENVLAB-IT-011v1 5.3




FlNAL REPORT CA15363-JAN21 R

First Page
CLIENT DETAILS LABORATOR_Y I?FT_AILS
Client EXP Services inc Projecl Specialisl Brad Moore Hon. B.Sc
Laboratory SGS Canada Inc.
Address 885 Regenl Street Address 185 Concession St., Lakefield ON, KOL 2HO |
Sudbury, Ontario
P3E 5M4. Canada |
Contact Jeff Newman Telephone 705-652-2143
Telephone 705-674-9681 Facsimile 705-652-6365 |
Facsimile 705-674-5583 Email brad.moore@sgs.com :
Emalil jeff.newman@exp.com SGS Reference CA15363-JAN21
Project SUD-00020031-IC Received 01/27/2021 |
Order Number Approved 02/02/2021
Samples Soil (10) Report Number CA15363-JAN21 R
Dale Reported 02/02/2021
COMMENTS

CCME Method Compliance: Analyses were conducted using analytical procedures that comply with the Reference Method for the CWS for Petroleum Hydrocarbons in
Sail and have been validaled for use at the SGS laboratory, Lakefield, ON site.

Quality Compliance: Instrument performance / calibration quality criteria were met and extraction and analysis limits for holding times were met.
nCB and nC10 response factors within 30% of response factor for toluene: YES |
nC10, nC16 and nC34 response factors within 10% of the average respense for the three compounds: YES |
C50 response factors within 70% of nC10 + nC16 + nC34 average: YES |
Linearity Is within 16%: YES |
|
|

F4G - gravimetric heavy hydrocarbons cannot be added to the C6 to C50 hydrocarbons.
The results for F4 and F4G are both reported and the greater of the two values is to be used In application to the CWS PHC. [

Hydrocarbon results are expressed on a dry weight basis.

Benzo(b)fluoranthene resulls for comparison to the standard are reported as benzo(b+j)fluoranthene. Benzo(b)flucranthene and benzo(j)flucranthene co-elute and

cannot be reporied individually by the analytical method used.

Temperalure of Sample upon Recelpt: 2 degrees C |
Cooling Agent Present:Yes |
Cuslody Seal Present:Yes

Chain of Custody Number:020372

Increased MIBK RL for 15363-10 and 13 due to interferences

SIGNATORIES

Brad Moore Hon. B.Sc
M//

SGS Canada Inc |185 Concession St., Lakefield ON, KOL 2HO t 705-652-2143 f 705-652-6365 WWW.Sgs.com

| 1 / 26 Member of lhe $GS Group (SGS SA)



FlN AL REPORT CA15363-JAN21 R

TABLE OF CONTENTS
First Page. 1
Index w2
Resuits 3-13
Exceedance Summary. 14-15
QC Summary. 16-24
Legend 25
L T 1= T OOV OO O RO 26

20210202 2/26



9c/ ¢

S -—— — 500 6/6r sualix-0|

500 661 T swakxduw

- 500 500 G (le10%) aualfx

o S ) Z0 oo ber ausnoy

o - o 500 500 6/6rt . auszuaqikyi3

o - 200 200 B/6r suazuag
- S X319

ynsey 1 ™ N Jojourered

|20z/lo/cz  elegeidues
1o e O—G_.:wm A3NII3ANN - IeUISNpu|/pueped/[enuapisay - | 378vL - ISHVOD / TI0S 7 €64038 = 11
dna eweN ejdwes

8l Joquiny ojdweg {(1108) X318 - €519 :3OVMOVd

500> S0°0 500> 500> 710 LLb 500> L'EL 500 B/6n duslfx-o

500 > 120 500 > L0 150 ooy 100 5z5 500 BT - ewkx-duw

Z99 500 500 6/6n [(BVEEITETe

| 500 > . Z20 S0'0 660 suan|o}

S0°0> 500 S0'0 6/6ri suazUsgiAn3

200> 200> 200> 200> 200> 200> 200> 200> 200 200 6/6r auszuag
X318

ynsey ynsey unsey uneoy sy unsey unsoy unsey 1 ™ N Jejeurrey

T JzozorRz LZ0ZIOnZ  W20ZHONZ LZOZILONE  b20ZONNE \20ZNONZ L2020 \Z0z/l0Ne  eeqeidueg o o
1log log llog llog llog llog tos jlos ey ejdwes GaNISZANN - [BUISNPUNPUEPUBC/IERUBPISAY - | S1GV.L - 3SHVOD /1I0S / £5+03M = 11
9-vHg vHe a-€He gHa Q-zHE zhg a-1Hg LHE eweN ejdwes
1 ol Sk vl €l zL oL 6 Jequiny eiduieg (NOS) X314 - €519 :FOVMOVd
uBWMSN Jor :siejdures

uewman a1 uebeuepy pofoud

21-1£002000-aNS J0efoid
ou| S90S dX3 JuelD

o LZNYM-£9€S1VO

14043 TVNI4




9c /v

610 500 900 - 500> S0 o0 BB - Ty
B I s N ) vo T z8 50 e B
[~ z0 o 10> 10 - 10> z 10 6/6r wnuapghloN |
[ord 0's 9. 9z ozh 1’0 B6/6r pea
e P 5 69 26 10 B/6r1 13ddog) |
- oe o€ e ze iz wo 6Bl 1eq00
8L g9 - 98 e 0L 50 6/6d wnwoiyd
60°0 200> z00 £0°0 zl 200 66 wniped
o z ok zt B or 9t L B/6n ~ uoig
_ 1z0 020 o €20 o “zz0 5T 200 B/6ri a wnyikieg
zz z ! T 0ze Lo B/6r wnyeg
261 g0z ziz voz gl 18l &l 664 E % WBHUOD BIMISION |
B - o sojueBiou| pug sielap
wneey unsoy ynsoy ynsey ynsey unsey ynsey ynsey 1 ™ sHun Iojewumeg
1202/L0/ee 12027401 Z 1202110112 1202/10/12 1Z0znone 1202/\0/LZ 120Z/l0/lz  120zZ/lofie  ejeq ejduss o o
llog los flog os llog og llog o8 ngep edwes Q3INIFIANN - BsnpUPUEEd/EIUAPISEY - | TFVL - ISHVOD / T10S / €510 = 11
a-vHg vHE geHa eHa a-zHe zHg a-LHg IHE oweN eidues
(nos)
1 al st vl gl zl oL 6 tequiny sjdues sojueBiou] pue sEleW - £51L93Y :IOVIOV
_ - o> 10> 10> 20> 20> gL 20 6/6r wnjuses
_ 52 Tt 1z 0 5z 8l g0 6/6r olussIy
fi 90> g0> 80> T 80> 80> £t 80 6/6r Auousyuy
| SOPLPAH
wnsey ey Hneey uneey nsey 5] ™ sHun JejeumeiEg
L202/L0/1Z 1202/10/12 120211012 120210\ Z 1202/10/1Z  ©}BQ odueg -
log jros |log log o Mmew O—QEUW Q3ANI43ANN - [BUISNPU)/PUBBHE/BNUSPISaY - | TEVL - ISUVOD / I0S / E51934 = 11
dna yHE €HE ZHa LHE eureN epuwes
8t 9l i z 6 Jequiny eidures (1108) sepUPAH - £GLOTY :FOVMOV

uewmaN yor :amejdues
UBLUMSN Y31 eBeuely pejad

OI-L£002000-0NS 30eford
ou) sedlIBS dX3 JUOID

Y LENYM-E€9E51VO

140d3d TVNId



9c /S

2I-L£002000-aNS Toefard
U] S3IAIRS dXT JuAID

H LZNYIM-€9e51vD

1H40d3d TVNI4

vz ozh Lo 66 pea
- - g9 26 o 6/6ri 1eddos
- - ot 1z 100 B/6ri - B 1eq0D
o o 6L oL S0 B/ B wnwoo
200 z 200 B/6r wniwpe)
oL o€ L 6/6r uosog
_ 120 i ¥4 200 6/6r wnyifiag
. 0zC 10 B/6rl wnyueg
goL - T - A0 SIMSION
R - S soiuebiou) pue sl
ynsey 1 ™ |un Jejeurrey
o i T 1zZ0zizz  eeq ejdumes B - o -
llos X[ne O—QEwm Q3NIZIANN - [BNSDPU)/pUEPLE/ENUBpISSY - | JTFVL - ISHVYOD / 1I0S / €519 = 41
dna ewe ejdueg
(10s)
8l JoquinN ejdures sojuefiiou] pue seje - £5LOTH TOVIOVI
g T go» h 50> 50> | 50 6/6r uoJog 2|qnjoS JOjEM
[ e ! o £ e 062 o 6/6r1 o ouz
o o, ) - I L 98 3 B6/6r Wwnipeue
1£°0 €20 1Z0 820 4 2000 6/6r wnjuelry
¥0'0 £0°0 £0°0 €00 o 20'0 6/6ri o wnpey,
- o o - ~ (penunuoo) solueblou| pue sElN
sy ynsey Hnsey Hnoey ynsey uneey ey yneey 1 ™ un lejewerd
© lzozhoz  120ZHONE bZ0eiloNke 1202/L012 1202/L0/1Z 1202/L0/k2 120210112 \z0zilo/lz eleqedues B
og llog jes |10 og llog 1os llos XOEW Sjdues Q3NI43ANN - [BUISNPUI/PUBPLE/|BRUAPISOY ~ | TTEV. - ISHYOD / TI0S / €5193M = 1
a-vHg tHE 9-gHa £Hg a-zHg ZHa G-LHE LHE eurN ejdureg
(nos)
2 18 Sl 4} €L zL oL 6 Jequnp ejdwesg sojuetiiou] pue siejlol - £519TY ‘TOVHOVd
uewmsn Jjor .ﬂ.—@—ﬁEﬂm
uewmaN Her ueBeue pejord



9c /9

o6, 6z8 1e's ) 862 187 99’2 500 siun Hd ) Hd
60 iZ0 v10 520 610 50 | 2000 wo/sw ~ Awonpuod
901 Y 9s ol - oL N 10 /6w wnipos VS

. I T £y 19 - ey [ 200 T WniSaUBEN ¥YS

ez 60Z 611 16z o T 96z 600 /6w T wnpED S

50 £l £0 L0 50 ve z0 jun oN ~ opey uoydiospy wnipog

500> 500 > 500> 500> 500> 20 500 6/6n Ainosepy
o {dH0) eul0

ynsoy ynsoy unsey wsey unsoy unsey nnsey 1 ™ N sejourseg

1202IL0RE 1202/10/12 1202/10/12 12021042 1202/10/12 1202/10/12 120Z/10/kz  e1eq odwEs
g llos o y10g jlos o llog ey O—%Gw Q3NI43ANN - [eUisnpuj/puBpped/enuepisey - | 319V.L - ASHYOD / 0S / €SLOIY = 11
dna vHa €Ha zHa 9 1Hg aLHE tHE eumN eidues

8l ol ol z b o 6 Joquiny ejdueg (110S) (dHO) 48O - EGLOTY ‘FOVHOVd

. 0> | S0 6/6r uolog s|qN{oS Ja3BM

- - - €l 062 _ 20 6/6r1 ourz

=.— == — o T o8 e B/Brt o wnjpeueA

N o N ¥2'0 ) sz z000 BB o N wnueln

o T €00 E T 7 wnieuy

B g0 | &0 | 500 - b/Br 18A)IS

I Il z8 ~ g0 ged - — oon|

N o . Vo> z v o — mruepaAoN|

(PenupUO9) SOUEBIOU| PUE SIEIRI

unsey 5 ™ N selpwesed
. o o \20Z/L0/CZ  ©jeq sjduss N )
llos gep O—Q_.—uww A3NIJ3ANN - jeuisnpuj/pueppied/ienuepisey - | 31gv.L - 3SHVOD / 110S / €5193d = 1]
dna eweN ejdures
(nos)
8l JequinN ejdures sojuefliou] pue s[ejlel - £519N :2OVMOVd

uewMmaN yor :siejdures
UBWMSN 4o uebeuep pefoid

01-1£00Z000-aNS J0efad
ou se0IMBS dXT JueiiD

o LZNVM-E9ESLVD 14043y TVNIH



9c/ L

050U
S3A S3A S3A SIA S3A S3A S3A S3A = ON /S84 1e auaseq o} pawunas weiBojewoIyd
05 > 05 > 05> 05 > 05 > 05 > 05 > TS 0zL 05 B/6ri h {080-v£0) ¥4
05 > 05 > 05> T 05> 05 > 18 05 > 05 > o0vz os  bd (reo-910) €4
e o —— —— e oL o 66l {9+0-010) 24
ok > m B - 3 01> B o 6B {010-80) XaLa+3
T o> i 01> 5z o B/Br T 0r089) 14|
=i . . SOHd
unsey Hnsey wnsey ynsey ynsey ynssy unsey Insey 1 ™ awun sopweEd
" lzozivore 1202/L0/12 1202Z/L0/kT 1202/10/12 1202110/l 120ehone 120Z/L0/LZ 120z/L0/lZ  epBq ejdwes i N N
Jlog Jlog log 1os jlog |log llos |log xnepn O_QEGW Q3NIJIANN - Ieushpu)/puepiEd/|enuepisay - | 31gV.L - ISHVYOD /1I0S / E51D3X = L1
avHE vHE a-eHg €Ha aZHS ZHa a1Hg IHE swep sjdwes
1 9l sl vl £l z o 6 Joquiny ejdwes (1109) $OHd - £51L93YH :3OVXOVd
00> s00>  S00> 500> 500> _ 1500 S0°0 b/6n - eplefD 2ol
20> 20> 20> 20> 20> 99'0 20 6/60 1A Es_EoEo_
- - o (penunuod) (dx0) 19410
ynsey wnsey ynsey wnsoy unsey nsey uneey 3] ™ swan sojsweed
o T 1202/10/22 120zIL0/L2 1202/L0LT 1Z0Z0NZ  L20ZINONE LZ0Z/L0/LZ 120Z/10/lz  ©1BQ ojdues
1os llos oS Ios nos og 1os e O_QEWQ GIANISIANDN - [BEIENDU|FUEMIREudpsay - | 378V - ISYVOD /I0S/ £5193 = 11
dna vHa eHg ZHa o1Ha rLHg IHg oumBN ejdues
8t gl ¥l z L o 6 Joquiny eidureg (1108) (dHO) 13O - £5L9TY TDVXOVd

uBWMSN Jor ae|dueg
UBWMON Yo -Jefeueiy pofoid
OILE00Z000-aNS efoid
ou| S20IAIRG dXT JUelKD

Y LENYM-£9e51vO

140434 1vNId



9c /8

© s00> 500> 500> 500> 500> 500> 500> 00> S0'0 500 6/6r auBYIaWOIOYOOWOIAI]
T e00> 500> 500> S00> 500> 500> 500> svo> 500 500 G uuojowosg |
500> 500> 00> 500> "~ c00> 500> 00> 500> 500 500 66 SUBYPUIIONDIPOLIOIG
- . __ . (DON) SWHL
ynsey wneey nsey noey ynsey ynsey unsey Hnoey " ™ N Tojourerey
T leoziorz 1202/10/12 120Z/L0NNZ 1202/10/12 1202/L0NLT 120eIL0/LZ 120210712 \20z/l0/l  eyeq ejdwes o
liog 110g 108 108 log 105 oS llog Xoep sjdures G3NISIANN - JeUISnPUYPUBRBC/BIUSPISSY - | TNEV.L - ISHVOD / T0S / €5403u = 11
IvHE vHE g-eHg €HB a-zHg ZHg aIHE IHE eweN sjdues
I 9l sl b gl zL oL 6 JoquinN ejdures (10S) (DOA) SWHL - 5193 :FOVMOVd
o ogou
. ON / S8A 1e aulaseq o) patunjas weisbojewolyn
h 05 6/6r ~ {(osoted) bd
o 05 6/6ri (reo-9L0) ed
- o 6/6r (91000} 24
- ot - (010-90) xaLa-14
Tl ) - ot B/ - {01099) 14
- - SOHd
ynsey n ™ sun Jojeuerey
— N l20z/l0Ze  e1eq eldwes -
llos Xiep O—Q—-._dm Q3NIIIANN - [BUISNPU|/PUBPUBL/|ERUSPISSY - | T1EY.L - 3SHY0D / JI0S/ £5193d = L1
dna owep ojdureg
8l Jequinp ejdures (110S) SDHd - £5193Y :FDVMOVd

UBWMaN Hor :slejdures
uewMSN Yer ueBeuep pofoid
OI-L£00Z000-ANS J0efoid
QU S3dUBG dX3 U

Y LENYI-£9eS1VO

140d3d TVNIH



9C /6

zz - % 93y LNg suedoudoiojy)-|-owoig-z Lng
| T 36 - o, 09y LNG w:ou:mno%._
16 - % 99y Ung yp-suelpasoloiyda-zg’L ung
- o - o ~ saebouns 50A
jnsey 11 ™ N mjeureed
- - lzoziloize  ewmeqetdureg -
jog Xgep efdureg G3NIZIANA - IBLSNPUI/PUEPE/BIUSPISSY - | TGV - 3SUVOD / TI0S / 51O = 11
dna sure\ ojdweg
gL Jequiny sidwes (710S) seyeBaung DOA - EGLDTY ‘FOYMOV
06 68 16 88 26 6 ) zzr - T9 08y Ung suedoidoso|y)-|-owoig-z Lng
v 6z 16 i 6 e8¢ 6 T 6 - 9% 00y UNg 3UaZUBGOIONYOWOIg NG
96 6 s6 ) 6 86 6 9% [ . - % 09y Lng YP-BUBUIS0IOIIC-Z | UNS
- B seieboung J0A
neey sy nsey nsey nsey Hnsey nnsey Hnsey 11 ™ KJun lejpurered
- L2oz/o/ce B 1202/10/Le L2oe/Lo/Le 1e0z/Lo/e Leozione FN.ON\ro\ |34 Lcoe/1o/Le Leoe/ ro:Nl aed ﬁ_ﬂww
nos llog log log og log log 08 Xpepy ejdures Q3NI4IANN - [BUISTPUY/PUBPLECY/[BIUBPISEY - | T1EV.L - ISHVOD /1I0S / E5LO3Y = 11
9-vHg vHa q-€Hg £Hg g-cHd cHg q-LHg LHa ewe ejdureg
2 ol St vl el zl oL 6 Joquin ojdures (N08) sepeboung DOA - £5193Y :IOVIOV
500> 500 500 6761 aueBWOIo|OOWOIqI]
| 500> S0°0 soo  opd T - uuoyowolg
500 > S0°0 S00 6/6r auey)aL0Io|yoIpoLLoLg
- : B - - (OON) SWHL
Jnsey 11 ™ qYPun Jejouried
- - o 120Z/\0/zz  eeq ejdwes
liog xep ejdueg QINIZANN - [BUSNPUI/PUBLE/IETUSPISSY - L TTEVL - ISUVOD / T0S / 85103 = 11
dna ouweN ejdwes
I JequinN ojdwes (10S) (DON) SIWHL - €519TY :IOWVIOV

UBWMSN Jar ng_eam
UBWMSEN YSI eBeuepy oefoud
OI-L£002000-aNs Joefoid
oU| S80S dXT TUSID

o LZNYI-€9ES1VO

140d34 TvNI4



9c /0L

| 500> 500> 500 > 500 S0°0 B/6rn 18W3 1Ang--IAue |
S 50> 60> S0 S0 6/6r suoisy 1Kingos) AU |
m 0> 60> T go»> 50 ) 6/6r o auojey AyIe 1Ay
500> 500> 500 > 500 500 6/6r B auBXaH-u.
_ 500> G00> 00> 500 500 6/6r ) aplwIoIgIpaUBIALT |
500 > 500 > 500 > _ 500 500 6/6r "~ (i=i01) suadosdosojyoip-g’l
[ €00 > £0°0 > £0°0 > ’ | €00 6/6r auadoudoioydip-¢g‘L-suen
€00 > €00 > €00 > €00 B/6r auadoidoloydIp-¢*L-s1o|
500> 500> SO0 > S0'0 500 B6/6r ~ suedosdoioia-z'L
c00> 00> 500> _ 500 500 6/6ri 2UBJAZ010|YOIT-Z L -5
500> 500> 500 > S0°0 500 B/brt suslAyjeoI0IyOIQ-Z'|-SUe)
500> 500> 500 > 800 S0°0 6/6n suajAyieoiolyolg- 'l
500> 500> 500> 500 500 B/6T aUBROINDIGT |
| 00> 00> 500> 500 500 B/l aueROIOIOIT-L |
" 500> 500> 500 > S00 500 6/60 aUBIBLLICIONIPOIOIYOIG
500> 500 >  co0> 500 S00 6/6r1 susZUSQOIORIG-' |
so0>  S00> 00> 500 500 6761 3UaZUBQOIONDIQ-E'Y |
so0>  S00> 500> 00 500 576 aUBZUBOIONAIZ |
500> 500> 500> 500 S0°0 5/6ri uuojoIo)yd
500> 500> 500> ) 500 500 T aUszuUBgOIOND |
S0°0> 500> 500> | S0°0 500 B/Bri apuo|yoERe) UogeD |
500> S00> "~ co0> " S0°0 500 B/6r1 aueyeLIOWOlg
i 50> wmu > ) m@ > S0 S0 6/6r auoeoY
- - SD0A
ey unsoy neey ynsey wnsey ynsey nnsey nsey 1 ™ sHun Jejourerd
" lz0Tih0iEe 1202/10/12 1202/L0/12 1202/L0/LZ 1202/L0/1T 1202/10/1Z 1202/L0/\2 \Z02/\0/ke  ejeq ejdwes -
nog 1o 1108 110 110 liog 10s liog B ejdues G3NISIANN - [BUISNPUl/PUE BC/IENUSPISSY - L 3TEV.L - ISHVOD / TIOS / E5193¥ = 1
avHa vHe aeHg E£Hg a-gHe zHa G-LHa tHE suEN ejdures
1 ol St vl €l zl o 6 Jequiny ejdures (MOS) SDOA - €519 :3DYMOVd

uewMaN Jor asejdureg
UBWAMBN Yol ueBeue oefoud

QI-L£002000-aNS Fefoid
2u| seomIes dx3 JuejiD

o LZNYl-€9€5I VO

140d3d TvNId



Sc/ Lt

OIFLE002000-aNs Foefoid
au| sedpes dX3 el

Y LZNVYIM-E9eSIvO

140d3d TVNI4

200> 200> 200> 200> 200> 200> 200> 200> 200 200 bybrl SPUOD JAUIA
500> 500> 500> S00> 500> 500> 500> 500> ST0 500 b/6r SUBYIBLLOIONYOIOIYOL |
500> 500> 500> 500> 500> s00> 500> 500> T 500 500 6/6r o suajhigaoiolyou ]
500> 500 > 500> 500> 500 > 500 > 500> 500> S0°0 500 7 A SUBLIROIOIOUL-Z | |
500> 500> 500> 500> 500> s00>  s00> 500> 00 00 B/6 suBylB0IOIOLL-L L L
~ s00> 500 > 500> 500 > S0°0 > 500 > 500> 500> S0'0 S0°0 B/6r1 auelaoo|RNBL-Z'TL )
500> 00>  S00> S00> 500> 500> 500> 500> 500 S00 67611 aUBLJR0I0[YOBAS L'} }’ L
500> 500> 500> s00> 500> 500> 500> 500> S0°0 S0°0 6/6r o susIAueCIOIOERR L
500> 500> 500> 500> 500> 500>  s00> " s00> [ 500 soo o auaifig
500> 500> 500> 500> 500> 500> 500> 500> [ 500 soo ol | spyoID SuskgeN
. ) - (panuRUOD) SOOA
meey unsey ynsey unesy ynsoy unsey unsoy unsey ] ™ sun Jejpurered
1202/10/2Z 120Z/L0/\Z L20Z/10/1Z 1202/10/12 1202/10/L2 1202110112 L20Z/L0ILZ T 120z/0/Z  e1eq sjdwes
los log log llog los log os llog Xgep eidwes QEANIJZANN - [BUISNPUY/PUBPIBL/BAUAPISSY - | ITEVL - ISHYOD /110S / E5193M = 11
a-vHg vHa q-gHa £Hg q-zHg ZHa a-LHa LHE sweN ejdureg
1L 9l St i €l zh ok 6 JoquinN ejdures (N0S) SDOA - €G51DTY :FOVIOV
uewWwMaN yor aejdueg
UBLIMAN Yo ieBeurey ojold



Q< / Cl

S00 500 6/6r1 143 Ana-AuBN

— o so | g0 B/6r1 auojay 1ngost IAyiely

" o S0 50 B/Bri 3u0)sY AU 1AL

) - ) o o h 500 500 6/6r auexap-u

I N N 500 o0 &6t apiwoiqipaus A3 |

o i o 500 500 B/6rt ) B (ileyon) mcwaoaeo_ﬁ_u.m.r_

T . T - €00 Te6d gﬂ*oaoho_co_u.m._‘.m:m.:_

- €00 B/6r o o w_._wacﬁo._o_co_v.m._‘.w_&

= 500 500 ~ BBH T auedoidololyoiqQ-z' L

T S00 | S00 6/6r 3UBJAYIR0IOIRIA-Z S

[ 00 500 6/6r1 BUBIAYIB0I0YIO-Z" | -SUESH

- o 500 | 500 B/6r auajAyeosolyata-1°}

- a — 500 so0 b6 TN EL T Ry

o o 500 500 B/6ri aueR0IOIRIT-L '}

S0°0 S0'0 B/6n SUBLRSWOIONJPOIOIYIIQ

S - . 500 s0°0 6/6 © suszusqoiomald-b'h

B a o 500 oo o6 ) 3UaZUBGOIOIYDIQ-E'L

- o ) 500 oo oo N auszUBGOIONOIA-Z |

500 ) B/6r1 uLI0J0I0IyD

| - S00 500 B/6ri sU9ZUAGOIOD

—————— 500 500 6/6¢ ~ apuoyoese) UoGIED

i ) o s00 | oo o ) - eueypswownsg|

[ ) 50 50 B/6d - 3U0jE0Y
B . . . SOOA

Hnsey 11 ™ un lsjeurEed

. - o o \20z/l0/zz  eyeq ejduies
1os Xgen O_Q_Eww Q3NIJIANN - [BUISNPU|/PUBPLEL/IBNUBPISSY - | 3TEV.L - ISYVOD / TI0S/ €5193a8 = L]
dna eweN e|dureg

gl JoquinN ojdweg (10S) SO0A - €5LOTY :IDVHOV

uewmaN yor asejdureg
UBWMON 4o soBeuep pofold
OI-L£002000-GNS Josfold
ou S30IMBS dXT JUe|LD

1d0d3d 1vNIH

d LCNYr-£9ES1LYO



@z /el

00> 200 200 6/6ri apuojyD AUIA|
h 500> 520 S0°0 B/6r ~aueyjewolonyoso)yol] |
S0°0 > 500 S00 661 aualipaoIoyo] |
- 500> 500 500 6/6rl B ) aUBIR0I0YOU1-Z' L
500> 00 | 500 6/6r © eueysoo/ UL LT |
00> 500 500 B/6rl 3UBLIB0IOIORIS LT L}
500> S0°0 500 b/brt aueyjeololyoenaL-Z' L'} L
500> <00 500 6/6r ) 2UBIA30IOIUOERE |
5070 > S0°0 500 [ . aualkig
) 00> 500 500 B/ori apLOIUD BUBAEAIN
(penupuoa) sDOA
jinsey 1 ™ N JepurRIed
- 1202/10/zz  e1eq eidwes -
log X9epn O_gm A3NIJZANN - [eLIsnpuU)/pUepIBd/|BRUepISSY - L IEV.L - ISYVOD / 1I0S/ ES1OIH = 17
dna sureN ejdureg
gl Jequiny ejdweg (110S) SOOA - €519 :3OVYHOVd

uewmeN yor :arejdweg
uewmeN Jor uebeuepy pejoid
OI-1£002000-aNS Fo6ford
Ul SBOINIBS dX3T JUeiID

Y LZNYr-€9ESI VO

1H0d3d TVNId



FIN AL REPORT CA15363-JAN21 R

EXCEEDANCE SUMMARY
REG153/SOIL/
COARSE - TABLE
1-
II Residentfal/Parklan
| d/Industrial -
UNDEFINED
Parametsr Method Unlts Resuit L1
—— — - — — ———
BH1
F1 {C6 to C10} - CCME Tier 1 Hg/g
F2 (C10 to C16) CCME Tier 1 Hg/g
Ethylbenzene - EPA 5035A/5030B/8260C pglg_
n-Hexane EPA 5035A/5030B/8260C B uglg
Toluene EPA 5035A/5030B/8260C Hg/g
Xylene Mixiure ) EPA 5035A/5030B/8260C Ha/g
BH1-b
F2 (C10to C16) CCME Tier 1 Ha/g
Methyl Isobutyl Ketone EPA 5035A/5030B/8260C ng/g
Xylene Mixiure EPA 5035A/5030B/8260C ug/g
BH2
F1 {Céto C10) CCME Tier 1 Ha/g 3510
F2 (C10 to C16) CCME Tier 1 B vglg 2420
Ethylbenzene EPA 5035A/5030B/8260C ya/g - 95.6
n-Hexane EPA 5035A/5030B8/8260C Hg/g - 1.42
Toluene EPA 5035A/5030B8/8260C Ha/g - 4.57
Xylene Mixture EPA 5035A/5030B8/8260C ug/g 511
BH2-b
F1 (C6 to C10) CCME Tier 1 ug/g
F2(C101to C16) - CCME Tier 1 ug/g
Ethylbenzene EPA 5035A/5030B/8260C ug/g
Methyl Isobutyl Ketone EPA 5035A/5030B/8260C Hg/g
n-Hexane EPA 5035N5030BI8@C vgl/g
Xylene Mixture EPA 5035A/5030B/8260C pa/g
BH3
F1(C6to C10) CCME Tier 1 pg/g
F2 (C10 to C16) CCME Tier 1 ng/g
n-Hexane - EPA 5035A/5030B/8260C palg
Xylene Mixture EPA 5035A/5030B/8260C ug/g
BH4
| Xylene Mixture EPA 5035A/50308/8260C Halg
DUP

F1(C6to C10) CCME Tier 1 nglg 1020 e e
F2(C1010 C16) _ CCME Tier 1 nglg ar? R

20210202 14126




FINAL REPORT CATS362-JANZI R

EXCEEDANCE SUMMARY

REG153 / SOIL /

| COARSE - TABLE

| 1-
Residential/Parklan

; d/Industrial -

| UNDEFINED

l Parameter Method Units Result L1

DUP (continued)

Ethylbenzene EPA 5035A/50308/8260C Hg/g 114
n-Hexane - EPA 5035A/5030B/8260C olg 146
Toluene B B ~ EPAS5035A/5030B/8260C wlg 022 s
Xylene Mixture B EPA 5035A/50308/8260C gl 747 | 005

20210202 15126



Q¢ /9l 20204202

gzl 72 06 ozt o8 €8 0z anN 0> z0 6/6n LZNYI-G605Y)S IA Wwniwoiyo
Y6iH Mo UbIH M0 (%)
) Kiencooy )
o | o ) olds ov ady
ke | coven
sHwr Aierosay oyds | Ty A1oAc0ey | — | Jou .
108 / eids e Sjuerd oIds/SOT ejesjidng powsy ™ sun yreq OO jewery

ZLO-NY- MY FISIANTIYO-3I 81 [BWSI| | VOG0EVdT/9 81Ty POYION
¥4S AQ WN|WOIYY) JUS[BABXSH

[:74% SL 001 0zt 08 201 0c aN 500> 500 6/6r LZNVr-980SWYIS apueAQ sa14
YO mor | yBH »o1 (%) m .
(%)
~ | e Aronooey (%)
o) frencoey &) olds ov ady _ [
n_E_._.boSocz ayds s Aercoey . yuejg eouareley
19y / olidS X0ep yuelg eNids/So1 ejeo)idng powpeiN ™ N Y%eq OO | lejeweeg
- SOO-NY-IMVI-Y4SIANII-YD-3W Jed [euwsju] | 00SH NS ‘POISH
¥d4S Aq splueiD
VN oLt 06 66 oL L 200°0> Z000 wo/gw LZNYP-9010TM3 Ayagonpuod
uBH mn yBiH Moy (%) _
) Kioncosy | (%)
) faencoent ) 7 ods _ ov (o))
fusanooay AIOA00®
s oyds s -] . Nuelg eouale)ey
‘Jou / iidS xjnen Suetg exids/So epeojidng poweiN ™ s|un _ yopeq 90 IojeuREg
900-NY-X¥T-IMIANTSYD-TW 431 [eWISiU| | 01.GZ WS/0109 Yd3 ‘POISN
Ayagonpuo)
AIVANNS 00

H LZNVI-E9ESLVD 1H0d3d VNI



9c/ Ll 20201202

- . = |
(33 0L 68 43 08 6 0c € SL°0> S1'0 Bw LZNVI-+200983 wnipos ¥vs

€L 0L S6 ozk 08 66 0z b 200> 200 /6w LZNVr-£200953 wnjseubely ¥vs
o€l 0L 6 ozl 08 1oL 0z £ 600> 60°0 /Bw LZNVI-¥200983 wnpied Yvs
: : — ——— = :
| uBH Mo 4BiH Mol (%)
) | fencoen )
) frenzoey L ) ojds ov ady
Kieacoay syur] Aseaooey
awn 7 9=n_w _ Kion . o I I | |_ yuerg oduaIe)y
19 / oS qaEN yuelg oids/SO1 @jeo)idng _ potpen ™ sun YNeq 0D lejeuraied

00NV 1-IdSIANAFYD-TW 581 [ewsiul | 0109 ¥d3/102969% IO ‘POUISW
S30-d2| - sejdwes snosnbe u) sjejapy

oEk oL 9% ozt 08 04 0z an 500> 500 B/6n }ZNYI-ESLOSWI fnsepy |

[ oweH | o Wi w1 | ) _ _ _

| o Arencoey (%)

— b |

w Rroncooy %) olds ov ady

Aierooey Kienooey
“ aun R | ods smin | | juerg esualejoy _
_ 194 / eviids x08 uerg exids/sOT _ ejeo)idng PoweiN ™ swn Y%eq 0D soowered |

YOO-NY-MT-3dSIANIFYD-TW 11 [Bwalul | GbZ VI L L. Yd3 :POUIBW
SYVYAD £g Ainosey

AMVIWANS 00

¥ LZNVI-E9ESLYO 140d3Y 1vNId



9c /el

ok oL 66 oel 0z 101 oz 3 20> L0 5/6r
OEL 0L 66 0l 0L v0L oc 0 e 3 6/6r
0EL 0L 66 oel 0L 201 oz S 200°0> 2000 6/6r
0€L 0L 66 oel 0L 601 0z 4 200> 200 6/6r
0eL 0L 26 ogl 0L 0L 0z aN 10> 20 6,61
o€l 0L vL o} 0L €01 0z aN 80> 80 6/6r1
oEl 0L [o1o] o€} 0L 201 0e b 10> 1’0 B6/6n
o€l 04 101 oEl 172 ] (474 b 50> 50 B/6n
o€l 0L S6 0EL 0L 90} 0e L 10> 10 6/6n
oet 0L 16 OEL 0L 901 oz 3 10> 10 6/6ri
oet 0L 66 o€l 0L S0k (174 3 50> S0 6/6n
ol 0L y0I ocl 0L ¥0L (174 3 100> 100 6,6n
otk oL 10t 0k 0L €01 V74 € 200> z0°0 6/6r
oeL 0L 06 0t 172 96 4 € > } B;6r
oel 0L £6 o€l 0L 66 4 4 200> 200 6611
ogk oL g6 o€l oL 801 0z 0 1'0> L0 B/6n
ol oL 16 ogt oL 204 0z b S0> S0 6/6r1
o€l oL A1) otL oL 00} 0z aN S0°0> S0°0 6/6n
| uwmH | mo % YBH »o (%) . w : R
©) | fencoey ) =
sy Aenooeny ods spur & exdg ov ady i

‘19 / @diidS Xiep Hueig aiids/SOT .38__._8 . poweN ™ [N

LZNYr-€SL0SW3
LZNVI-ESLOSNA
LZNVI-e51L0SINT
LZNVYr-eSLOSW3
LZNVYIr-€SLOSW3
LZNVT-€SL0SNT
LZNVYr-ESLOSWI
LZNVI-ESLOSINT
LZNVYI-€SLOSINI
LZNVYIr-ESLOSING
LZNYI-€SLOSW
LZNVYIr-eSLOSWI
LENVI-€SH0SWIT
LENVI-€SLOSW3
LZNVI-€SLOSIN3
LZNVYIr-ESLOSING
LZNVYIr-ESLOSING
LENVr-€SLOSNI

eouaie}ey
Yoreq o0

20201e0e

ouiz
wnipeueA |
wnueln
wngey .
wniuses
Auownuy
peaq
oI |
wnuapgAjoW
Jaddo)
wniwoyd
Negod
wniwped
uolog
wnyikieg
wnpeg
olUasIY

JoAIS

lelouried

SO0-NY->y1-3dSIANIFYD-IW 1ad [Bwe=id] | 97002 am\omomﬂqam ‘PO .

SW-dDI/elbar-enby - jog ul sieleiy

o FZNYM-E9251v0

140d3d “IVNI4

AHVAINNS 0D

55



9 /61 70204 20T

ovl 09 201 ozh 08 904 oe aN 05> 0s B6/6rt LZNVI-YSEONDD (050-+€9) ¥4
ovk 09 104 ozt 08 904 o an 05> 0s B/6ri LZNVI-PSEONDD (¥£0-910) €4
orl 09 L0} oz 08 90L og aN [1]53 oL 6/6r LZNVM-FSEONDD (910-010) 24
YSiH Mo uBiH Mo (%)
(%) | & . 0 _
%) Kioncoey (%) . = oy a
£
] Alercoey opds s Aieacoey
| ) o o - yueld _ 90Uy
‘oY / oids Xuen _ Sueig ejids/SoN ejeolidng pogen 0™ _ sun | yjeq oD Ioewend
| - - P ——

OLO-NY- Y T-ODIANIIFYO-3W 1401 [ewsl| | | Jo11 IWQD POl
(v3-z4) suoquecolpAH wnejogad

oyl 09 004 (174} 08 S0L o ot oL> oL 6/6r LZNYr-08£0W0D (019-90) 14

ot 09 ool ozl 08 90} og aN oL> oL 6/6d 12834-5000WOD (010-90) 14
| uBH Mo uoiH Mo %)
| | Kionoowyy ) _
[ ) | Kioaco0y (%) o

ojds ov ady
Aiencosy sy Aleacoey

m|3_=m L onds | ey soucIe)ey
_ 19y / oidS Xpew el eids/sOT egsopdng pogeN ™ spun Yoreq o0 loeurered

— — /

0LO-NV-YYT-ODIANIFYD-3W -1 [ewaw | | Jo1L SNOD ‘PO
(1.4) suoqreoospAH winejoged

AHUVNANS DD

N LZNVIE985LYD 140d3d TvNId



9c / 0c¢ Z0201.207

ozh 08 004 oz 0 S0°0 sypun Hd 12934-6000Q4Y Hd
C wH | me N oH | Mo (%) ,
%) |
| L | Kenaooey (%)
) 7 faencosy ) ojds v ady
Ko,
s Alercsay oyids | S Aieacoey B | quelg eouaIs)ey
Jou / ojids xjen Sueig o)idg/g0 eeojidng poueiN ™ s|un 4ieq o0 Jejeuwrered
LOO-NY-Y T IMIANIFYD-3N 48 [ewsiv] | 005y WS -POURWN
Hd
AHSVHANS OD

o LZNVI-E9ESLYO 140d3Y TvNId



9c/ Lc

ort 0s oL (61 0s 88 0s aN GO0 >

ol 0s 6 oel 09 16 0s anN S0°0>

ovL 0s 86 oel 09 16 0s aN S00>

| ovl 0s 16 ol 09 96 0s ON 00>
_ ol 0s 8 (0748 0s 56 0s aN S0>
ovL 0s 96 0El 09 66 0s anN S00>

ovL 0s 86 ogl 09 001 0s aN G500 >

[8)48 0s 20k ocl 09 96 0s ON S0°0>

_ ovL 0s 96 oEl 09 16 0s aN S0°0>
ovL 0s 16 otl 09 86 0s aN S00>

_ ol 0s G8 oct 09 86 0S8 aN 600>
ovl 0S €01 ot} 09 16 0s aN G00>

oviL 0s 6 otl 09 86 0s aN G000 >

1] 49 0s 66 [1]4 09 16 0s aN S0°0>

ol 0s 16 1143 09 86 0s aN S00 >

ovL 0s 201 0EL 09 66 05 anN S0°0 >

[¢148 0s SSN (0141 09 1oL 0s aN G00>

7 ol oS SSN oel 09 86 0s aN S00>
_ oviL 0s SSN oel 09 06 0s anN S0°0 >
ovi 0s SSN 0143 09 001 0s anN G0'0 >

CwH | ome | YBIH 7 no %) . -
)
W] hencoo W frencoo ®
] Aercoay ouds s Aloacosy oyds o) -4 ady

Jjuslg
‘Jou / ovids xgepy yueg oNIdS/SO epeojdng pPoyeiN

S0°0 6/6rl LZNVI-6LE0NDD
S0°0 6/6r LZNYM-6LE0N0D
S0°0 6/61 LZNVYI-6.E0N0D
200 6/6r LZNYM-6LE0NDD
S0 6/6r LZNYr-6LE0N0D
S0°0 6/6r1 LZNY-6LE0N0D
500 B/6r LZNY-6LE0NDD
S0°0 6/6r LZNVI-6.E0N09
S0°0 B/6ri LZNVI-6.E0N0D
500 661 LZNYI-62E0N0D
S0°0 B/6ri LZNVI-6LE0N0D
S0°0 6,61 LZNV(-6.€0MN0D
500 6,6 LZNVI-6LE0N0D
500 661 LZNYM-6LE0NOD
500 6/6ri LZNVI-6,€0N0D
500 6/6ri LZNVYI-6.€0N0D
S00 66r 12834-2200WOD
500 B/6ri 12834-2200W0D
500 6;6r 12934-2200N0D
500 6/6r 12934-220000D
_ eouase}y
™ SN Yaeq o0

Y00-NY-Iv-DDIANIFYO-IN 481 [eWwaiu) | D09¢8/I0S0SNVSE0S VT ‘PO

20coteoe

sueylBWOWOIg
uvojowosg
BsUBUJaWOI0[Y2(pOWOIg
auazuag

3UO}aoY
suazUBgoIoIYIIa-+'L
auazuaqololyAa-£'L
suedoidosoyaig-g‘L
aueujaoIoyaIa-Z' L
suazUBqoIO|YIIT-Z'L
ausjApsoloya-1‘L
SUBLRS0I0IURIA-L 'L
aueyjsosojyouL-z'L' L
sueyle0IolYOBNS1-2'Z L}
suey)zoI0udL -1t L' L
aueyjeololyoena gL'l
aud|Ax-0

auajAx-d/w

QUEX3H-U

auazuaqiiy)3

lejoureied

so|ueblO 8|ijeloA

d LZNVYM-E9EG1YD

140d3y TVNId

AUVANS OO




9c /e

orl 0s 96 OEL 09 96 0s aN
ovl 0s L6 oel 09 ool 0s aN
ort 0s 18 (31543 09 16 0s aN
orl 0s 16 oelL 09 66 0s Z

| ovL 0s 16 oglL 09 96 0s anN

_ ;4% 0S ¥OL oel 09 00l 0s anN

oo 08 ) oSt 09 16 0s an

| ovtL 0S8 8L 0] 48 09 6 0s anN
oyl 0s 6 0147 0s 96 0S anN
ovl 0s 06 ovlL 0s 6 0s aN
(0,41 0s €L ocl 09 g6 0s 9
orl 0s 6 ogL 08 86 05 anN
ovt 0s 90} ol 09 66 0s 9
ovL 0S 0L oyl 0S5 9 0s anN
ovh 05 16 o€l 08 16 05 an
orl 0s 16 ocl 09 96 0% anN
orl 0S 0ot ocel 09 86 0S anN
oyl 0s 86 0143 09 16 05 aN
ovl 0s 1] oel 09 86 0S5 anN
or) 0s 6 ocl 09 16 0s anN

M moy | YBiH Cmor %

(%)
T Kioaooey ) foncomd ®
) Aleacosy | onds sy AioA0oey enids ov ady
3o / enIdS XIEN HEg MMS/SOT aeondng

S0°0~>
€00 >
S0°0 >
500>
S0'0>
S0'0>
500>
S0°0>
S0>
S0>
S00 >
S0°0 >
S0°0>
S0°0>
SO0 >
€00 >
S0'0>
S00 >
S0'0 >

S00>

sueig
POy

G0'0
€00
S0°0
S0°0
S0°0
S0'0
500
S00
S0
g0
500
S0°0
S0°0
S0°0
S0°0
€00
S0°0
500
S0°0

S0°0

m\mq..
B/6r
6/6r
6y6r
6/6r
6/61
6,61
6/6r
6/6r
B/6r
6/6r
6/6r
B/6r
6/6r
6/6r
6yrl
6/6r
6/6r
6/6r

B/6r

sun

LZNVI-6.E0WNDD
LZNYI-6.E0W0D
LENVI-6LE0NDD
LZNVI-6.E0NDO
LZNVYI-6LE0WNOO
LZNVI-6LE0WNDD
FZNVYI-8LE0NDD
LENVI-6LE0NDD
LZNVYI-6LE0NJO
LZNVYM-6LE0NDD
LZNVI-6LEQ0NDD
LZNVYI-6LE0NDD
LENVI-6LE0WID
LZNVI-6LE0NDD
LZNVI-6LE0WDO
LZNVYI-6L£0N0O
LZNVP-6LE0NDO
LZNVI-6LE0NDD
LZNVI-6LE0NDD
LZNVYI-6LE0NDO

soussoley
\Wieq 50

2020izne

BUBIAYIB0IOYON |
suadordoio|yoip-g'L-suey) |
sus|jAyjsololyolq-g' L -suesn
auanjoL
susjAyjaolo|oena |
sualig
apuojyD suaifyen
layi3 g
auoey 1AIngos] Ao
auojey Kipe iiuieiy
suEXaH-U
aplwoigipausiAp3
auezuaqiiyia
SueyjaLWoIoN[HPOIoIYIa
suBylBWOlOYIOWOIqI]
auadoidoiolyoip-¢' | -s10
auaifyleoIolydIa-z'1-s12
ULIOJOIOND
suszUaqoIoly) |

9pUOIYOE.}R} UOGIED

opumed |

YOO-NY-X9T-0DIANIFYI-3W o1 |ewsiu| § D09Z8/a0€0S/VSEQS V3 :PoyIeN .

(panupuoa) soebio e)nejoA

o LZNVYIr-£9e5iv0

140d3d TVNI4

AYYNANS 00



oz / €T 20201202
o€l oL 101 ozk 08 0L oc 0 g'0> S0 66¢1 LZNVP-£900983 uoiog 3|qn|os Jojepm 7
uBiH mo | @ | uBH 7 mo1 (%) |
A — Kioaooey
(%) Kionoooy (%) %)
sy AsoAoosy . exids ov 7 ady
R | yuelg eouae)ey
‘Joy / yids xqnen _ yueg eNids/SO ajeojidng poyte ™ ayun yajeq oD Jopoweied
00-NY- Y 1-3dS [ANIFFVO-3N )81 W] | +0/€ Gl "D9Y°0 ‘PO
uolog 9i|qn|os J3IeM,
ovl 0s 98 ovh 05 8 0s an 200> 200 6/6r LZNV-6LE0WDD |pUOIYD JAUIA
oyl 0s oL oyl 0s 68 0s an 500> S0°0 6/6d LZNVI-62E0W0D BUBLIAWOIONYOIOIYOL L
[ uomH e YBIH w0 ) _
(%)
— Atoaooey (%)
b fuencoen %) ojds ov ady _
AKionooey s Alorcoe
sun _ i s | - jueig eouale)ey
"Joy] / OjidS XN yuelg oids/sO1 eeojdng poweN ™ /N yieq SO 7 lejeureled

POO-NY-AYT-ODIANI Y I-3N 381 _mEmE_ | .Oommm\momom\,&mmom Vd3 PoyIsN

(penunuos) soluebi() s|nejoA

o LCNVM-€9eSLYO

140d3d 1TvNIH

AUVINNNS 00



Q9c/ ve z0201202

“9)A|BUB BA[EU 8U) JO UONENUIDUOD S} 0} |[ENbD

10 UBY) Jajesib s1 exds XUjeW Sy} JO UOKEAUAOUCS BU) usym Ajuo Aidde sywi| soueydesoe ayids xujew sy ‘sny | “saseaoU) A1eaoosl ayIds XUJeW ay) Jo AJUIEPSOUN aU) 'SaseaIoul SjAfELE SANEU SU) JO UOTIERUIOUOD 8Y) Se 'soxids xujeL 1o} Joylentd) oxds xanen
“1a 8U) Sawn aAl uey) Jojealb s| sajealdnp om} oy} Jo obelaae auyy areum Aluo Aldde sy esueldecde sjeoydnp sny) ‘AjjeORBLIEIP SBSESIOUL SNJEA BU) UM PoIBIOSSE AJulepaoun ay) “Ty ol sayoeosdde ynse. painsealu sy se sejedlidnp 10} Jepentd) ejedjidng
*a|qejdeooe palepisuoo S| ayids s} pue ajnjosqge %0} 0] dn Aq syun) pajonb sy} paaaxs Aew sejAjeue

8} J0 %0} 0} dn ‘axids Xxujew pue $O7 Y} 10§ 'SULDS JuSWBBYINW UJ ‘SNY L "wa|qoid poyiaLu [eal e o} pasoddo Se 90UBLD WOPUEI AQ 80UBPaROXa JIWI] B JO S0UBLO aY) SOOP 0S 'SOSEaIoul UBDS B U) SSJA[EUR JO Jaquunu 8y} SB JJOPITENT) UBdS JuWeiepinp

eusjuo soue)dandy DY

2ouslayIp Jueoiad aAneRY :ady

i Bupiodey 11y

ayids XLjew e Jo soeld Ul pasn aq ABW |eUSTEL S0USISI01 Y IS3I3)UI JO IJA[BUR BY) JO JUNDLLE UMOUY B SUIBIUOD Jey) Sa|dwes ay) 0} paydjew XUjew S0UBlsqns Jo [eUsjew e :|BUS)BIA 90ualdjey

*sjaye xujew ajdwes yym Aoeinooe Kiojesoqe| sjen|eaa o) pas() ‘POPPE Uaaq Sey }sasa)ul JO S)K(BUE aUj JO JUNDWE UMOU) B Yolym 0) sidwes v :oqidg xujep

“sjoaye Xujew s|dwes noym Aoeinooe Aiojeloqe| pue AIsA0081 SJA[eUR 8)eNjEAS O} PaS() "PSPPE Useq Sey B)A|eue JO JUNOLLE UMOWY B UdIYm O] XLJEW Yue|q B 0} Jojal Yue|q axids Jo ajdwes jonuod Aiojeioqe] yjuelg ands/son
‘uoisioald JuswaInsesw )en|eas 0} pasn “ainpacoid [eoyfjeue aajus ayy ybnoiy) pawwes s| jey) sjdwes awes 3y} Jo uonuod djeiedss e Jo sish|eue palled :sjeadng

‘uoijeuIwe)uoo A10)eloqe] Ssasse 0} pasn ‘ainpsoold |eanAleue sufua ay) YBnoiyl paLued s) jey) XLIEW JUB|q € :juejq PoUIei

AUVNANS 00

o LZNVM-E9ESLYD 140d34 TVNId4



FlNAL REPORT CA15363-JAN21 R

LEGEND

FOOTNOTES

NSS Insufficient sample for analysis.
RL Reporting Limit.
t Reporting limlt raised.
1 Reporting limit lowered.
NA The sample was not analysed for this analyte
ND Non Detect

Samples analysed as received. Solid samples expressed on a dry weight basis. “Temperature Upon Receipt” is representalive of the whole shipment and may not reflect the

temperalure of individual samples.

Analysis conducted on samples submitted pursuant to or as part of Reg. 153/04, are in accordance to the Protocol for Analytical Methods Used in the Assessment of Properties
under Part XV.1 of the Environmental Protection Act” published by the Ministry and dated March 9, 2004 as amended.

SGS provides criteria information (such as regulatory or guideline limits and summary of limit exceedances) as a service. Every attempt is made to ensure the criteria information
in this report is accurate and current, however, it is not guaranteed. Comparison to the most current criteria is the responsibility of the client and SGS assumes no responsibility for
the accuracy of the criteria levels indlcated. This document is issued, on the Client’s behalf, by the Company under its General Conditions of Service available on request and
accessible at http://www.sgs.com/terms_and_conditions.htm. The Client's attention is drawn te the limitation of liability, indemnification and jurisdiction issues defined therein. Any
other holder of this document is advised that information contained hereon reflects the Company's findings at the time of ils intervention only and within the limits of Client's

instructions, if any. The Company's sole responsibility is to its Client and this document does not exonerate parties 1o a transaction from exerclsing all their rights and obligations

under the transaclion documents.

This report must not be reproduced, except in full. This report supersedes all previous versions.

-- End of Analytical Report -

20210202 251/26



AR B 00N

Aany oy 9 0B

RIS g saunjeublg {3|vN) Ag zucm.:c::wm
Jut9 - Adoz) yuirg (FAippn) ﬁ .N\ \.:m .W|}|—..m NI ‘ameubis SR VY] 3@2 W. ﬁw. 2 ﬂ: {3WVYN) Ag pajdureg
7
(A1
1
oL
LN N Nl h evy T hHA |
h)
A < -2 |-
N A h e I q |°
NA 1 < T s
NN Vs h YHY |
A [ > :
A / - h \ 9-1 z
NN A / S |L® Ievve IHe [
gEEL2(22 o) w e[z | ® |22 v | Za o0 o2 o
woamm lolv.pp..a S(z0lz2l + | o || » |8 3= .Nmm @
s e AL T~ | 2| R|eQFY 2|9 |B(F|e=li5|E| =
2o E e —_— E Il I b 1y ol 0| 28|25 | 52w| $311108€ (A3 TJNVS| 03 TIWVYS
navpy | % m = % ol -1 E mvu O 5 3 m HE TS = XAV 10# L 21va NOWLYDI4ILNIA! 3TdAVS
2 2 5 S; ¥ ooz | 2= =
“eol 3| * 53 pel i ald |s 5alim| 23] &
o o 2 g x| 2 & s3]|F S
89| = o2 L 2&%| 2E W =2
. ) 2 2 o] = = ON S3A {0S¥) NOILIONOD 311S 40 QY023
'SINIWNOD |wonp|ER| [EX : O D || 2| 2 ONA S3AL
L8] ® m I : |2 23 sl0U 933, 2|qEpFaY 1oN SMOCL_| gwose< [ ewoge>[ | awnjoa fiog
a = < P
e H_W m W = 2 . (wED w_zm._._u
Iaal 2 : Anediogmpy mowol ] 3woo[ ] sugunpey || ssyiomby [ ] cager| |
gl g wiog[_] waww ] comdf ] sseon ] wogpy ] zomey[ |
Aaads ] fuepues[] (Lv. ui keq £) pesizie 6oul ] el og  sedjsay [ voger[ ]
d101 (Ryoads aseaie) 1330 1Ised | DOA JHd |82d| o0As TN :me-Ag Jemag)| ‘suoneinbay Jawio| 61/90 mum.OD Y0IESL mot.g
J3.1S3N03Y SISATYNY SNOLLYIND3Y ~
AGOLSND 40 NIVHD H3LYA ONIINING SOS HLIM -oleq anQ Aladg WHETE| £ 300) Woly mav* .Wwvmv f.,. Tews
3L LIWENS 38 LSNN NOLLIWNSNOD NYWNH HO4 SITdiNYS HIL1YA (378Y.L0d) ONDINING “TLON.
NOISSINENS O1 ¥Oldd AILVINISTULIN $OS HLIM ALTIGISYIS HSNY WHIINOD 3SYI1d BudYd Xed
sheq vD sAeq nu sAeg ND Aeg _._H_ (Ajddy Aepy sabiey) feuonippy) L1 HSNY ln & ._ e ...NIO m = M OP “auoyd
Kep ssautsng pxau suibaq 1y | 'SPUBYaaM uo 10 Wdg Jaye panlanal sa|duteg ‘ssaippy
Hmvcwxwmi u m>mc__o_._ bcz‘.—w_m mﬂ:ﬁu& m___m_u wmw:_n:n (i} vm.o_._v 2UE S, 1Y) Am>mvn -8} 1vL hm_:mwﬁ P
=T , ¥
_azinD3N Livs) I ah 5 J0BI0D LY JQD G sseippy
3 ru ‘Aued 3
:Ql/uon2007 BN ) H & M. CO .dm_. C @0 Q 3 m # 198l04d uedwog AV A ™ ~ap t_..w.. ) JI Joeoy
#'0d C V # uaneionp (uojeuwuoju| yodsy se mEmww.Wu_J Pe, U Auedwon
2T < - g e " at e e e ..._..1 »..
: {& NOILYWHOINI ADIOANI . : SE zo.Eszou_z_ Lioday

ﬂ%’ Ww[ GL E_momm uadn w_:_m_maEwk D oN \D sap

- I A Bu;
S HOS BT F O O IR o wosmisnaty aoro

:

fluo asn qeq - uonoag :o;mEhSm_ ?QEJAH._ QM

0B |233 Apojsng

D oN _l_u SBA uUasald |e8s Apojsns

((3njeubis) 4Q peaiaday

tomess [T T

[T} _.u. ﬂ[ = a— ey nm__:mn.um.
|ﬁ 1~ TV @1eQ pansoey

WBLUUOIAUBALOD SBS MMA (g2 S9E9-259-C07 X84 BG0Z-Z59-G02 [UOUd OHZ T0% NO * Pl2y

238718

AQOLSND 40 NIVHD PUE s33ia195 Alojeioge 1oy 1sanbay

T e

19€0-229-61S XB4 0908-8V8-4/§ 13314 )01 nam_..ﬁ\a n\w.mmﬁmlw.mm 39N 'NO 'UOpLOT "HAGD WNIIOSUGD /G0 :UOPUOT -
UDISE2DU0] 6@ plaaye] - A1§jES R UeaH uaLiu0;

IALG



FINAL REPORT

CA15364-JAN21 R1

SUD-00020031-1C

Prepared for

EXP Services Inc

TE-GL-ENVLAB-IT-011v1 5.3



FINAL REPORT CA15364-JAN21 R1

First Page
CLIENT DETAILS LABORATORY DETAILS .
( Clienl EXP Services Inc Projecl Specialist Jill Campbell, B.Sc.,GISAS
Laboratory SGS Canada Inc.
Address 885 Regent Streel Address 185 Concession St., Lakefield ON, KOL 2HO
Sudbury, Ontario |
P3E 5M4. Canada ’
‘ Contacl Jeff Newman Telephone 2165
Telephone 705-674-9681 Facsimile 705-652-6365
Facsimile 705-674-5583 Email jil.campbell@sgs.com
Email leff.newman@exp.com SGS Reference CA15364-JAN21
Project SUD-00020031-IC Received 01/27/2021
Order Number Approved 02/03/2021
| Samples Leachate (1) Report Number CA15364-JAN21 R1
k Dale Reported 02/03/2021
COMMENTS

Temperature of Sample upon Receipt: 2 degrees C
Cooling Agent Present:Yes
Custody Seal Present:Yes

Chain of Custody Number:020372

raised RL for NO2 and NO3 due to sample matrix

SIGNATORIES

Jill Campbell, B.Sc.,GISAS

SGS Canada Inc. | 185 Concesslon St., Lakefield ON, KOL 2HO t 2165 f 705-652-6365 WWW.S@5.Com

Mermber of (he SGS Group (SGS SA)



FINAL REPORT CA15364-JAN21 R1

TABLE OF CONTENTS
First Page 1-2
Index. et e e e 3
RESUIES...ocrireritrericrnt ettt e s s s b v s e e rreter e 4-7
Exceedance SUMMAry........ovieieniincnssssesrissans N 8
QO SUMMANY.cuvietereeirererreesamrierersrsrsrerssresssstssiesesstssssssssaessesessrssssstsssaserssosnonesssensarssssnsarsaessssssesasssasnes 9-13
Legend 14
R EITENES s xysexobssnsssisssssta simsyass iss pr s ge AN S U4 SERT R RISES S0 KO0t P4 mA A A AR SRR LRSS RS SRS O s s s a8 9y DRI TSRS S 15

20210203 3/15



SL/v

0400 005 2000 bW uosog
o B ) i - L0 T ool 200000 /6w wneg.
S0000°0 > S S0000°0 “/bw JBAIIS
i 12000 5z 20000 ow oUesIy
100> 0z 100 Tbw {IE10)) @pIueAD
- 910 05H 900 YBw apuonjy
a 190> [ 000} 90°0 /bW N se (N SE) 31N + SJeiIN |
= — _ 190> 900 /bw N se (N se) ajesIN
) o 1e0> €00 /Bw N se e
N o 0002 100 W o - SWN(OA X3,
. z 100 ZH 10 Lt PN X3
- 00} 1000 6 blem ajdweg
. - - - mo_cmmhoc_lvmm SEEN]
ansey i ™ N seeured
" zoznnoniz | eeq ejdues T T ==
Jeyoea xXgen O_QEwm = -y 3INAIHOS - -/ ILVHOVIN/ 85693H = 11
LHE sueN ejdwes
(3LvHOVIT)
9 Jequnp ejdureg sojuebiliou) pue siejo - §66OTY :ADVIOV
o = === “e5s 100 Jun ou B Hd _m_.__u__
- o o abeuIEI 300! poY
yinsey 11 ™ sun JejeweRed
- o be0z/o/iz  ejeq ejduieg -
ajeyoean Xinep O_QEUW = - P TINAIHOS - -/ILVYHOVIT/ 856038 = 1T
LHE eweN ojdweg
(3LvHOVI)
9 Joquin eiduwes ebeujelq 3001 PPV - 85GOTY :3OVHOV

uewmeN yer siejdwes
uewmaN 390" uebeue yefoud
OI-L€002000-aNS Foeford
U] SNBSS dX3T JUSIID

1Y LENYr-¥9ESLVO

140d3d TVNIL



80> 00z 80 Jbw suo1Y A _>£m_>__
N - - . SOOA
Hnsey 11 ™ un lojeurieq
- 120z/l0/lz  ©yeq ejdwEs ‘
sjeyoea xep ojdues = =¥ 3INAIHOS -~/ ALYHOVI1/ 85593 = 11
LHE ewey sjdwes
9 lequinN etdures (31YHOVAT) SDOA - 855DTY :IDOVMHOV
100000 > o V0 | 100000 bW Kimosoi|
o R i (0} 280
Hneey 11 ™ f[un Jejeurred
T izoznonz | eeqgejdwes =
|leyoea’ xney D—QE.UW = =% 2INAIHOS -~/ ALYHOVIT/ 855034 = 11
LHE oueN sjdueg
o lequiny ejdures (3LYHOVIT) (FH0) W0 - 8559TY :FOVHIOV
s _ B
0€4000°0 [o]8 0000070 bW wniuesn
00000 > I 00000 J/bw ~ wnuspg|
- LYE0'0 g 100000 RET peaq
N 80000°0 > S 80000°0 ybw wnwoy
G
062000°0 S0 - 000000 J/bw wniwpen
(panunuao) sojueblou| pue siel
ynsey 11 ™ aun Jojourred
120Z/10/lz  ojeq odures N
gjeyoea XHew O_QEdw = =¥ 3TNA3HOS -~/ 3LVHIVAN/ 855D38 = LT
LHE oweN ejdwes
(3LvHOVIT)
9 Jequiny ejdwes sojuefilou] pue s[eja - 86GOTY AOVHIOV

uewmeN yor :ueiwes
UBWMSN Yor ueBeuep pefoid
O1-1£002000-aNS J0efald
QU| SOIAIRG dXT Juelid

LY LENYM-9ESI VO

19043y VNI



SL/9

_ 200> vl 200 bW ausiAyeoIolRIg-) L
_ - 200> 50 200 Vbw sueyle0IOIRIa-Z |
[ - 200> S0 200 /6w sUazZUBqOIoIYIat' L
I 200> 02 200 /6w aUBZUBQOIOIYRIA T } |
o T s00> S0 8000 /6w - SpLOJYIRAS) UOGIED |
i " z00> ] 200 /6w g._
| o - 200> € T Z00 /6w sUeWBoIooEnaL |
200> S 200 /6w QUBAYIR0IoOL |
) 200> oL 200 /6w uuojoIoly)
00> S “zoo /6w sueyleIOIOYAN]
8000 > [4Y 8000 /6w apLoyD AUIA

- _ (penupue) SDOA
Wnsey 1 ™ syun KRRy

- 120z/L0/ke  ©18Q ejdwieg o N N
ajeyoea e eidweg - - 3INAIHOS - -/ AAVHOVI/ 85593 = 11
tHE oweN sidums
9 Jequiny ejdures (31VHOVY31) SDOA - 86593 :3DVMNOVd

uBwMaN Jor sieghusg
uelwMEN J3[ eBeusy peloid
OI-1£002000-GNS Foefold
U SOMIBS dXT UBID

1Y LZNYI-¥9ESLVO

140d3d TVNI4



SL/Z

200> S0 200 /6w suazuag|
B X3Lg - SD0A
nnsey 11 ™ sHun ejeurerey
" izozioNiz  ejeq eidues
sjeyoes xuep edwes * = TINAIHOS -~ / ALYHOVI/ 85593 = 1]
LHE oume ejdwes
9 Jsequiny ejdureg {31vHOV31) X314 - SOOA - 88593 :3OVIOVd

UBWMSN Jor aejdures
uewmeN yor zefeuey pojoid
OI-L£002000-ANS Foejaid
ou| SR0IBG dX3 JUElID

LY LENYI-v9eSivO

140d3d TVNId



F|N AL REPORT CA15364-JAN21 R1

EXCEEDANCE SUMMARY

No exceedances are present above the regulatory limit(s) indicated

20210203 8/15



SL/6 £0201202
szL 7] 901 oLk 06 €6 oL an 100> 100 Vbw LZNVI-BSZ0VIS (lm01) spiueiy 7
uBiH 7 mo] \; % uBIH ﬁ mo ) _
| | | Areaooey (%)
(%) | Konoooy (%) onds ov aa
Korooey sy
s onds bonom 1 ueig eouale)ey
‘Jod / onids Xane yueig eNids/SOT eyeolidng powpen ™ fqYun pleq 90 Jojourred
SO0-NY-MYT-¢ISIANIFYD-INW “'Jad [ewsiul | 00SY WS ‘POUISIN
v4S Aq epiuedd
szh 73 18 ozt 08 yoL 0z 0 900> 90°0 T/bw JZNYr-99€001a (N se) slenIN
szh 7] 00l ozl 08 66 0z aN £0°0> €00 V/Bw LZNVYr-99£001d (N se) spN
YN VN ¥N 90°0> 900 6w LZNYr-99€001a (N s&) S)LIN + SjeniN
" T mo UBIH mo (%) 7
) _ Kienooey (%)
% 7 fuencosny ) ods v ady
Kienooey sy
- wn L hds faencoey S | — I R L TEV T
1o / iids XiEN Huerg elids/so sreadng | PoweN | ™ W Yreq 00 Ietourred

LOO-NY->IW1-DILANTI-vD-3W T§o4 [BWSjU| | €7 SUOI-00EYIN/00EYdT POBN

Ol Aq suojuy

b LENVI-P9ESLVD

140d3d TvNIH

AHVNNNS D0



GL/OL 20201207
7 [¢] 4" oL oLl 1749 08 16 174 aN 10000°0 > 10000°0 /bW LZNVr-0£€009H3 Ainossiy
| uBH Mo WwH | (%) _ _ _
_ W fiercoey )
o Rrencoo ) onds ov ady i
A1oAooey |
~ suna onds S Kieacosy ) | yueig Je—
794 / o¥idS XigeN eig oidg/so aeopdng Potpei ™ N Yoreq oD 7 sopoureied
- - POO-NV-IVT-IdSIANIYD-TW SJ8! [BWweul | 821 LE WS/VL.ZZ Yd3 :POYIS
|esuaD)-sojuebilou)
qcl SL AN [+]95 06 ol 418 0 900> 900 YBw LZNYM-20v01M3 apuonj4 7
uBIH mo 7 0 uBIH mo] (%) _ 7 _ 7
= KIoA006;
) faencoent &) s__._mm m“w ady
Ao, {
s Aeaoosy | onds sy Areacaey . ] L wem eouaseley
o / exids X0eN Elg eNids/So epeoyidng powen ™ aun | wWieq 90 _ oeurreg

J

#LO-NY-SIYT-IMILANLYO-IW 740l [BWSIUL | 00SH WS :POUISN
epogae|3 uo| ayads £q eplionjd

b LENVI-PESIVYO

14043 TvNI4

AAVINNNS 00



oel 0L
[3]48 0L
0tL [+73
[+]41 oL
[ ocel 0L
otl 0L
ocl 0L
oel 0L
oel 0L
m c3)
S Alerooey
.wuw_\s__n_mg

SL/LL £0201.202
16 oLl 06 004 V4 0 Z00000°0> 2000000 T/Bw 12934-2000SW3 wniueln
£6 ot 06 Q0L (174 z #0000°0> $0000°0 /6w 12834-2000SW32 wniuaRs
86 Okt 06 66 0z L 10000°0> 10000°0 /6w 1.2934-2000SIN3 pea |
¥6 1188 06 901 174 an 80000°0> 80000°0 V/Bw 12934-2000SW3 wniwouyd
96 Ok 06 €0} 0z 9l £00000°0> £00000°0 bw 12934-2000SW3 wniwpe)
201 Okl 06 86 02 9 2000> 2000 J/Bw 1.2834-2000SN3 uolog
00b oLl 06 00} (174 z 20000°0> Z0000°0 6w 12934-2000SW3 wnueg
£04 [1]8 8 06 901 0z 1 2000°0> 2000°0 /Bw 12834-2000SW3 owesiy
€6 oLt 06 S0l 0z 0 S0000°0> S0000°0 /bw 12a33-2000SN3 Jan|is
uBiH g (%) |
(%)
Kiencoey %)
Kooy (%)
ouds Lo " ojids oY ady
n ! uerg eouaIe)oy
ueig odjids/sO ejeojidng PoyleN ™ [N wieq 00 1ojeureied

900-NY-XV T-IdSIANIFYO-IN TJo) [Bwai] § 8002 Yd3/0€0€ NS ‘POWBN

SIN-dD| - sejduwies snosnbe ul s[elef

1Y LZNYI-79ESLVD

140d3y TVNIH

AUVNANS 00



GlL/cClL £020120Z

_ ovl 0s 66 ovi 0s 86 113 aN 800°0> 800°0 /6w LENVI-SLEOWOD 2pUOIYD KUIA

orl 0s 66 o€l 09 66 014 anN 200> 00 /6w LENVIr-SLE0NOD auajAyeoio|you L
ort 0s Lok otel 09 66 [0]>4 aN 200> 200 /6w VZNVT-SLEONDD auayjeolojyoens )
ovl 0S ool ocL 09 66 (¢4 anN 200> 200 /6w LZNVYIr-SLEONDD DUSZUSqOIo|YI0UO
4143 0s 96 0} 4% 0s 16 (414 anN 80> 80 /6w LZNVYr-SZE0NOD auoey 1Ay e
ovl 0s 001 [¢14% 09 00k 014 aN 200> 200 7/Bw rwz<ﬂ.mhm0200 aueyawoloyalq
ovtL 0s 0oL oglL 09 0L 0e aN 200> 200 /bw LZNYP-GZE0NDO ULIoJoIolUD
orl 0s Lol oglL 09 16 (04 aN 800°0> 800°0 /6w LZNVYI-SLE0NDD 8puojydLe)8) Uoque)
ovL 0s 201 0148 09 Lo} 0g anN 200> 200 /bw LZNVIr-GLE0NOD auazuag
0141 0s 66 ogl 09 66 0e anN 200> 200 /6w LZNVYM-SZE0NDD auazuaqololyola-¥'L
[4748 0s 86 ocl 09 66 0€ aN 200> 200 /6w LZNVYI-GLEOWOD aueyjeolojyaa-z'L
orL 0s 66 [0]4% 09 00} o€ anN 200> 200 /6w LZNVYI-GLEONDD auazuaqolo|uyola-z'L
ovl 0s 0l oglk 08 €0l ot aN 200> 200 Jbw LZNYr-SLE0NOD suajAye0IoIa-L L _
| Cwm | mo 0 | uBiH mo (%) 1 ] [ R |
. ) | kencoey | ®) Esﬁﬂm ww o
syw Aleaooay opds sy Aleaooey sueig eouale)ey
o / oitds XmeN _ YuE(g eNdS/SOT ajeoyidng poen ™ sun Yoeq 50 spoumEd |

PO0-NY-Xo T-ODIANII-YO-3W 131 |ewsiuf ] D0928/90€05 Yd3 ‘PO
$o1uebIO BNeIoA

AUVAANS DO

1Y LZNVI-P9ESLYD 14043 TvNId



SL/€1 £0201.202

*8)A|BUB SAGEU B4 JO UOJERUIDUOD 31 0} |enba

10 ue Jajealb st axds XUjew ay} Jo UoHERUSoUOD ay) usym Ajuo Ajdde sjwy soueydacoe oxids Xujew sy ‘sny “sasealou) A1anooal oxids XLjew ay) JO AJUIepsouNn ay) ‘saseaou) alAj2UB SAREU BU) JO UOHBIUSDUCD 3Y) Se ‘seyids Xujew Jo} uepientd) exjds xuen
“Tof 343 S3WN a1 Uey} Jojeaib s1 sajeoldnp om) B 40 abBIaAR BY) asoum Aluo Aldde spwy souejdeode 2jeaNdnp sny) ‘AllealjelueIp SBSEaI0Ul 3NJeA SLY L)M PojeIoosse Auiepsoun ay} Ty ay) sayoroldde Jnsas painsesww sy} e sa)edldnp 1o} JeyienD epeoydng
-ajqeidesoe palepisuoo s] ayids sy pue ainNjosqe %0} 03 dn AQ syl psjonb sy pssoxs Aelw sajijeue

3 40 %0} 01 dn “oxids XUJEW pUE SO S JO§ 'SUEDS JUSLUSISHIAW UI 'S ‘wejqoid potjew o) & 0} pasoddo Se a0UBYO WOPUE A SOUEPSSOXS JI| B JO 80UBLD Blj) SB0P 08 ‘SASEaIoUI UEDS B U] SOJAIBUR JO JagqUINU SU) SE Jeyientd Ueds JusLuespinii

eus)uo soueldaday OV

Qoualeyip Jusosad anleley :ady

Jwy Bupodey 7y

"ayids xujew e jo a0eid Ul pasn aq ABW [eus]eLt d0uUBIajel Y 'S819jul JO SIAIBUE BY) JO JUNOWE UMOLY B SUIEJU0D jey) sojdwes auy} o} paydjew XUjew SOUBISqNS JO [eudjew e [eUajejy a0usiaey

*s1oee Xujew ajdwes ypm Aoeinooe AIOJEIOqE] S)eN|eAd 0] Pasn "POpPE Uaaq SeY )Salsjul O SIA|BUE 8Y) JO JUNOWE UMOU B LIIym O) aidwes y :ayds xRN

‘spoeye xujew ajdwes jnoypm Aoeinooe Aojeloqe] pue A1aAcoas d1A[eUR SBNIBAD O} PaS "Pappe Ueaq Sey JJA|Bue JO JUNOWE UMOLY B UOIUM 0} XUjew yUe|q e 0} Jojal juelq ayds 1o sjdwes jonuoo Asojesoge] Hjuelg afds/SOT
"uolsa.d JuslWaINSeaLL s)enjeAs 0} pasn “ainpadoid [eonA[eue aijue ay) ybnouy) psiued si jey) sjdwes awes auj Jo uopiod ojeredss e jo sisAjeue palied :9jeoldng

‘uonEUNLEIUCS AIOJRIOqR| SSSSE O} Pas} ainpacosd [EapAjeue auus ay) YBNoly) paLuen sijely) XL)BW Yue|q B juelgq POYIaN

AHVAINNS D

1Y LZNVI-P9ESLYO 1H0d34 TVNId



FlNAL REPORT CA15364-JAN21 R1

LEGEND

FOOTNOTES

NS$ Insufficient sample for analysis.
RL Reporting Limit.
t Reporling limit raised.
¢ Reporting limit lowered.
NA The sample was not analysed for this analyte
ND Non Detect

Samples analysed as received. Solld samples expressed on a dry weight basis. “Temperature Upon Receipt” is representative of the whole shipment and may not reflect the
temperature of individual samples.

Analysis conducted on samples submitted pursuant to or as part of Reg. 153/04, are in accordance lo the Protocol for Analylical Methods Used in the Assessment of Properties
under Part XV.1 of the Environmental Protection Act” published by the Ministry and dated March 9, 2004 as amended.

SGS provides criteria information (such as regulatory or guideline limits and summary of limil exceedances) as a service. Every attempt is made to ensure the crileria information
in this report is accurate and current, however, it is not guaranteed. Comparison to the most current criteria is the respansibility of the client and SGS assumes no responsibility for
the accuracy of the criteria levels Indicated. This document is issued, on the Client's behalf, by the Company under its General Conditions of Service available on request and
accessible al http://www.sgs.com/terms_and_conditions.htm. The Client's attention is drawn lo the limitation of llability, indemnification and jurisdiction issues defined therein. Any
other holder of this document is advised that information contained hereon reflects the Company's findings at the time of its intervention only and within the limits of Client's
instructions, if any. The Company's sole responsibility Is to its Client and this document does not exonerate pariies to a transaction from exercising all their rights and obligations

under the transaction documents.

This report must not be reproduced, except in full. This report supersedes all previous versions.

- End of Analylical Report --

20210203 14/ 15



0 SAN5E UGH:
Aq gonss

Hal

Ug 2 UG (0 J 2710 U iy 10 teadde det s2uneuBis i 10

SIDVE STAIDG JO SUONIZUDD ILIDLBY) GIL 1P

Wwod 16y

102 ajdwes Lo uondaNP P

(swewnuop

. ddis & 2] |BULD; PAIBLIGHE LT Ul 0 {3R00D 04} 00T AU LT aru| o sEG
JA0Id 122G BALUY NOA 1Ly) JuawoEpamaukse §1 SOS O] $2diues |0 VISSIWNS J91oN r

e

ISOS - Adog AU B MD|IBA (AA/ppALW) 7

:aumjeubis

(3WYN) Aq paysinbuliey

VoW MN] Wv._._v\mﬂ: {awvN) &g pajdives

. \ .
sl - Adod yuid {AArppjusiu) _ d\\tﬂdl — .m v nl #eq é \Q :aumeuBig

N

e g
e =
[

Ad)

O
(
]

o
|
2

)
1
g

‘.6
X
[~ o]
<

3

B i —T|M[ M3

HI NS

el SN ISISODNK D
SINDSISDD
S B

N N / S € vy IHR |
2 Sigo 2 > ov| m EBREREIEIEIRIESEREER
mmhwa SE |_ o | o a2l 2l ol >l 3| z98| @
wh| § =22 |8 B 3l m pnl | | LBl TS =8 =
i el =il N 5% i ol IR I 3 Ry B $311109 |03 dwvs|  aITdAVS 4
— 218 2 32| o o ¢ o | i 2@ | 23 A 0)LYOIHILNIAl T1dWVS
Nevp Um < M = r mm e £l M_ | E; = 2 W, H .‘MW 3 aulvi d0# ENLIE aiva Nol
a =k, B & .m Hs = @
wepl F| ® W m e g _|.v_.A_._ w. g 92| 5m m_m a
a = < = o Z| 3 —
sd| & ey e 2| eE| #a
i r3 o g 2 |28 =3 M ONAIl  s3A[] (osu) NOLLIGNOD 3LIS 40 QNOD3Y
‘SINIJWNINOD |conp| E W &8 Z 0O : [37] 822 =)
8 | : [2 | 88 2100 005, INEUGASH 10N SMOOLJ qwoses [ ] £WOSEs[ ] ewmio oS
= > < -
s DnUv W w = ] <m_S_D m.nm...D
ssa |y B “Auredoiunyy ssno[]  3woof ] | svamneew 7] ssuiomby ] cai0ei[ |
X
gLl g wiorg[] waww[ ]  oomd[] asieon [} wogypu[] zeiqeL] ]
Aosds ] foepues[] (LvL uw feq €) gss/ive Gay[ ] :ainal og  wedssey [ 1 o_amLH_
4101 (hpeds aseaid) JaLLO 1s3d | DOA OHd [89d| 20As 17N me-Ag Jameg :suotieinBoy 1ayi0f  64/90% Bay'0[] vO/ES| Em.wm-

d31s3ND3Y SISATVNY

SNOILVINO3Y

AQOLSND 4O NIVHD ¥31YM DNMNI¥A SOS HLIM
Aa3LUWENS F8 LSNW NOILJWNSNOD NVINNH ¥Od S31dINVS HILYM (318V.L0d) ONININA ‘3 LON.

NOISSIWENS O1 ¥OId ALY LNISTUIH SOS HLIM ALINSISYII HSNY WHIINOD 3SVId
shea v | shead | sheaz ] 4eqg 1] (fiddy Aepy sabseys feuomppy) LY.L HSNY

au sutbeq |1 :spuayaem Lo Jo Wwdg Iaye panede) sajduies
EpyoY AIOINIESS S pajonb ese s 1] (skepz-G) LvL ._m_:mmm_\m

‘gleq enq Aadg

A IPTH &@@gf Mmov '’ i@ .f” W

auoyd e
25 19-LoS- S0L =

SSEIpPY
(JOEJUOY N.u J Jm ﬁ) m ‘5S8IppY|
“Auedwon v _.,..UZ “TW ) 4 “lEjuen

QUF Auedwos

e T

b

_ %u SWInav : T C T (o eomy uodn Py

[Jon \E S3A  oe [Beg Apoigng

= \\4 .\ Coe G| o gV R Sld*d‘lu/lﬁ%._. [ on [R] sea :wesalq uesy Sujoo B ] uz\D soA uasald |esg Apoisng

mcw: :y)

Whppn) {COE 1 QT /7~ T weiea poneony

|mﬂ,u|\.|\u|b_|,.ﬂ.£._.nw23ﬂm

_ jo _ abey 19€0-229-61G XB4 0I06-BFB-LL8 0914 104 005

TUSLILOJIAUBALDY SBS MMm .09 SIET-ZG9-504 X84 00DZ-ZS8-50. BU0Ud OHZ 10X NO 'pialjaye "1 Loissaduoy) ¢gl :prd

Gl 070 AQOLSNI 40 NIVHD Pue saojneg A1ojel

oqeT 1o} }sanbay

NI ‘{aimeubis) Ag paasoay Bo5Ve M c:uju :Ag pansosy
Kjuo asn qe - uoiioeg co_umEhe“ﬁ%wﬂwM — L
: 8SZ 39N ‘NO "LOPUOT) LNGD WNIWOSURD /59 (UOPUOT - CYURRCp s

3
yane] - A19jeS § WIIBaH Juawuoiaug m;qmn
|



Kathy McDonald

From: Natalie Wagar <NWagar@ocwa.com>

Sent: Tuesday, February 16, 2021 10:42 AM

To: Kathy McDonald

Cc: Jeff St. Pierre; Allyson Kirk; Sarah Beaulieu; Keith Stringer; Kevin Woestenenk
Subject: 2020 Kagawong WTP Management Review (DWQMS)

Attachments: 2020 Kagawong MR Minutes.pdf

Good Morning,

It is a requirement of DWQMS that a management review be held annually and that all minutes are forwarded to the
owner. Attached is a copy of the 2020 minutes. During the management review, should items be brought forward that
require the attention of OCWA or the owner, it should be documented clearly within the minutes. These action items
can be found in the table at front of the report.

NOTE: The action item listed in the management review has been addressed.

Natalie Wagar

Process and Compliance Technician - PCT
Ontario Clean Water Agency - OCWA
Cell: (705) 936-6713 | Fax (705) 869-4374



The Corporation of the Township of Billings

2020 Management Review Minutes

Review Period:

Oct I, 2019 — Jul 31, 2020

'_'September'zg' 2020

Attendance Keith Strlnger OCA OperatlonsManagement Natalie Wagar OCWA PCT Sarah
Beaulieu — OCWA PCT

Minutes of Review Jeff St.Pierre — Regional Manager, Allyson Kirk — Safety, Process and Compliance Manager,
Provided to: Natalie Wagar - QEMS Rep & PCT, Sarah Beaulieu - QEMS Rep & PCT, Keith Stringer - Sr.
Operations Manager, Kevin Woestenenk — Facility Operator, Kathy McDonald - Town of
Kagawong
** All reference to MOE, MOECC or MECP means Ministry of the Environment, Conservation and Parks




£ '\ Ontarlo Clenn Watar Agency
== Agence Gmimsrienrte Des Eaux

Facility Highlights:
e The third party offsite audit took place on March 5, 2020.
e Theinternal audit took place on July 7, 2020
‘ e No MECP inspection has taken place yet
‘ e No AWAQls or non compliances were filed with the MECP .
| e The maintenance program (WMS) was deemed to be adequate. No problems were found
relating to equipment, call outs or general maintenance.
o Through the Management Review, 1 action item was created.

List of Action Items Created Through the Management Review Process

Root Location of Actio Personnel Proposed
Within Minutes Responsible Timeline
It was decided the best way to monitor Sr. Operations | Dec 31, 2020
Internal and Third infrastructure work completed is through Manager
Party Audits the use of the capital letter, maintained by

management. Management will ensure
PCTs have access to the updated
documents on OCWA’s shared drive

Town of Kagawong Management Review
Date: September 29, 2020 Page 2 of 6




£\ Ontario Clean Water Agency
--‘;'-"‘ Agence Ontarienno Des Eaux

Inadents of Regulatory Non- Compllance

Non comphances are reported to the local MOE inspector or can be identified within an inspection report.

oy S—— . by =, TR i T Rl = = = = = R e

e No inspection has taken place yet due to the ongoing pandemic

e No non-compliances were reported to the MECP during the review period

Incidents of Adverse Drmkmg Water Tests

The drinking water regulatlon 1dent1f1es partlcular indicators of Adverse Water Quahty Incidents (AWQI) which |
must be reported to the MOE and the MOH. |

e There were no AWQISs reported during the review period.

Deviations from Critical Control Point (CCP) Limits

Critical Control Pomts (CCP) are established through the Risk Assessment exercise and are monitored through
the SCADA and Wonderware systems.

PE— = = SPPE PR - e

o There were 5 incidents where chlorine levels were outside CCP limits
o There doesn’t appear to be any process issues

Operational Performance

: Performance is evaluated by reviewing the MOE’s latest inspection rating as well as the programs put in place by
| the Operating Authority. |

s - - e s e = msim amas . aace

e No inspection has taken place yet due to the ongoing pandemic
e Call outs were mainly due to power outages
e Raw flow rates are close to PTTW limits but pumps are throttled to ensure no exceedances

Raw Water Supply and Drmkmg Water Quality Trends

. Raw water and drmkmg water trends are momtored through OCWA’s SCADA and Wonderware systems and

numencal data is mamtamed within our Process Data Management (PDM) program.

= o, o e N B T T G e — e e e S e e B A AL B e T M S e i e BRI e

o Raw flow rates are close to PTTW limits but pumps are throttled to ensure no exceedances
o There has been a slight increase in THM levels but averages are relatively the stable.
e HAA levels have reached half MAC; sampling location will need to be reviewed

Town of Kagawong Management Review
Date: September 29, 2020 Page 3 of 6




£ '\ Ontarlo Ctoan Water Agency

=~
== Agence bmyim Des Exux

Consumer Feedback

Community complamts are reported to the Operatmg Authorlty, either directly from consumers or through the

Municipal office.

- s i o s - e T e ST = = 2a, N T PRy

e No consumer complaints were received by the Operating Authority

Internal and Third Party Audits

| Internal audits are undertaken by the Operatmg Authorlty while external audit are performed by a third party.
Any opportunities for improvement (OFI) listed within the reports are either implemented as preventive actions

or are discarded as not being required.

e e e e

M B e B P 4 R RSN N miioen - TR

o The off-site (surveillance) external audit was completed on March 5, 2020
o The Operational Plan will not be updated to include the OIT in the Roles and
Responsibility section
o The operational plan was rewritten to specify raw water characteristics will be updated
every 3 years.
o The Critical Shortage of Staff contingency was tested as an actual event, using the
pandemic as the incident.
e The internal audit was completed on July 7, 2020.
o A total of 1 NC and 0 OFIs were found by the auditor.
o It was decided the best way to monitor infrastructure work completed is through the
use of the capital letter, maintained by management. Management will ensure PCTs
have access to the updated documents on OCWA’s shared drive (Action Item)

Consideration of Applicable Best Management Practices

Best management practices found on the facility’s latest inspection report, pubhshed by the Ministry of the

Environment or found through other means are reviewed at least every 36 months.

e No inspection took place during the review period due to the ongoing pandemic.
¢ No other best management practices were reviewed.

The Risk Assessment Process

Hazardous events are ldentlﬁed and control measures estabhshed for each. Risk assessments are required to be [

verified annually and re-assessed for the system every 36 months. [

s - i 2 - i —rm—e e Ta —_— PP ST

o The risk assessment process was reviewed and deemed to be adequate

Town of Kagawong Management Review
Date: September 29, 2020 Page 4 of 6




Ontario Clean Water Agancy
Agenice Ontarienne Des Eaux

v
=

Emergency Response Testmg

OCWA maintains 6 mandatory contingency plans whrch cover the majority of possrble emergency situations.

| Each contrngency must be tested annually and each must be reviewed every 5 yeats.

o The contingency for Critical Shortage of Staff was tested throughout the 2020 year, based on

the current ongoing pandemic.
e Paperwork will be completed by end of 2020

Action Items from Previous Management Reviews

| Action items are initiated when deficiencies are found within the Quality Management System. Prevrous

management review records are inspected on a continual basis. !

[T P, S - L —t e e

e Work on the backflow device on public taps was delayed due to the ongoing pandemic
e Training on DWQMS was delayed due to the ongoing pandemic

Status of Other Actions Items Identlfled Between Reviews

I ACUOD items are sometimes 1nrt1ated In response to other aUdltS or lllClantS |

L i S S PP SIS S ——— S SRR M S ST T

e There were no action items identified between reviews

Changes That Could Affect the Quality Management System

This drscuss1on is held to examine any changes whlch have occurred wrthrn the Organization, the Munrcrpahty or

the Quahty Management System.

=t e i - e = = Pp———— a e i el S R = T 1t S

¢ The pandemic has changed and will continue to affect how onsite audits are conducted.
Additional safety measures are required when going onsite.

Resources Needed to Maintain the DWQMS

| Resources are deﬁned as those things needed to unplement or maintain the QMS such as physrcal work, financial

|
resources and time 1nvolved by personnel
]

e No additional resources are required at this time

Infrastructure Review

| An infrastructure review is required annually by contractual obhgatrons and D\X/QMS requirements.

. Infrastructure is assessed and recommendations are made to maintain or optrmrze the facrhty

e e — . o 0

a . S P s, e s

e Infrastructure reviews will be tracked solely through the use of the capital letter that will be
maintained by management
e Distribution work has slowed; there is a reluctance to dig

Town of Kagawong Management Review
Date: September 29, 2020 Page 5 of 6




Operational Plan' Currency, Content Updates

| The DWQMS requires the Operating Authonty to documents QMS for the drmkmg water system in the form of
| an Operational Plan.

e No major updates have taken place

Staff Suggestlons Recommendatlon for Improvement

Staff suggestions are made, e1ther chrectly to the Manager or the Process and Compliance Techmc1an, and are

' reviewed during the Management Review.
|

e There were no staff suggestions
Next Management Review Meetings

e Scheduled for October 2021

Town of Kagawong Management Review
Date: September 29, 2020 Page 6 of 6




Municipal Guidance Document
Operation of Off-road Vehicles on Municipal Roadways January 1, 2021

Effective January 1, 2021, the Ministry of Transportation (MTO) is changing the way the province manages how off-
road vehicles (ORVs) are allowed on-road in some municipalities.

The use of ORVs on highways is controlled under Section 191.8 of the Highway Traffic Act (HTA), Ontaria Regulation
316/03 made under the HTA, and municipal by-laws passed in accordance with the legislation and regulations.
Currently, ORVs that meet the requirements in Ontario Regulation 316/03 are allowed on some provincial highways
and municipal highways where a municipality has passed a by-law allowing the use of such ORVs on highways under
their jurisdiction.

WHAT’S NEW?

Effective January 1, 2021, all ORVs that meet the requirements in Ontario Regulation 316/03 for ORVs permitted on-
road, will be allowed by default on municipal highways under the jurisdiction of municipalities listed in Ontario

Regulation 8/03 unless the municipality has a by-law prohibiting or restricting the use of some or all such ORVs.

Municipalities that are not listed in Ontario Regulation 8/03 will continue to be subject to the existing regulatory
framework and are not affected by this change. In these municipalities, ORVs will continue to be allowed only if the
municipality has passed a by-law to allow permitted ORVs on municipa! highways under their jurisdiction.

Mun icipal F.d Municipalities listed in Ontario Regulation 8/03 will continue to have the authority

. ) ! and make decisions about ORVs through by-law to:
Considerations |

’. #
|| » Prohibit ORVs on some or all highways “@

-'] » Permit only specific ORVs on road % m
I
ff » Prohibit ORVs at specific hours of the day

0o Impose additional lower speed limits f /A

s

;J Local municipalities listed in Ontario Regulation 8/03 that wish to prohibit ORVs; or
restrict the permitted types of ORVs; or restrict the time of day or the season when
permitted types of ORVs are allowed on-road; or establish lower speed limits for these
vehicles; may need to pass a new by-law.

Il Where a local municipality affected by the change has an existing by-law providing a
I blanket permission for ORVs on all municipal highways, the by-law would not be in
f conflict with the new regulations. If an existing by-law only permits some ORVs or
il restricts ORVs to only some highways, the municipality may have to revoke the by-law
'_ and pass a new by-law as outlined above if the municipality wishes to continue such
# restrictions.

| There is no change to the enforcement of laws related to the use of ORVs. Any issues
"; with the day-to-day operations of police services and the actions of police officers
?ﬂ related to ORVs should be raised with the local chief of police or their designated
11' representatives. All set fines can be found on the @ntario Court of Justice website.

| This document is provided primarily as a guide. For additional information please refer
to the Highway Traffic Act, associated regulations and visit Ontario.ca/ATV for
information and tips related to the operation of ORVs in Ontario.

Provincial Requiremen

Ministry of Transportation | Highway Operations Management Branch | (905) 704-2960 | Traffic.Office@Ontario.ca




Off-road Vehicles Allowed On-road

Effective July 1, 2020, MTO made changes to add off-roadmotorcycles (ORM) and extreme terrain vehicles (XTV) to
the existing list of ORVs permitted on-road. These two new ORV types are in addition to the currently permitted 4-
wheeled ORV types.

MUNICIPAL BY-LAWS: Effective July 1, 2020, the two new ORV types added to the list of ORVs permitted on-road
can be allowed on municipal highways in accordance with the HTA and Ontario Regulation 316/03.

ORV is a general term used to capture several different vehicles designed for off-road use, however, only certain
off-road vehicles that meet the requirements in Ontario Regulation 316/03 are permitted on-road:

“A “single-rider” all-terrain vehicle (ATV) is designed to travel on four
tires, having a seat designed to be straddled by the operator, handlebars
| forsteering control and it must be designed by the manufacturer to carry

All-Terrain
Vehicles

EIRTTIREEIT T

a driver only and no passengers.

A two-up ATV is designed and intended for use by an operator or an
| operator and a passenger. It is equipped with straddle-style seating and

) S

designedto carry only one passenger.

|
|
Side—by-Sides 1 A recreational off-highway vehicle (ROV) has two abreast seats, typically
| built with a hood, and uses a steering whee! instead of a motorcycle
-,"-{ steering handlebar.
|

A utility terrain vehicle (UTV) has similar characteristics to an ROV but
typically also features a box bed. UTVs are generally designed for utility
| rather than for recreational purposes.

¥

New Off-Road l Extreme Terrain Vehicles (XTVs), commonly referred to as Argos are 6+
. ', wheeled off-road vehicles capable of riding in multiple terrains, including
Vehicle Types li through water. These vehicles sometimes come with tracks, however,
{w tracked versions are not being permitted on road and are restricted to

off-road use only.

§

Off-Road Motorcycles (ORMs) are 2 wheeled off-road vehicles that
come in varying configurations such as, but not limited to: Recreational
ORMs, Trail ORMs or Competition ORM.

Provincial Requirements

Ministry of Transportation | Highway Operations Management Branch | (905) 704-2960 | Traffic.Office@Ontario.ca




Township of Billings
ACCOUNTS FOR PAYMENT from Feb 15, 2021 to Feb 25, 2021

Cheque No. Cheque Date Payee Amount
6625 Feb 18, 2021 Canada Post Corporation 1,320.97
6645 Feb 19,2021 Canada Revenue Agency 1,914.16
6646 Feb 19, 2021 Steele's Home Hardware 69.47
6647 Feb 24, 2021 Aeolian 197.75
6648 Feb 25,2021 BJ'S & Addison's OK Tire 129.95
6649 Feb 25, 2021 Brendan Addison Mobile Mechanical 1,5656.05
6650 Feb 25,2021 Bridal Veil Variety 169.12
6651 Feb 25,2021 Fred DeanLLB 224,87
6652 Feb 25,2021 Giffen Lawyers LLP 1,999.47
6653 Feb 25, 2021 Laurentian Business Product 97.51

6654 Feb 25,2021 Manitoulin Cedar Products 1,311.93
6655 Feb 25,2021 Manitoulin Fuels 2,260.76
6656 Feb 25,2021 Praxair Distribution 126.67
6657 Feb 25, 2021 Public Health Sudbury & Districts 2,156.75
6658 Feb 25,2021 Rastali Mine Supply Ltd 378.62
6659 Feb 25,2021 S.T.0.P. Restaurant Supply 188.99
6660 Feb 25, 2021 The Manitoulin Expositor 484.07
6661 Feb 25, 2021 The Manitoufin West Recorder 377.03
6662 Feb 25, 2021 The Public Sector Digest Inc. 7,076.63
6663 Feb 25, 2021 Town of Northeastern Manitoulin & the Islands 2,499.00
PREAUTHORIZED PAYMENTS

DS Feb 16, 2021 GFL Environmental 3,917.25
DS Feb 17,2021 Payroll 15,713.32
DS Feb 17,2021 Canada Life-RSP 1,479.14
DS Feb 17,2021 Superior Propane 294.79
DS Feb 18,2021 Rogers-PW Phones 271.20
DS Feb 22, 2021 Bell Canada 567.60
DS Feb 24, 2021 Eastlink 148.81
DS Feb 25, 2021 Hydro One 6,663.94

DS Total 53,595.82



